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FREIRE
Chairman’s Statement

2012 was a year full of challenges, even though the US situation
improved moderately while the Eurozone nations’ debt problems
were still unsolved. Real GDP growth in the Mainland China was
7.8%, slightly better than the forecast of 7.5%.

In view of the challenging environment in this financial year, our
board of directors had expected a drop in profit after tax and
decided to issue a profit warning on 14 May 2013. Based on the
announcement, the Board would like to inform the shareholders of
the Company and potential investors that the Group was expected
to record a substantial decrease in profit for the year ended 31
March 2013 compared with the year ended 31 March 2012. The
expected substantial decrease in profit was mainly due to the
significant decrease in revenue and substantial decrease in gross
profit of the Group’s automobile dealership business in the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”), resulting from keen competition due to an
increase in the number of dealers of super-luxury automobiles in the
PRC market.

During this financial year, the Group’s revenue decreased by 32%,
reaching HK$3.016 billion, compared with HK$4.427 billion in the
previous financial year. Gross profit for the financial year decreased
by 37%, reaching HK$284.9 million, compared with HK$451.9
million in the previous financial year. Net profit for this financial
year decreased by 69%, reaching HK$66.0 million compared with
HK$213.7 million in the previous financial year. The drop in gross
profit was mainly because of the drastic decrease in auto sales in
this financial year versus the previous one. The auto business is
a major income driver, accounting for approximately 91% of our
business. Finance cost surged to HK$30.8 million from HK$10.0
million in the previous financial year due primarily to the auto division
for taking delivery of new cars.
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FREIRE
Chairman’s Statement

China’s Luxury Goods & China Auto Markets

There are quite a few ongoing updates and research reports from
reputable authorities, investment banks and global research houses
mentioning “the slowdown of the China Luxury Goods Markets”.
According to a research “Luxury Without Borders: China’s New
Class of Shoppers Take on the World” issued by consulting firm
McKinsey & Company in December 2012, consumption of luxury
goods in China’s domestic market has surged at between 16%
and 20% per annum for the past 4 years. That pace of growth
is subsiding to a projected annual rate in the 12% to 16% range
between now and 2015. It also predicted that the Chinese share
of the global market, including spending by consumers outside the
country, is certain to rise in the next three years to about 34%. The
report concluded that even if the market is slowing, the outlook is
robust, and there is no denying that the Chinese have become the
world’s most important luxury buyers.

“Luxury Goods Worldwide Market Study (Spring 2013 update)”
issued by Bain & Company with Fondazione Altagamma on 16 May
2013 forecast luxury goods growth cooling worldwide to 4% to 5%
in 2013 from 5% in 2012 at constant exchange rates. It also forecast
global luxury goods sales would rise at a compound annual growth
rate of 5% to 6% between 2013 and 2015 at constant exchange
rates. Growth in the Asia-Pacific region, excluding mainland China,
would reach 7% to 9% in 2013, down from 10% last year at
constant currencies. For mainland China, it forecast growth of 6% to
8% at constant currencies.

Despite slowing sales in China, the market is still optimistic and
China is widely expected to become the world’s biggest luxury car
market by 2016. According to a report named “Upward Mobility: The
Future of China’s Premium Car Market” by McKinsey & Company
dated March 2013, over the past 10 years, the luxury car market
in China has grown at an average annual growth rate of 36%.
Additionally, China is expected to exceed the US as the world’s
largest premium car market by 2016. It is forecast to sell over 2.3
million units that year and 3 million by 2020.
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FREIRE
Chairman’s Statement

“The central government’s clampdown on official waste and
extravagance has put the brakes on China’s luxury vehicle market
in the first quarter of the year” is based on an article named
“Austerity puts luxury car sales in slow lane” in China Daily issued
on 7 May 2013. According to the China Association of Automobile
Manufacturers, growth in sales for the luxury vehicle sector,
dominated by German brands Audi, BMW and Mercedes-Benz,
slowed to 4%, far below the 13% annual growth in the passenger
car market. Local media reported that the Chinese government is
considering introducing a 20% tax on ultra-luxury vehicles priced
higher than RMB1.7 million per unit, which would pose a threat
to the sale of ultra-luxury vehicles in China as well. The author of
a report issued by HSBC global research, “Initial thoughts on the
potential luxury vehicle tax in China” on 22 May 2013 believed that
even the tax is implemented, the number of ultra-luxury vehicles
affected would contribute less than 1% to the premium car market
with annual sales of 1.2 million units in China in 2012.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Automobile Dealerships

During the year, revenue of the ultra-luxury automobile distributorship
of Bentley, Lamborghini and Rolls-Royce recorded an approximate
36% decrease to HK$2.646 billion, compared with HK$4.106 billion
in the previous financial year. All ultra-luxury cars under the Group
have recorded a drop in sales during this financial year. Among
all car brands under our Group, Bentley has performed the best
among the others with a total of 351 units sold, representing a 28%
decrease in units sold in this financial year compared with 487 during
the previous financial year.

According to the article named “Bentley Introduces the New
Flying Spur to China” dated 20 April 2013 under Bentley Motors
Worldwide’s official website, Bentley Motors has introduced the new
Flying Spur to Greater China, alongside the Continental GT Speed,
and its pinnacle flagship model, the Mulsanne. The brand has also
announced its plans to expand its dealer network in Greater China,
reinforcing China as a key market for Bentley’s continued success
as the company aims for double-digit growth in 2013. We strongly
believe those new car models and expansion plan in China of the
brand shall help the Group to restore returns to our shareholders as
one of the top dealers in the China market.
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FREIRE
Chairman’s Statement

Lamborghini Beijing has recorded a 41% drop in unit sales to 47
units sold during this financial year, compared with 79 in the previous
financial year. We are glad to report the disposal of Lamborghini
Dalian was completed and the receipt of a one-off gain of HK$0.9
million.

Rolls-Royce’s performance was the weakest in terms of the decline
in percentage of unit sales among our 3 brands during this financial
year with a total of 153 units sold, representing a decrease of 44%
compared with 271 in the previous financial year.

Encouragingly, income from provision of after-sales services was
stable and continued to increase during this financial year. Total
revenue recorded an 18% increase during this financial year
compared with the previous financial year. Regarding the gross profit
margin, we have recorded a drop from 62% to 58% during last and
this financial year because the up-and-running Tianjin after-sales
service center was not profitable.

Although the performance was weak during this financial year, the
Group is committed to reviving the auto business as we are going
to relocate auto showrooms in Jin Bao street to Sanlitun in or about
July 2013. Our strategy is to centralize all our car showrooms close
to one another and also next to our Beijing Sparkle Roll Luxury World
(China Headquarter) so that they can synergize with each other. This
will constitute continuing connected transactions to be disclosed in
detail in a separate announcement in the near future in compliance
with the Listing Rules. At the same time, the Group re-purchased
Tianjin’s subsidiary interests of 30% at a consideration of RMB72
million on 1 June 2013 from a minority shareholder to show our faith
in the auto business.
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FREIRE
Chairman’s Statement

Watch Distributorships

During the year, the performance of our super deluxe branded
watch division recorded a drop. Parmigiani performed best among
other watch brands with a total of 189 watches sold, a 41% drop
compared with 319 in the previous financial year. Another super
brand, Richard Mille, recorded a drop of 46%, with a total of 81
watches sold compared with 150 in the previous financial year.
Lastly, DeWitt also recorded lower sales during this financial year
compared with the previous financial year with a total of 40 watches
sold.

In April 2013, the Group closed our flagships of Richard Mille, DeWitt
and Parmigiani located in the Legendale Hotel, Beijing as the Group
would like to consolidate our watch and jewelry businesses under
one roof to accomplish our “Luxury World concept” as mentioned
previously in our interim report. The Group incurred a one-time write-
down of HK$6.6 million arising from these closures, which mainly
comprised forfeit of rental deposits and written off of leasehold
improvements of these flagships.

Jewellery Distributorships

We are very glad to see sales of top-tier branded jewellery increased
in terms of quantity. A total of 469 pieces were sold during this
financial year, an increase of 24% compared with the previous
financial year when 378 pieces of jewelry were sold.

Royal Asscher, which started operating right after joining our brand
alliance in the second quarter of 2011, performed well during this
financial year with a total of 26 pieces of jewelry sold, a 189%
increase compared with the previous financial year during which 9
high-end jewellery pieces were sold. On 29 January 2013, the Group
entered into a trademarks licence and distribution agreement with
the brand regarding an exclusive right to use the Royal Asscher
trademarks on diamond and diamond accessories within the PRC
including Macau but excluding Hong Kong and Taiwan. It took effect
from 1 February 2013 for a term of 10 years, with an option to renew
for an additional period of 10 years upon expiration. The Directors
believe the cooperation with Royal Asscher will substantially increase
the Company’s market presence in the diamond and high-jewellery
business in the PRC in an innovative and prudent manner and will
bring profitable returns to the Group.
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FREIRE
Chairman’s Statement

Boucheron, the first renowned top-tier brand that we acquired, has
recorded a drop in sales during this financial year at HK$32.0 million,
down 8% from HK$34.8 million in the previous financial year.

After mutual discussion and deliberations, we have prematurely
ended our contract in March 2012 with Federico Buccellati, another
top-tier branded jewellery. The brand recorded sales of 1 high-end
jewelry piece of Federico Buccellati during this financial year.

Fine Wines Dealerships

Due to the anti-extravagance campaign of the Chinese Government,
the overall performance of the fine wines division slowed down in
the second half of this financial year. Still, total sales during this
financial year reached HK$114.9 million versus HK$16.5 million in
the last financial year, representing an increase of 598%. Sales of top
fine wines, which contributed around 93% of the total sales of the
fine wines session, rocketed over 27 times from HK$3.9 million to
HK$107.2 million during last and this financial year respectively.

However, sales of the Group’s private label wine — “Ex-Chateaux” ( &
LEE) - launched in collaboration with our partner negociants from
Bordeaux, dropped 39% during this financial year to HK$7.6 million
when compared with last financial year.

Additionally, our investment in wine futures or “En Primeur 2011”
was disposed of in the first half of this financial year.

Other Distributorships
Buben & Zorweg, a top-notch Austrian manufacturer in Objects of

Time, performed well and recorded sales of 16 pieces of high-end
products during this financial year.
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FREIRE
Chairman’s Statement

In January 2013, the Group was appointed a non-exclusive retailer
of Bang & Olufsen branded audio and visual consumer electronics
products in Wuhan, Wuxi and Chongqing; a non-exclusive retailer of
B&O PLAY branded audio and visual consumer electronics products
in the PRC; a non-exclusive distributor of the B&O PLAY branded
audio and visual consumer electronics products to third-party
resellers in the PRC; and a non-exclusive retailer and/or distributor
of the B&0O PLAY branded audio and visual consumer electronics
products through online shop(s) in the PRC. There was no record
of sales as of 31 March 2013 for both brands. The Group has
opened 9 dedicated B&O PLAY stores (“POS”) with 6 in Beijing, 1
in Zhengzhou, 1 in Shanghai and 1 in Shijiazhuang subsequent to
31 March 2013. For B&O PLAY, we intend to open not less than 50
POS before the end of 2013.

RECENT DEVELOPMENT AND PROSPECT

On 20 March 2013,
Commission (NDRC) and Certification and Accreditation

the National Development and Reform

Administration of the People’s Republic of China (CNAC) issued
the document “Interim Measure for Certification Management of
Low-carbon Products”.
its energy consumption per unit of GDP by 17%, according to
the government’s 12th Five-Year Plan (2011-2015). And by 2020,

China aims to get 15% of its total energy demand from low-carbon

By the end of 2015, China aims to lower

sources. We foresee electric vehicles will getting more popular than
fuel vehicles in the coming decade.

Recently, rumors of a luxury tax of 20% on luxury vehicles carrying
price tags of at least RMB1.7 million to RMB1.8 million have been
appearing across the Chinese media, according to Global Auto
Sources, Gasgoo.com issued on 21 May 20183. An official from the
China Association of Automobile Manufacturers, who wished to
remain anonymous, said that the relevant government departments
are currently in the process of formulating the policy. We can see
our luxury auto sales would improve in the short term as buyers
scrambled to buy before the new tax takes effect.
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FREIRE
Chairman’s Statement

On 5 June 2018, Beijing launched an anti-dumping investigation into
European wine imports, a move greeted with alarm in the vineyards
of Bordeaux, France. The wine-dumping probe came a day after the
European Commission imposed anti-dumping duties on solar panels
imported from China. We adopt a wait-and-see attitude towards the
possible impact of this anti-dumping investigation on our fine wines
division, sales of which are mainly from Bordeaux fine wines since
China is Bordeaux’s biggest export market accounting for around
one in five of the bottles produced in Bordeaux while consumers in
China are fond of Bordeaux fine wines.

We are committed to expanding the non-auto businesses, especially
because we are optimistic about the potential of the jewelry sector in
China. Royal Asscher, one of the jewelry brands under our portfolio,
is going to roll out a new business plan to produce diamond
jewelry products in China with the brand’s craftsmanship and
unique engraving technique, so as to create a new product line of
“affordable luxury”. We have faith that such a plan will enhance our
brand’s penetration of jewelry business into the China market. At the
same time, we will carry out a “litmus test” to expand our presence
into second-tier cities apart from Beijing, Shanghai and Tianjin. For
B&O, B1 shop will be established in Wuhan as the first step in the
foreseeable future, while we intend to open not less than 50 POS by
the end of 2013. For Boucheron, additional stores will be established
in Beijing, Shanghai and Chengdu.

Additionally, we predict our capital expenditure will be around
RMB32 million in the coming financial year, which will be used
to realize an upcoming renovation plan for non-auto businesses
including watches and jewelry outlets, as well as auto showrooms.
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FREIRE
Chairman’s Statement

In view of the smooth running of the first-ever “Beijing Sparkle Roll
Luxury Brands Culture Expo 2012 Fall” (“SR Luxpo 2012”") in early
September 2012, we organized the very first “Beijing Sparkle Roll
Luxury Brands Culture Pinnacle Forum & Distinguished Exhibition
2013 Spring” (“SR Luxfo 2013”) held from 23 to 25 May 2013 at
Convention Center of Beijing International Hotel. During the Forum,
6 top brands owners appeared as keynote speakers, and many
business representatives exchanged views on the luxury brands
culture. At the same time, a Distinguished Exhibition also took place
to present lots of top brands, including a total of 42 exhibitors from
11 countries all over the world. The purpose of the forum was to
act as an interface between luxury brands and elites of the Chinese
luxury industry in a very special ambience. It would open up business
cooperation and most importantly, complete the conveying of more
luxury brands culture from the world to China. On the other hand,
it helped fostering a closer relationship between the Group and the
media. In addition to the mini Luxpo extended to Chengdu from
21 to 23 October 2012 as reported in the 2012 Interim Report, a
Taiyuan, Shanxi Roadshow was held on 22 to 24 April 2013.

Following the SR Luxfo 2013, we are proud to present the Beijing
Sparkle Roll Luxury Brands Expo 2013 Fall (“SR Luxpo 2013”), which
will be exquisitely held at the China National Convention Center
(*CNCC”) from 10 to 14 October 2013. The CNCC is located in the
renowned Olympic Green district, neighboring the world-famous
Birds Nest and Water Cube. It will be a 5-day large-scale exhibition
with the theme of in-depth interpretation of high-end, luxury,
independent, and niche brands culture.

Looking ahead, the Group is still cautiously optimistic towards the
luxury goods markets in the PRC despite the recent crackdown on
extravagant spending by the Chinese Government. We will continue
adopting a prudent approach to increase our presence and expand
our luxury goods market in the PRC.

On this note, the Board has recommended not to offer a final

dividend for this financial year. The Group would like to reserve more
capital to meet the challenges ahead.
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FERE
Chairman’s Statement

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

We would like to thank our dedicated team, board members
and staff members amid the challenges and competitive global
environment during the year. Given the cautiously optimistic outlook
for the luxury goods market in the PRC as well as our vision, we are
confident that we will generate profitable returns to our shareholders
in future.

Tong Kai Lap
Chairman

Hong Kong, 20 June 2013
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EFEEWE

Report of the Directors

The directors present their annual report and the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Details of the
principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note 17
to the financial statements. Its subsidiaries were principally engaged
in trading of luxury automobiles, watches, jewellery in the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”) (excluding Hong Kong and Macau) and
trading of fine wines in the PRC.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2013 of
approximately HK$3,015.6 million represented an decrease of
approximately 32% compared to approximately HK$4,427.4 million
recorded in the corresponding period of last year. The significant
decrease in turnover was attributable to the significant decrease of
luxury automobile sales, the profit for the year was of approximately
HK$66.0 million for the year ended 31 March 2013, as compared
with a net profit of approximately HK$213.7 million for the last
financial year.

At 31 March 2013, the Group maintained cash at banks and in
hand of approximately HK$273.9 million (2012: HK$130.4 million),
short-term borrowings of approximately HK$547.8 million (2012:
HK$208.4 million) and long-term borrowings of approximately HK$40
million (2012: HK$56 million). The Group had sufficient financial
resources and will continue to finance its business development by
internal resources and borrowings.

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2013 (2012: HKO0.3 cent), while interim
dividend of HKO.2 cent per share (2012: HKO0.5 cent per share) had
been distributed.
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EFEWE

Report of the Directors

OPERATIONAL REVIEW

Automobile Dealerships

During this financial year, 351 units of Bentley automobiles (2012:
487 units), 47 units of Lamborghini automobiles (2012: 79 units) and
153 units of Rolls-Royce automobiles (2012: 271 units) were sold.
Total revenue of approximately HK$2,645.7 million was generated
from sales of automobiles compared to HK$4,106.3 million in last
year. The gross profit margin for automobiles was 5%, a decrease
of around 3% on overall basis as a result of keen competition and
increase in purchase cost from manufacturers.

Moreover, after-sale services generated services income of
approximately HK$95.1 million compared to HK$80.9 million in last
year.

Watch Distributorships

During the year, 81 pieces of Richard Mille (2012: 150 pieces), 40
pieces of DeWitt (2012: 102 pieces), 189 pieces of Parmigiani (2012:
319 pieces) and one piece of deLaCour (2012: nil) were sold.

Sales of watches generated revenue of approximately HK$125.3
million compared to HK$188.0 million in last year. Management
believe that decrease of 33% in sales revenue of watches was mainly
due to keen competition in Beijing, Tianjin and Shanghai and less
revenues generated from our cross-selling campaign to our car
owners.

Jewellery Distributorships

During the year, 442 pieces of Boucheron jewelleries (2012: 359
pieces), 26 pieces of Royal Asscher jewelleries (2012: 9 pieces)
and one piece of Federico Buccellati jewelleries (2012: 10 pieces)
were sold. Sales of jewelleries generated revenue of approximately
HK$34.6 million compared to HK$35.9 million in last year,
representing a decrease of 3%. Both Boucheron and Royal Asscher
had opened their stores in Beijing Sparkle Roll Luxury World (China
Headquarter), Beijing Sparkle Roll Luxury World (Hua Mao) and
Tianjin Sparkle Roll Luxury World.
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EFEEWE

Report of the Directors

Fine Wines Distributorship

During the year, 47,5653 bottles (2012: 75,476 bottles) of fine wines
including 12,899 bottles (2012: 372 bottles) of top fine wine were
sold.

NUMBER AND REMUNERATION OF
EMPLOYEES

As at 31 March 2013, the Group had 428 (2012: 348) employees.
Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) charged to profit
or loss amounted to approximately HK$44.7 million for the year
(2012: HK$45.2 million). All permanent employees were under the
remuneration policy of fixed monthly salary with discretionary bonus.

A new share option scheme was adopted by the Company on 20
August 2012.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group’s total assets as at 31 March 2013 were approximately
HK$2,373.3 million (2012: HK$1,922.9 million) which were mainly
financed by the owners’ equity and total liabilities of approximately
HK$1,605.5 million (2012: HK$1,452.2 million) and HK$727.8 million
(2012: HK$465.9 million) respectively.

The Directors consider the Group will have sufficient working capital
for its existing operations and financial resources for financing future
business expansion and capital expenditures.

The Group’s bank balances and cash were mainly denominated in
Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$”) and Renminbi (“RMB”).

The Group enters into foreign currency forward contracts primarily
for hedging its purchases that are mainly denominated in Euro. At
31 March 2013, the Group recognised foreign currency forward
contracts with a fair value of approximately HK$0.2 million liabilities
(2012: HK$3.2 million assets) as derivative financial instruments.
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EFEWE

Report of the Directors

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group’s gearing ratio then computed as total borrowings over
the total equity was approximately 35.7% as at 31 March 2013
(2012: 18.1%).

EXPOSURE TO FOREIGN EXCHANGE

The revenue of the Group is mainly denominated in HK$ and RMB
while the purchases and production cost are mainly denominated in
Euro, Swiss Franc, HK$ and RMB.

For this year, the Group was mainly exposed to foreign currency
exchange risk of Euro, Swiss Franc and RMB and the management
mainly monitored the foreign currency exchange risk with advices
from the Group’s major bankers.

CHARGES ON ASSETS

As at 31 March 2013, bank deposits and inventories of the Group
with an aggregate amount of approximately HK$95.9 million (2012:
HK$39.1 million) and HK$360.5 million (2012: HK$49.4 million)
respectively were pledged to secure borrowings of the Group and
general banking facilities granted to the Group.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2013, the largest and the top five
suppliers of the Group accounted for 47.9% and 96.8% of the
Group’s total purchases respectively. The largest and the top five
customers of the Group accounted for less than 10% of the Group’s
total revenue.

At no time during the year did a director, an associate of a director
or a shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) have
a beneficial interest in any of the Group’s five largest suppliers or
customers during the year.
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Report of the Directors

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2013 are
set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on
pages 54 and 55.

An interim dividend of HKO0.2 cent per share amounting to
approximately HK$5.69 million was paid to shareholders during the
year. No final dividend was proposed in respect of the year.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on pages 61 and 62 and note 32 to the financial
statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

In addition to retained profits, under the Bermuda Companies Act,
the contributed surplus account of the Company is also available
for distribution to its shareholders. However, the Company cannot
declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed
surplus if:

(@) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities
as they become due; or

(b)  the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share
premium accounts.

In the opinion of the directors, the distributable reserve accounts

comprise the reserves of the Company of approximately

HK$6,820,000 (2012: HK$25,980,000) in surplus.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements during the year in the share capital of the
Company are set out in note 31 to the financial statements.
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Report of the Directors

BORROWINGS

Particulars of borrowings of the Group as at 31 March 2013 are set
out in note 29 to the financial statements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the past five financial years is set out on page 176.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements during the year in the property, plant
and equipment of the Group are set out in note 16 to the financial
statements.

DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Tong Kai Lap

Mr. Zheng Hao Jiang

Mr. Zhao Xiao Dong

Non-executive directors:

Mr. Gao Yu

Mr. Qi Jian Wei

Mr. Zhang Si Jian

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. Choy Sze Chung, Jojo

Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong
Mr. Lee Thomas Kang Bor
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EFEEWE

Report of the Directors

In accordance with bye-laws 86(2B) of the Company’s Bye-laws,
any director appointed during the year will retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and are eligible for re-election.

In accordance with bye-laws 87(1) of the Company’s Bye-laws,
every director should be subject to retirement by rotation at the
annual general meeting at least once every three years and are
eligible for re-election.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company or its
subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one
year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

The term of office of each independent non-executive director is the
period of two years and renewable for one year up to his retirement
by rotation in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

In accordance with bye-laws 87(1) of the Company’s Bye-laws,
Mr. Zheng Hao Jiang, Mr. Zhang Si Jian, Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong
will retire by rotation and, being eligible, for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

Details of directors’ emoluments are set out in note 11 to the
financial statements.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
MANAGEMENTS

Brief biographical details of directors and managements are set out
in pages 47 to 51.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Except as disclosed in note 39 and elsewhere in the financial
statements, no contracts of significance to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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Report of the Directors

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND CONVERTIBLE
NOTES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

EERARAREMEBEEE 2R
7 HERORATRERRE 2#ES

RIZB—=ZF=ZA=1+—"RH BEFLRKSF
ZHMEALTRARR] RERBEEZ B &
AHREETEEARAREZ S L E K
I ([EHEBMEMRD]) E3B26MEFEZE
Feftpracs RIBET AR EFTEITES
RZNBETUASTHEARRANEBH
ERGMBRAR ([BXM]) Z#EmMT

At 31 March 2013, the interests of the directors and their associates
in the shares and convertible notes of the Company and its
associated corporations, as recorded in the register maintained by
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFQ”), or as otherwise notified to the Company and
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Companies, were as follows:

RERBDROREBRG 2FR

Long position in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company

Percentage of

Number of Number of issued share

issued ordinary underlying Total long capital of

Name of director Capacity shares held shares* position the Company

BEE#M EEQRE BT

Y L) EERYE HERGHE* FRAG RAEBA

Mr. Tong Kai Lap Founder of discretionary 10,274,400 - 10,274,400 0.34%

(“Mr. Tong”) trust (Note 1)

BEREE([ERE] PREFEIA (BaE1)

Mr. Tong Beneficial owner 9,760,000 - 9,760,000 0.33%

(Note 1)

BEE ERBEBAA (KisE1)

Mr. Zheng Hao Jiang Beneficial owner 10,640,000 - 10,640,000 0.36%
;ETxAE EafiEA

Mr. Zhang Si Jian Beneficial owner - 5,000,000 5,000,000 0.17%
REBELE EREAA

Mr. Choy Sze Chung, Jojo Beneficial owner 1,000,000 1,504,000 2,504,000 0.08%
ERELE ERBAA

Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong Beneficial owner 4,000 596,000 600,000 0.02%
MEE L4 ERAA

Mr. Lee Thomas Kang Bor Beneficial owner 1,256,000 1,248,000 2,504,000 0.08%
FEREE EREAA

*

* HER-E—=F=A=+—HRHERE
R (FHFBEN M B mRMIEs4) - MEE
EBEREER - T-=FOATEBALR

representing balance of share options held on 31 March 2013 (details
in Note 34 to the Financial Statements) while all directors’ share
options lapsed on 14 April 2013
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Notes:

0

Interest in the issued shares shown in this row is beneficially owned
by Rapid Alert International Limited, a company controlled by a
discretionary trust of which Mr. Tong is the founder. Accordingly, Mr.
Tong is deemed to be interested in these shares. The total interests
of issued shares of Mr. Tong are 20,034,400 shares or approximately
0.67% of issued share capital of the Company.

The denominator used is 2,979,828,850 shares, being the total number
of shares in issue as at 31 March 2013.

Other than as disclosed above and in the section headed “Share
Options” below, none of the directors nor their associates has any
interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or
convertible notes of the Company or any of its associated corporations
as at 31 March 2013. Particulars of the scheme and the movements
in the share options during the year were set out in note 34 to the
financial statements.

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company’s existing share option schemes (the “Scheme”) were

adopted pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at a general

meeting of the Company held on 7 October 2002 and 20 August

2012 respectively.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED BEEEERAT |

B :

RTRZEBTROERBELXERE
A2 EBEFAES 2 A FRapid Alert
International Limited Bz #5 « Bt - LA
WEARLEERNPHEEER FEEEH
#E520,034,400/% B BT (KALQF B
BITIAH0.67% ) 2 1 -

FT A5 & 52,979,828,850/% % {5 - BT =&
—ZFZA=ZT-RZEBETRMHEE-

B EX R T [ERE] —smkEEsN 7
—E-ZHEZAZT-B ZEFIREZ
B8 A THLEN AR A s AR AR AR 2
EAR - BERD AT IR REFEEE
MHEZTORR - %At BFELRBRERFEAR
Z BRI B MR I FE34 -

BRE

RNARVRITHEM TS ([3Z508]])) DiREA
RADRRZEE_F+ALERZE—=
FNAZ+THEROZREAS LBBEZER
SRR AN o
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Report of the Directors

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2013, the register of substantial shareholders

maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO

shows that, other than the interests disclosed above in respect

of certain directors, the following shareholders had notified the

Company of relevant interests in the issued share capital of the

Company:

Long position in the shares of the Company

Name of shareholder

BRREEEB

Substantial shareholders

FERR

Sparkle Roll Holdings Limited (“SRHL")
BEZERAER AR (MRHEER])

Mr. Qi Jian Hong (“Mr. Qi”) (Note 1)

Hgasa ([554E]) (B

Ms. Zhu Shuang (“Ms. Zhu”) (Note 1)
Kzt ([Rzt])) (M=)

Sequoia Capital China

Growth Fund I, L.P. (Note 2)
Sequoia Capital China

Growth Fund I, L.P. (Kf#¥2)

Mr. Shen Nanpeng (Note 2)
VL Ea S %k A (BT EE2)

Capacity

514

Beneficial owner

EREEA

Held by controlled corporation
and beneficial owner

HIEFZEFEREREAA

Interest of spouse
B (8 7 2

Beneficial owner

BB A

Interest of controlled corporation

2 A B S

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED BKEBARA A |

FERR

E-—=F=ZA=1—8 BARARE
aa%? HIERGIFEIB6EZREFEZ T ER
%%ﬂﬁ%mvkﬁi%&@%?%%Z%
@i THRRENEARARERARF
ERITRARAES ZAMER:

s
//“)

REQXBRGZHER
Percentage of
the issued
Number of share capital of
shares the Company
EARDBE#IT
BREEAR BREED K
(Note 4)
(Kt3E4)
843,440,000 28.30%
848,400,000 28.47%
848,400,000 28.47%
209,328,000 7.02%
240,000,000 8.05%
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Name of shareholder

BRBEEEB

SNP China Enterprises Limited
(Note 2)

SNP China Enterprises Limited
(Mi5E2)

SC China Holding Limited (Note 2)
SC China Holding Limited (Fff3£2)

Sequoia Capital China
Advisors Limited (Note 2)

Sequoia Capital China
Advisors Limited ( fff3F2)

Sequoia Capital China Growth Fund
Management |, L.P. (Note 2)

Sequoia Capital China Growth Fund
Management |, L.P. (Ff{5F2)

Morgan Stanley Private
Equity Asia lll, Inc. (Note 3)

Morgan Stanley Private
Equity Asia Ill, Inc. (Fff&E3)

Morgan Stanley Private
Equity Asia lll Holdings (Cayman)
Limited (Note 3)

Morgan Stanley Private
Equity Asia Ill Holdings (Cayman)
Limited ( Hff7£3)

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED BHEBHBR AR |

Capacity

=87

Interest of controlled corporation

2 )% B an

Interest of controlled corporation

2 DA E s

Investment manager

BES

<£¥

Fal

Interest of controlled corporation

2 A B i S

Interest of controlled corporation

2 )% B #E 2

Interest of controlled corporation

2 )% B #E s

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 F#

Number of
shares

Ko EE

240,000,000

240,000,000

240,000,000

240,000,000

300,000,000

300,000,000

Percentage of
the issued
share capital of
the Company
HEARB#T
BEED K
(Note 4)

(KtzE4)

8.05%

8.05%

8.05%

8.05%

10.07%

10.07%
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Name of shareholder

RR®EE8

Morgan Stanley Private

Equity Asia lll, L.L.C. (Note 3)
Morgan Stanley Private

Equity Asia Ill, L.L.C. (F3¥3)

Morgan Stanley Private
Equity Asia Ill, L.P. (Note 3)

Morgan Stanley Private
Equity Asia Ill, L.P. ( i 5£3)

MSPEA Il Holdings
Cooperatief U.A. (Note 3)

MSPEA Il Holdings
Cooperatief U.A. (Fff5£3)

MSPEA Luxury Holding B.V. (Note 3)
MSPEA Luxury Holding B.V. ( f#353)

Capacity

=47

Interest of controlled corporation

2 )% B g

Interest of controlled corporation

EHAE R

Interest of controlled corporation

2 A B

Beneficial owner
EnlEAEA

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED BKEBARA A |

Number of
shares

R&HEE

300,000,000

300,000,000

300,000,000

300,000,000

Percentage of
the issued
share capital of
the Company
HEARE#T
BEED K
(Note 4)

(KtzE4)

10.07%

10.07%

10.07%

10.07%
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Notes:

0

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED BHEBHBR AR |

SRHL is a company wholly owned by Mr. Qi. Accordingly, Mr. Qi is
deemed to be beneficial holder of shares held by SRHL. Ms. Zhu is wife
of Mr. Qi. Accordingly, Ms. Zhu is deemed to be beneficial holders of
shares held by SRHL and Mr. Qi.

Sequoia Capital China Growth Fund Management |, L.P. is interested
in 240,000,000 Shares representing approximately 8.05% of the
Company’s issued share capital, of which (i) 209,328,000 Shares
(7.02%) is held by Sequoia Capital China Growth Fund I, L.P., (ii)
4,992,000 Shares (0.17%) is held by Sequoia Capital China Growth
Partners Fund |, L.P. and (iii) 25,680,000 Shares (0.86%) is held by
Sequoia Capital China GF Principals Fund I, L.P.. Sequoia Capital
China Growth Fund |, L.P., Sequoia Capital China Growth Partners
Fund I, L.P. and Sequoia Capital China GF Principals Fund I, L.P.
(collectively “SCC Growth Funds”) are managed by Sequoia Capital
China Advisors Limited, a company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands. The SCC Growth Funds’ general partner is Sequoia Capital
China Growth Fund Management |, L.P., whose general partner is SC
China Holding Limited, a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands.
SC China Holding Limited is wholly owned by SNP China Enterprises
Limited, a company wholly owned by Mr. Shen Nanpeng (also known
as “Neil Nanpeng Shen”) (“Mr. Shen”). Mr. Shen disclaims beneficial
ownership with respect to the shares held by the SCC Growth Funds
except to the extent of his pecuniary interest therein because he is not
ultimate owner that owns these shares. Each of Sequoia Capital China
Advisors Limited, Sequoia Capital China Growth Fund Management |,
L.P., SC China Holding Limited and SNP China Enterprises Limited is
deemed to be interested in the Shares held by the SCC Growth Funds.

B :
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RAEZER BRREEZEREFGZ AR Et
HEEARBAREEBRABRN ZERRFH
AN REEBEREZEF H REEH
BRBREREEEEMBEN ZERFH
Ao

Sequoia Capital China Growth Fund
Management |, L.P.%2240,000,0000% f% 1
(IEARBEETHRALNS05%)hEHR
o H () 209,328,0000% i% 17 (7.02%)
i Sequoia Capital China Growth Fund |,
L.P#EE (i) 4,992,0008% [ 1% (0.17%)FH
Sequoia Capital China Growth Partners
Fund |, L.P.3F % : K (i) 25,680,000/% %
% (0.86%)H Sequoia Capital China GF
Principals Fund |, L.P.4%% ° Sequoia Capital
China Growth Fund |, L.P. * Sequoia Capital
China Growth Partners Fund |, L.P.}&%
Sequoia Capital China GF Principals Fund I,
L.P. (578 & [SCCR KX £ |) Jh i Sequoia
Capital China Advisors Limited ( —E R £
BHEFMKI 2 AE]) ER - SCCRRESZ
@A ¥ A ASequoia Capital China Growth
Fund Management |, L.P.’ M Sequoia
Capital China Growth Fund Management
I, LPZE®BA& % A ASC China Holding
Limited ( —R S EMAILZ AF])
SC China Holding LimitedE8SNP China
Enterprises LimitedZ & # A * MSNP China
Enterprises Limited /& — &l g1 4 B 5 55 & (75
& & [Neil Nanpeng Shen J) (k&4 ]) &
BEHA 2 AT e BRILEAENIEHBSCCK
RESMBAROG 2 HEBEAEAN BEER
BEZERDZERERRE HERREFZ
&8 F 2R BRIN o A L - Sequoia Capital China
Advisors Limited » Sequoia Capital China
Growth Fund Management [, L.P.~ SC China
Holding Limited 2 SNP China Enterprises
Limited® B #3 RRSCCRERE & F A IR
DB RER -
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MSPEA Luxury Holding B.V. (“MSPEA”) is interested in 300,000,000
Shares representing approximately 10.07% of the Company’s issued
share capital. MSPEA, a limited liability company incorporated in the
Netherlands and under Dutch law, is indirectly controlled by Morgan
Stanley Private Equity Asia lll, L.P. (the “MSPEA III”) (through its control
of Morgan Stanley Private Equity Asia Ill Holdings (Cayman) Limited
and MSPEA Il Holdings Cooperatief U.A.), a fund managed by the
private equity arm of Morgan Stanley. The general partner of MSPEA Il
is Morgan Stanley Private Equity Asia lll, L.L.C., the managing member
of which is Morgan Stanley Private Equity Asia lll, Inc., a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Morgan Stanley. Each of MSPEA Ill Holdings Cooperatief
U.A., Morgan Stanley Private Equity Asia lll Holdings (Cayman) Limited,
MSPEA Ill, Morgan Stanley Private Equity Asia lll, L.L.C. and Morgan
Stanley Private Equity Asia lll, Inc. is deemed to be interested in the
Shares held by MSPEA.

Other than as disclosed above, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO
discloses no person as having a notifiable interest or short position in
the issued share capital of the Company as at 31 March 2013.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2013, the Directors were

not aware of any other person (other than the Directors and the

chief executive of the Company) who had, or was deemed to have,

interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares

(including any interests in options in respect of such capital), which

would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange

under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,

or who was directly or indirectly interested in 5% or more of the

nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in

all circumstances at general meetings of any member of the Group.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED BKEBARA A |

(38)  MSPEA Luxury Holding B.V. ([MSPEA])
$£300,000,0000% i 3 (15 45 22 7] 2 317 Bk
A #10.07% ) 7 % A # 7 © MSPEA (A fi
WY RBERBEEETIMAILZBRAF)
THERTAFZALERESMER A
% Morgan Stanley Private Equity Asia Il
L.P. ([MSPEA Il |) i i & BT #ll 2 Morgan
Stanley Private Equity Asia Il Holdings
(Cayman) Limited 2 MSPEA IIl Holdings
Cooperatief U.A.fE# ] - MSPEA Il 2 & i
&% A AMorgan Stanley Private Equity Asia
I, LLC. (HEBKERARRERL AN
2 & [f} & 2 A]Morgan Stanley Private Equity
Asia lll, Inc.) &Lt * MSPEA Il Holdings
Cooperatief U.A.~Morgan Stanley Private
Equity Asia Il Holdings (Cayman) Limited
MSPEA Il - Morgan Stanley Private Equity
Asia lll, L.L.C.K&Morgan Stanley Private
Equity Asia lll, Inc.®& B2 BRI MSPEAY &
2R A -

4 BEXHEREEN RZT—=F=AH
=t —H REARARREZESFRBERIE
b2 HEFEC T ERRELMATHEE -
WEAMALTERRNB D EITRATESFZE
TAMZERIKR -

BEXFRBEEN RZF—=F=A=1+—
B EEMrIABZEEMEMAL (BEERA
RAEBITHABRRSN) R A SKABRIRX D
BEHWREAEARERF LAERDIEXV
#BEE2 N B3 BB Z R LA M AR X A) BBk A2 P
BREEDIAR (BREREREBRAZER
BZEAER) KERXEREERAERE
ATHERNAIRAEBEMKE AR 2K
RRE LREZEMERRATEES%HA L
ZHEDE o
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than as disclosed in the section headed “Share Options”
above, at no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the directors
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications
and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market information.

The Company has adopted a share option share scheme as an
incentive to directors and eligible employees.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange. The Company considers all of the
independent non-executive directors are independent.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED BHEBHBR AR |

BERODESF Z2ZH
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the completeness
and accuracy of disclosures of continuing connected transactions
(“CCT”") and the Company’s compliance with the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”) in respect of such transactions.

During the year, the independent non-executive directors of the
listed issuer had reviewed all CCT, as shown on pages 30 to 33 and
confirm in this annual report and accounts that the transactions have
been entered into:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; and

(2)  on normal commercial terms; and

(3) in accordance with the relevant agreement governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the listed issuer as a whole.

On 31 May 2013, BDO Limited, the auditor of the Company had
also provided a letter to the Board of Directors of the Company,
confirming that all CCT:

(1) had received the approval of the listed issuer’s board of
directors;

(2)  were in accordance with the pricing policies of the listed issuer
if the transactions involve provision of goods or services by the
listed issuer;

(3) had been entered into in accordance with the relevant
agreement governing the transactions; and

(4) have not exceeded the cap disclosed in previous
announcements.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED BKEBARA A |

BFEREXRS
AAFEEHBEFESHIREFTE Y &
|E&/‘§EEIELA&ZK’&7EHZ% BT EB
BMARSGHMABARATES EHHRE ([ EHR
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RMO Agreement

On 31 December 2010, Beijing De Te Motors Trading Limited
(“BJDT”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into an office rental, management fees and office expenses
agreement (“RMO Agreement”) with Ms. Zhu, spouse of Mr. Qi,
the largest substantial shareholder of the Company, for a term
commencing from 1 January 2011 to 31 December 2013, in respect
of the office rental, management fees and office expenses with Ms.
Zhu and subject to an annual cap of RMB1,860,000.

As Beijing Sparkle Roll Luxury World (China Headquarter) including
office spaces has been in full operations In September 2012, the
RMO Agreement with Ms. Zhu was terminated by mutual agreement
with effect from 30 September 2012 as disclosed in Interim Report
of the Company. There was no compensation required according to
the mutual agreement.

For the year ended 31 March 2013, the total rental charges paid
by BJDT to Ms. Zhu amounted to RMB930,000 or approximately
HK$1,126,000.

Showroom Rental Agreement

On 31 December 2010, Tianjin Xin Chang Tai Fu Trading
Development Limited (“TJXC”), an indirect subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a showroom rental agreement (“Showroom
Rental Agreement”) with Mr. Qi, the largest substantial shareholder
of the Company, for a term commencing from 1 January 2011 to 31
December 2013, in respect of the office rental, management fees
and office expenses with Mr. Qi and subject to an annual cap of
RMB2,640,000.

A supplemental agreement (the “Supplemental Agreement”) entered
between TJXC and Mr. Qi dated 30 June 2011 for extension of the
duration of Showroom Rental Agreement from its original terms of
3 years from 1 January 2011 inclusive to 10 years from 1 January
2011 inclusive.

For the year ended 31 March 2013, the total rental charge paid

by TJXC to Mr. Qi amounted to RMB2,640,000 or approximately
HK$3,222,000.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED B EBHBR AR |

MAZHEEEGR
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Beijing Leasing Agreement |

On 30 June 2011, Sparkle Roll Xin Tian Di Commerce Development
Limited (“SRXTD”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a lease agreement (“Beijing Leasing
Agreement 1”) with Mr. Qi, the largest substantial shareholder of the
Company, for a 10-year term, from 1 July 2011 to 30 June 2021, for
leasing a portion of warehouse for exhibition purpose, of a portion of
warehouse having a gross floor area of approximately 2,150 square
meter at portions of Basement Level 1 of Tower A and B, No.40
Xinfu 2nd Village, Choyang District, Beijing, the PRC.

For the year ended 31 March 2013, the total rental charge paid
by SRXTD to Mr. Qi amounted to RMB6,840,000 or approximately
HK$8,348,000.

An agreement entered among SRXTD and SRRND, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, dated 6 July 2011 that the tenant of the
Beijing Leasing Agreement | transferred from SRXTD to SRRND, with
the same agreement terms.

Beijing Leasing Agreement Il

On 30 June 2011, Beijing Mei He Zhen Yong Motors Trading Limited
(“BJMH”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a lease agreement (“Beijing Leasing Agreement II”)
with Mr. Qi, the largest substantial shareholder of the Company, for
a 10-year term, from 1 July 2011 to 30 June 2021, for leasing a
showroom for luxury automobiles dealership business, of a portion of
showroom having a gross floor area of approximately 1,135 square
meter at portions of Level 1 of Tower A, No.40 Xinfu 2nd Village,
Choyang District, Beijing, the PRC.

For the year ended 31 March 2013, the total rental charge paid by
BJMH to Mr. Qi amounted to RMB11,040,000 or approximately
HK$13,474,000.

An agreement entered among BJMH and SRRND, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, dated 6 July 2011 that the tenant of the
Beijing Leasing Agreement Il transferred from BJMH to SRRND, with
the same agreement terms.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED BKEBARA A |
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Beijing Leasing Agreement Il

On 30 June 2011, Sparkle Roll Oriental (Beijing) Trading
Development Limited (“SROBJ”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a lease agreement (“Beijing Leasing
Agreement III”) with Mr. Qi, the largest substantial shareholder of the
Company, for a 10-year term, from 1 July 2011 to 30 June 2021,
for leasing a showroom for distribution of fine wines, watches and
jewelleries, of a portion of showroom having a gross floor area of
approximately 2,148 square meter at portions of Level 1 and 2 of
Tower A, No.40 Xinfu 2nd Village, Choyang District, Beijing, the PRC.

For the year ended 31 March 2013, the total rental charge paid by
SROBJ to Mr. Qi amounted to RMB13,560,000 or approximately
HK$16,549,000.

An agreement entered among SROBJ and SRRND, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, dated 6 July 2011 that the tenant of the
Beijing Leasing Agreement lll transferred from SROBJ to SRRND,
with the same agreement terms.

Beijing Leasing Agreement IV

On 30 June 2011, BJDT, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into a lease agreement (“Beijing Leasing
Agreement 1IV”) with Mr. Qi, the largest substantial shareholder of the
Company, for a 10-year term, from 1 July 2011 to 30 June 2021, for
leasing a showroom for office, of a portion of office having a gross
floor area of approximately 1,280 square meter at Level 3 of Tower A
and portion of Level 7 of Tower B, No.40 Xinfu 2nd Village, Choyang
District, Beijing, the PRC.

For the year ended 31 March 2013, the total rental charge paid
by BJDT to Mr. Qi amounted to RMB4,560,000 or approximately
HK$5,565,000.

An agreement entered among BJDT and SRRND, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, dated 6 July 2011 that the tenant of the
Beijing Leasing Agreement IV transferred from BJDT to SRRND, with
the same agreement terms.
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Tianjin Leasing Agreement |

On 30 June 2011, Tianjin Heng Ying Tai Fu Trading Development
Limited (“TJHY”), an indirect subsidiary of the Company, entered into
a lease agreement (“Tianjin Leasing Agreement I”) with Mr. Qi, the
largest substantial shareholder of the Company, for a 10-year term,
from 1 July 2011 to 30 June 2021, for leasing a showroom for luxury
automobiles dealership, having a gross floor area of approximately
366.13 square meter at Zeng No.2 and Zeng No.3, No.162 Zhang Zi
Zhong Road, Heping District, Tianjin, the PRC.

For the year ended 31 March 2013, the total rental charge paid
by TJHY to Mr. Qi amounted to RMB3,000,000 or approximately
HK$3,661,000.

An agreement entered among TJHY and SRRND, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, dated 6 July 2011 that the tenant of the
Tianjin Leasing Agreement | transferred from TJHY to SRRND, with
the same agreement terms.

Tianjin Leasing Agreement Il

On 30 June 2011, TJXC, an indirect subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a lease agreement (“Tianjin Leasing Agreement II”)
with Mr. Qi, the largest substantial shareholder of the Company, for
a 10-year term, from 1 July 2011 to 30 June 2021, for leasing a
showroom for distribution of fine wines, watches and jewelleries, of
a portion of showroom having a gross floor area of approximately
949.80 square meter at Commercial Units No. 2-201 and No. 2-202,
No.162 Zhang Zi Zhong Road, Heping District, Tianjin, the PRC.

For the year ended 31 March 2013, the total rental charge paid
by TUXC to Mr. Qi amounted to RMB3,840,000 or approximately
HK$4,686,000.

An agreement entered among TJXC and SRRND, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, dated 6 July 2011 that the tenant of the
Tianjin Leasing Agreement Il transferred from TJXC to SRRND, with
the same agreement terms.
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Report of the Directors

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the
year ended 31 March 2013.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2013 was
audited by BDO Limited (“BDQO”). There has been no change of
auditor in the preceding three years.

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to re-appoint BDO as auditor of the
Company.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The annual general meeting of the Company will be held at 4:30 p.m.
on 2 September 2013 at The Hong Kong Bankers Club, 43/F,
Gloucester Tower, The Landmark, Central, Hong Kong and a notice
of annual general meeting will be published and despatched in due
course.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 30
August 2013 (Friday) to 2 September 2013 (Monday) (both days
inclusive) during which period no transfer of shares will be registered.
In order to qualify for attending and voting at the forthcoming annual
general meeting, all share transfer documents, accompanied by
the relevant share certificates, must be lodged with the Company’s
branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor
Secretaries Limited at 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 29 August
2013 (Thursday).

On behalf of the Board

Tong Kai Lap
Chairman

Hong Kong, 20 June 2013
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Sparkle Roll Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance. The board of Directors of the Company
(the “Board”) agrees that corporate governance practices are
increasingly important for maintaining and promoting investor
confidence. Corporate governance requirements keep changing,
therefore the Board reviews its corporate governance practices
from time to time to ensure that all practices can be met with legal
and statutory requirements. Throughout the financial year ended 31
March 2013, the Group has complied with all applicable the code
provisions in the Corporate Governance code (the “Code”) contained
in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). The Company has been in compliance with the
Code throughout the financial year.

MODEL CODE OF CONDUCT FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted of Model Code for Securities Transaction
by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules to govern securities transactions by the Directors. After
having made specific enquiry to all Directors, all Directors confirmed
that they complied with the Model Code during the year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises three Executive, three Non-executive
and three Independent Non-executive Directors as defined by
the Stock Exchange. The biographical details are set out in the
“Biographies of Directors and Managements” section.
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The Company has three Independent Non-executive Directors,
representing one-third of the Board. At least one of the Independent
Non-executive Directors has appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise under
Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules. All the Independent Non-executive
Directors have signed the annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules to confirm their
independence.

Under the Company’s Bye-laws, every Director is subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three year.

The Board’s primary responsibilities are to determine the overall
strategies, monitor and control operating and financial performance
and set appropriate policies to manage risks in pursuit of the
Groups’ strategic objectives. Matters reserved for the Board are
those affecting the Group’s overall strategic policies, dividend policy,
significant changes in accounting policies, material contracts and
major investments. Day-to-day management of the Group’s business
is delegated to the Executive Director or officer in charge of each
department. The functions and power that are so delegated are
reviewed periodically to ensure that they remain appropriate. The
Board members have access to appropriate business documents
and information about the Group on a timely basis. All Directors
have recourse to external legal counsel and other professionals for
independent advice at the Group’s expense upon their request.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Group has a clear division of responsibilities for its top
management and separates leadership structure where the role of
Chairman is segregated from that of Chief Executive Officer. The
Chairman is responsible for providing leadership for the Board,
ensuring that good corporate governance practices and procedures
are established and that the Board acts in the best interests of the
Company. The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the day-to-
day business of the Group.
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NON-EXECUTIVE AND INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

There are currently six Non-executive Directors of whom three are
independent. Under the Bye-laws of the Company, every Director,
including the Non-executive and Independent Non-executive
Directors, shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least every
three years. This means that the specific term of appointment of a
director cannot exceed three years.

MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE

The Board meets regularly to review the financial and operating
performance of the Group and approve business plan. 7 Board
meetings were held in 2012/2013. Individual attendance of each
Director at the Board meetings, the Audit Committee meetings,
Remuneration Committee meetings and Nomination Committee
meetings during 2012/2013 and 2012 AGM is set out below:

FHATRBUFHTES

ARABEKERNEFWPTES HP=2R
BUFRTEF - REARRZ AL
FER(BREIFNTEENBYIINTES)
ARVB=FHESR—R BHit EF25%
EEHTAAZR=5F-

EERHERR

EXEe T HRTERRNARE B RE
BRI URBERBFAE - R_F——F
S IR ZHEHABATREEGRE N _F
/R BREFHFEEES
€% BRLZECER FHZEeEmNIE
FEEEEER T —FERIBEFAE
ZIBREST

Attendance/Number of Meetings

HERY, &R RY
Audit Remuneration  Nomination 2012
Board Committee Committee Committee AGM
ZBR-ZEE
Director Bz Ezg ENRZET ¥FMZEEE REZET RFREEKE
Executive Director HITEE
Mr. Tong Kai Lap BRILE 7/7 N/ATNE A 11 N/ATNE A 11
Mr. Zheng Hao Jiang BT kA 77 N/AT i A 1/1 N/AT i 1/1
Mr. Zhao Xiao Dong R EE 77 N/AT i A N/AT i A N/AT i 01
Non-executive Director FHTEF
Mr. Zhang Si Jian REBRLAE 77 N/ATER N/ATNE A N/ATER 01
Mr. Qi Jian Wei BRERE 77 N/ATER N/ATNE A N/ATER 01
Mr. Gao Yu BELE 77 N/ATER N/ATNE A N/ATER 01
Independent Non-executive Director BUINTEE
Mr. Choy Sze Chung, Jojo EREEL
(Chairman of the Audlt Committee) (BBEZEETE) 77 2/2 1/1 11 1/1
Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong (Chairman of WEIE 4
the Remuneration Committee) (FWZECLfE) 7/7 2/2 11 11 11
Mr. Lee Thomas Kang Bor FEREE
(Chairman of the Nomination (BEZRBLE)
Committee) 77 2/2 11 11 11
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an Audit Committee in compliance
with the Listing Rules for the purposes of reviewing and providing
supervision over the Group’s financial reporting process and internal
controls and discussing with the external auditor for the nature and
scope of audit. Written terms of reference of the Audit Committee
were formulated and adopted in March 2005.

The Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-executive
Directors. The Chairman of the Audit Committee is an Independent
Non-executive Director. Its members include:

Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Choy Sze Chung, Jojo — Chairman
Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong
Mr. Lee Thomas Kang Bor

The Chairman of the Audit Committee, Choy Sze Chung, Jojo, has
appropriate professional qualification in accounting and extensive
experience in accounting and auditing matters. Senior management
and external auditor shall normally attend the meetings. The Audit
Committee held 2 meetings in 2012/2013 with representatives from
BDO Limited, the external auditor of the Company for the purpose of
discharging the aforesaid duties.

Below is a summary of principal work performed by the Audit
Committee during 2012/2013.

° Review of annual financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2013 and interim financial statements of
the Group for the six months ended 30 September 2012, with
recommendations to the Board for approval.

° Review and approval of the engagement letters of BDO
Limited, the nature and scope of the audit and their reporting
obligations.
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° Review of internal controls and risk management systems of
the Group.

o Review reports from BDO Limited to Audit Committee.

o Review of connected transactions (including continuing
connected transactions) carried out during the year.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

According to the Code, the Company established the Remuneration
Committee in March 2005. The principal role of the Remuneration
Committee is to exercise the power of the Board to determine
and review the remuneration package of individual directors and
key executives, including salaries, bonuses and benefits in kind,
considering factors such as time commitment and responsibilities of
the Directors and key executive, employments conditions elsewhere
in the Group and desirability of performance based remuneration
so as to align management incentives with shareholders’ interests.
The Remuneration Committee is also considering all relevant
remuneration data and market conditions in addition to considering
the performance and responsibility of individual directors and officers
by linking their compensation with performance and measured
it against corporate goals. During the year, the Remuneration
Committee reviewed and approved the remuneration package of the
Executive Directors and senior management.

The Remuneration Committee shall consult the Chairman and/or
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company about their proposals
relating to remuneration of Executive Directors and have access
to professional advice if considered necessary. After reviewing
all relevant information, the Remuneration Committee made
recommendations to the Board for the remuneration of the Directors
and senior management.
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The Remuneration Committee comprises three Independent Non-
executive Directors and two Executive Directors. Its members

include:
Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong — Chairman
Mr. Choy Sze Chung, Jojo
Mr. Lee Thomas Kang Bor

Executive Director

Mr. Tong Kai Lap
Mr. Zheng Hao Jiang

The Remuneration Committee held 1 meeting in 2012/2013
to review and approve directors’ and senior managements’
remuneration. The directors’ fee paid to the Non-executive and
Independent Non-executive Directors are subject to annual review
and approval by the Remuneration Committee. The emoluments of
each of the Directors of the Company for 2012/2013 are set out in
note 11 to the financial statements.

Below is a summary of principal work performed by the
Remuneration Committee during 2012/2013.

° Review of the remuneration of Executive Directors and senior
management and approval of the same.

° Review of the remuneration of Non-executive Directors
(including Independent Non-executive Directors), with

recommendations to the Board for approval.

° Review the existing share options scheme with
recommendations to the Board for approval.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 6 October 2008
comprises three Independent Non-executive Directors (“INED”),
namely, Mr. Lee Thomas Kang Bor (Chairman of the Committee), Mr.
Choy Sze Chung, Jojo, and Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board on a regular basis and
make recommendations to the board regarding any proposed
changes, identifying individuals suitably qualified to become
Board member, assessing the independence of INED; and making
recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning
for Directors in particular the chairman and the chief executive
officer.

All Non-executive Directors and INED are appointed for a specific
term of two years and renewable for additional one year, and are
required to retire and eligible for re-election at the Annual General
Meeting of the Company in every three year in accordance with the
Company’s Bye-laws.

The principal work performed by the Nomination Committee during
2012/2013:

° Recommendation to the Board that Mr. Zheng Hao Jiang, Mr.
Zhang Si Jian, Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong shall retire and offer
themselves for re-election at 2013 annual general meeting.

° Review of the structure, size and composition of the Board and
the Board Committee.

° Assessment of and confirming the independence of the INED
according to the criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Each year, the auditor is appointed by resolution of the Annual
General Meeting and the Directors are authorised to fix the
remunerations for the auditing services.

The fee paid/payable to our auditor for annual audit for the year
ended 31 March 2013 amounted to approximately HK$1.19 million
(2012: HK$1.17 million).

The auditor has performed other non-auditing services during the
year with aggregate service fee of approximately HK$0.31 million
(2012: HK$0.48 million). Non-auditing services include mainly
review of interim financial statements of the Company and review
over continuing connected transactions of the Company. The Audit
Committee has considered based on the policy developed by them
in this regard and made recommendations to the Board for these
non-auditing services conducted by our auditor.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary is responsible to the Board for ensuring that
board procedures are followed and that activities of the Board are
efficient and effective by assisting the chairman to prepare agenda
for meeting and by preparing and disseminating Board papers to
the Directors and board committees in a timely and comprehensive
manner. With respect to the company secretarial function, the
company secretary maintains formal minutes for Board and other
meetings.

The company secretary is responsible for ensuring that the Board is
fully briefed on all legislative, regulatory and corporate governance
developments and that it has regard to them when making decisions.
The company secretary is also directly responsible for the Group’s
compliance with the continuing obligations of the Listing Rules and
Codes on Takeovers and Mergers and Share Repurchases, including
publication and dissemination of annual reports and interim reports
within the period laid down in the Listing Rules, timely dissemination
of announcements and information relating to the Group to the
market and ensuring that proper notifications are made of directors’
dealings in securities of the Group.
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The company secretary also advises the Directors on their
obligations for disclosure of interests in securities, connected
transactions and price-sensitive information and ensures that the
standards and disclosures required by the Listing Rules are observed
and, where required, reflected in the annual report of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS
RIGHTS - CONVENING OF GENERAL MEETING

To promote investor relations and communications, meetings
with fund managers and potential investors are held frequently.
Shareholders are encouraged to attend the annual general
meeting for which at least 21 days’ notice is given. The Chairman
and Directors are available to answer question on the Group’s
businesses at the meeting. An annual general meeting of the
Company shall be held in each year within a period of not more than
fifteen (15) months after the holding of the last preceding annual
general meeting.

Shareholders shall have the right to request the Board to convene a
general meeting of the Company and put forward agenda items for
consideration by shareholders. Each general meeting, other than an
annual general meeting, shall be called a special general meeting.
Shareholders holding an aggregate of not less than one-tenth (10%)
of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right,
by written requisition to the Board or the Secretary of the Company,
to require a special general meeting to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and
such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionists
themselves may do so in accordance with the provisions of Section
74 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda. Pursuant to rule
13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of shareholders at a general
meeting must be taken by poll. Accordingly, all the resolutions put
to vote at the Annual General Meeting will be taken by way of poll.
The chairman of the Annual General Meeting will explain the detailed
procedure for conducting a poll at the commencement of the Annual
General Meeting.

After the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting, the poll results
will be published on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company.
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The Board is committed to providing clear and full performance
information of the Group to shareholders through the publication
of interim and annual reports. In additional to dispatching circulars,
notices, financial reports to shareholders, addition information is also
available to shareholders from the Group’s website.

A resolution in respect of certain proposed changes to Bye-laws
of the Company was passed in the 2012 AGM held on 20 August
2012. An updated constitutional document of the Company was
published on 22 August 2012.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS - ENQUIRIES TO
THE BOARD

Shareholders may make enquiries with the Board at the general
meetings of the Company or at any time send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board in writing through the company secretary
whose contact details are as follows:

Sparkle Roll Group Limited

Rooms 2028-36, 20th Floor, Sun Hung Kai Centre,
30 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
Telephone: (852) 2299 9902

Fax: (852) 2802 8577

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s system of
internal control and for the assessment and management of risk. In
meeting its responsibility, the Board seeks to increase risk awareness
across the Group’s business operations and put in place policies
and procedures. The Company has not appointed an internal auditor.
The internal controls are monitored and reviewed regularly by
appropriate senior management so as to ensure that the categories
of risks are managed effectively.

The executive management team of each core business division
is accountable for the conduct and performance of each business
in the division within the agreed strategies. Business plans and
budgets are prepared annually by the management of individual
businesses and subject to review and approval by the Board. The
Board is overall responsible for monitoring the operations of the
business within the Group. Monitoring activities include the review
and approval of business strategies, budgets, and plans, and the
setting of key business performance targets. When setting budget
and forecast, management identifies, evaluates and reports on the
likelihood and potential financial impact of significant business risks.
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The Group maintains a centralised cash management system for its
subsidiary operations and the Group’s finance department oversees
the Group’s cash position.

During the year, the Board have reviewed internal control of the
Company and certain of its subsidiaries for the financial year ended
31 March 2013. The review covered all material controls including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management
functions of the Group. The Board considers that the Group’s
internal control system effective and the resources, qualifications
and experience of the accounting and financial reporting functions,
adquate for the period in review.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation
of the financial statements of the Company and that the financial
statements are prepared in accordance with statutory requirements
and applicable accounting standards. It is also the responsibility
of the Directors to ensure the timely publication of the financial
statements of the Company. During the year, the management has
provided sufficient explanation and information to the Board to
enable it to make an informed assessment of the financial and other
information put before it for approval including the updates on the
Company’s performance, position and prospects.

A discussion and analysis of the Group’s performance, an
explanation of the basis on which the issuer generates or preserves
value over the longer term and the strategy for delivering the
Company’s objectives have been prepared and included in the
Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis
sections of this Annual Report.

The statement of the auditor of the Company, BDO Limited, on their
reporting responsibilities in respect of the consolidated financial
statements of the Group is set out on pages 52 and 583.

The Directors confirm that they are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board recognises its responsibility to prepare consolidated
financial statements which give a true and fair view and are in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Interpretations (hereafter
collectively referred to as “HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Appropriate accounting
policies are selected and applied consistently. Judgements and
estimates made are prudent and reasonable. The Group has
changed some of its accounting policies following the adoption of
the new or amended HKFRSs which are relevant to and effective for
the Group’s financial statements for the year. The accounting policies
adopted by the Group are set out in the “Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies” of the note 3 to the financial statements. The
Directors use their best endeavours to ensure a balanced, clear
and understandable assessment of the Group’s performance,
position and prospects in financial reporting. The Directors, having
made appropriate enquiries, consider that the Group has adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable
future and that, for this reason, it is appropriate to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

The responsibilities of the auditor with respect to financial reporting
are set out on pages 52 to 53 in the Independent Auditor’s Report.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Sparkle Roll Group Limited

Tong Kai Lap
Chairman & Executive Director
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Biographies of Directors and Managements

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

TONG KAI LAP (Chairman and Chief Strategic Officer)

Aged 53, graduated from The Chinese University of Hong Kong
in 1982 with a Bachelor’'s Degree in Business Administration.
Since graduation, he worked in various international banks in the
commercial, corporate and investment banking areas. Mr. Tong is the
past president of the Rotary Club of Tsim Sha Tsui, a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors and a founding member of
Hong Kong Professionals and Senior Executives Association. Mr.
Tong joined the Group in August 2002.

ZHENG HAO JIANG (Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Aged 45, graduated in the Law Department (Economic Law
Speciality) of Peking University in 1990 with a Bachelor degree in
Law. Mr. Zheng has nearly 15 years experience in Beijing in the areas
of equity portfolio management, capital market analysis management
and financial advisory. Mr. Zheng is a Standing Director of China
Automobile Dealers Association and a Director of China High-Tech
Industrialization Association. He is a founding member of Hong
Kong Professionals and Senior Executives Association and a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Mr. Zheng joined
the Group in October 2006.

ZHAO XIAO DONG (Deputy Chairman and Chief Operating Officer)

Aged 44, graduated in the Information Technology Department of
Beijing University of Chemical Technology in 1990 with a Bachelor
degree in Engineering. He has over 14 years experience in the areas
of wholesale and retail management of luxury goods in Beijing. Mr.
Zhao joined the Group in September 2008.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

GAO YU

Aged 39, is currently a Managing Director of the Private Equity
Division of Morgan Stanley Asia Limited, primarily focusing on
private equity investment activities in China. He is also a non-
executive director of both Belle International Holdings Ltd and China
Dongxiang (Group) Co., Ltd., shares of both companies are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
and a director of Tongkun Group Co., Ltd which is listed in Shanghai
Stock Exchange. Prior to joining Morgan Stanley Asia Limited, he
worked in Citigroup’s Investment Banking Division in Asia for about
five years. Mr. Gao also worked in Donaldson, Lufkin & Jenrette’s
Debt Capital Markets Group in New York. Mr. Gao graduated
from Stanford University with a Master’s degree in engineering-
economic systems and operations research as well as from Tsinghua
University in Beijing with dual Bachelor’s degrees in engineering and
economics.

Ql JIAN WEI

Aged 58, has over 15-year experience in the jewelry business in
China including trading management, development of distribution
channels and production operations. He graduated from machineries
profession of Beijing Open University in 1982. He is the elder
brother of Mr. Qi Jian Hong, the sole beneficial owner of Sparkle Roll
Holdings Limited.

ZHANG Sl JIAN

Aged 47, is a Managing Director of Sequoia Capital China focusing
on growth capital investments. Prior to joining Sequoia Capital
China in 2007, he worked with Baring Private Equity Asia in Hong
Kong and Shanghai, and Doughty Hanson in London. Prior to
joining private equity, he worked for Deutsche Bank in its Investment
Banking division where he advised international companies in their
IPO, block trade, debt and convertible bond offerings. He has a
Bachelor’s Degree of Science from Shanghai Jiao Tong University
and a Master Degree of Science from University of Minnesota and a
Master Degree of Business Administration from The Wharton School
of The University of Pennsylvania.
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Biographies of Directors and Managements

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

CHOY SZE CHUNG, JOJO

Aged 54, is the Vice Chairman of National Resources Securities
Limited. Mr. Choy has extensive experience in the securities
industry and business management. Mr. Choy obtained Master of
Business Administration Degree from University of Wales, Newport
and Master of Business Law Degree from Monash University. Mr.
Choy is an independent non-executive director of Chengdu Putian
Telecommunications Cable Company Limited, Wison Engineering
Services Co. Ltd. and Zhaojin Mining Industry Company Limited,
shares of these companies are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Choy is also the Vice Chairman of the Institute of
Securities Dealers Limited, fellow member of Hong Kong Institute
of Directors, fellow member of Institute of Financial Accountants,
fellow member of the Institute of Compliance Officers, member of
Society of Registered Financial Planner Limited, member of the
HKSAR Election Committee (financial services subsector), member
of Shantou Chinese People’s Political Consultative Committee,
honorary president of Shantou Overseas Friendship committee
member of Rotary Club Kowloon West and member of Cash Market
Consultative Panel of the HKEx Board.

LAM KWOK CHEONG

Aged 59, holds Bachelor of Laws degree from the University of
Hong Kong and has been a practising solicitor in Hong Kong for
over 31 years’ experience. Mr. Lam is an independent non-executive
director of Wing Lee Holdings Limited and Same Time Holdings
Limited, shares of these companies are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Lam is a Justice of the Peace with
Bronze Bauhinia Star (BBS) and a solicitor of the High Court of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. Mr. Lam is currently a
China-appointed Attesting Officer, fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Directors, Ex-Officio Member of Heung Yee Kuk New
Territories, member of Panel of Adjudicators of Obscene Articles
Tribunal, member of Buildings Ordinance Appeal Tribunal Panel and
a Civil Celebrant of Marriages.
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Biographies of Directors and Managements

LEE THOMAS KANG BOR

Aged 59, is a non-executive director of Man Sang International
Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
and an independent non-executive director and chairman of the
audit committee of CIG Yangtze Ports PLC whose shares are listed
on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Lee
is a member of the Society of Trust and Estate Practitioners, the
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and the Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators, a fellow member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Taxation Institute of
Hong Kong. Mr. Lee graduated from the University of London with
a bachelor’'s and master’s degrees in laws and was called to the
Bar of the Lincoln’s Inn of United Kingdom. He served as President
of the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong from 1999 to 2002, and is
currently President of the Asia-Oceania Tax Consultants’ Association
and Vice President of Hong Kong Professionals and Senior
Executives Association.

DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS
UPDATE

The Directors’ biographical details update, which is required to be
disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, since 1
October 2012 and up to 31 March 2013 has been reflected in the
above section.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Ql JIAN HONG

Aged 45, is the President of the automobile dealership division and
watch distributorship division of the Group. Mr. Qi has over 15 years
experience in the areas of wholesale and retail management of
luxury goods in China. Mr. Qi joined the Group in June 2008. He is
directors of Beijing Shou Ying Tong Shang Trading and Commercial
Limited (formerly known as Beijing Bin Li Group Limited). Mr. Qi is
a Standing Director of China Automobile Dealers Association. He
is also the sole beneficial owner of Sparkle Roll Holdings Limited, a
substantial shareholder of the Company.
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MOK HENRY WING KAI

Aged 52, Mr.
company secretary of the Company and he joined the

Mok is the chief financial officer and

Group in August 2010. Before joining the Company, Mr. Mok had
been a senior management of some listed companies in Hong Kong.
Mr. Mok holds a degree of Master of Business Administration jointly
granted by The University of Manchester and The University of
Wales (Bangor) and a degree of Master of Science (Manufacturing
Systems Engineering) granted by The University of Warwick of
United Kingdom. Mr. Mok is a fellow member of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators, The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. He is also a member of
Hong Kong Securities Institute and Hong Kong Institute of Directors.

LEUNG KWOK NING

Aged 51,
dealership division of the Group. Mr. Leung has over 27 years of

is the Deputy General Manager of the automobile

experience in managing the automobile aftersales service businesses
and sales management particularly for Bentley since 2003. Mr.
Leung joined the Group in June 2008 and he is responsible for
managing the sales of Bentley and aftersales service.

HO SIU WAH

Aged 43,
dealership division of the Group. Mr. Ho has over 10 years of

is the Deputy General Manager of the automobile

experience in management sales of automobiles. Mr. Ho joined the
Group in June 2008 and he is responsible for managing the sales of
Lamborghini and Rolls-Royce.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

IBDO

EEE - +852 2218 8288
{H : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sparkle
Roll Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group”) set out on pages 54 to 175, which comprise the
consolidated and company statements of financial position as at
31 March 2013, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of cash flows and the
consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED BHEBHBR AR |
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at 31 March 2013 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Tsui Ka Che, Norman

Practising Certificate Number PO5057

Hong Kong, 20 June 2013
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

BE-_T—=ZF=ZA=Z+—HBItHFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

2013 2012
—E—=fF —E——-%F
Notes HK$’000 HK$ 000
B 5 FHET FE T
Revenue Wz 6 3,015,555 4,427,423
Cost of sales 55 AR (2,730,681) (3,975,510)
Gross profit EF 284,874 451,913
Other income H A 7 131,958 80,942
Selling and distribution costs HERREKAR (239,868) (224,095)
Administrative expenses THER (72,957) (74,143)
Other operating expenses HipfE & & A (3,369) -
Operating profit mERF 8 100,638 234,617
Finance costs B & PR A 9 (30,826) (9,990)
Profit before income tax RRAT BB AR F 69,812 224,627
Income tax expense Frig®isz i 10 (3,845) (10,939)
Profit for the year N F i A 65,967 213,688
Other comprehensive income, BRE#HEMEEBA
net of tax
Release of exchange reserve upon HEW B QR
disposal of a subsidiary i bR HNDE (R 1 34 -
Exchange gains on translation of RMEBINEBI B RE 2
financial statements of foreign [ 5 Wz
operations 3,069 15,181
Total comprehensive income AFEEZHEKRAEELE
for the year 69,070 228,869
Profit/(loss) for the year THATEEREE
attributable to: wmFL(ER)
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIE SN 13 66,304 214,188
Non-controlling interests ES el (337) (500)
65,967 213,688
Total comprehensive income RIPNE=: 3
attributable to: EHWRAZLLE:
Owners of the Company ZiN/NESTE SN 69,419 229,390
Non-controlling interests IR = (349) (521)
69,070 228,869
SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED BREBAR QT |  ANNUAL REPORT 2013 3k
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

Notes 2013 2012
g=s —E—=F B
Earnings per share attributable to FAXQATHEE A
the owners of the Company EhHERAER
during the year 15
Basic earnings per share BREXEF HK2.2 cents &1l HK7.2 cents 78l
Diluted earnings per share BRESRER HK2.2 cents &1l HK7.2 cents 71l
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

MR-ZZE—=F=ZH=+—H Asat 31 March 2013

2013 2012
—E—=£ —E——F
Notes HK$’000 HK$ 000
B 5 FExT FET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERER
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment LR YR 16 174,272 92,969
Goodwill EES 18 580,679 580,679
Other intangible assets Hihfmmp & e 19 843 2,380
Rental deposits paid to related parties B fTEEATHEILS 20(a) 13,672 14,232
Prepayment for acquisition of BEWE KELRELZ
property, plant and equipment TE B FRIA 24 - 53,206
Financial assets at fair value EBEARBEREBERERIEZ
through profit or loss TREE 21 524 79,837
769,990 823,303
Current assets RBEE
Inventories FE 22 861,356 508,649
Trade receivables W E 5HKIE 23 57,259 29,529
Deposits, prepayments and e BHEFER
other receivables H b & Ug 5 E 24 300,761 374,436
Amount due from a related party JEM — R BE AT FIE 20(b) 14,183 14,232
Derivative financial instruments PTEemIA 28 - 3,208
Pledged bank deposits EHEMBITER 25 95,854 39,126
Cash at banks and in hand RITEFHEIRE 25 273,893 130,382
1,603,306 1,099,562
Current liabilities RBAE
Trade payables FERE 558 26 14,551 20,435
Receipts in advance, accrued TEWHIE BT ERA R
charges and other payables H {th &~ 3RB 27 119,015 166,408
Amount due to a related party JEN— R EANTFIE 20(c) - 2,276
Derivative financial instruments MTHESBT A 28 161 -
Provision for taxation THIE 3,918 7,097
Borrowings =P 29 547,849 208,433
685,494 404,649
Net current assets REBEEFE 917,812 694,913
Total assets less current liabilities BEERABHAEG 1,687,802 1,518,216
SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED BREBAR QT |  ANNUAL REPORT 2013 3k
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

R-ZZE—=F=H=+—H Asat 31 March 2013

2013 2012
—EB—=F —E——F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FExT FET
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Other payables H b &~ 508 27 538 3,089
Borrowings B 29 40,000 56,000
Deferred tax liabilities EETIE B E 30 1,730 2,153
42,268 61,242
Net assets BEEFE 1,645,534 1,456,974
EQUITY =
Share capital &N 31 5,959 5,959
Reserves 1 32.1 1,599,542 1,437,329
Proposed dividend R I 2 14 - 8,939
Equity attributable to ANREEAEGESR
the owners of the Company 1,605,501 1,452,227
Non-controlling interests FERER 40,033 4,747
Total equity AT 1,645,534 1,456,974
Tong Kai Lap Zheng Hao Jiang
BRI BT
Director Director
EBE E2
SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED B EE AR A | ANNUAL REPORT 2013 ik
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Statement of Financial Position

MR-ZZE—=F=ZH=+—H Asat 31 March 2013

2013 2012
—E—=fF —E—=
Notes HK$’000 HK$’ 000
B 5 FHET FAT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries EPENGIE: Fa 17 = -
Current assets RBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE U BT BB A B FkIB 17 904,951 913,334
Deposits and prepayments e MIBHFRIA 24 660 -
Pledged bank deposits 2EFRITER 25 9,387 6,369
Cash at banks RITIH S 25 377 6,965
915,375 926,668
Current liabilities REaE
Accrued charges and other payables [E&T & A & H & {4 508 27 1,419 910
Amounts due to subsidiaries JE A B /B A B FRIE 17 15,558 18,200
Borrowings =P 29 40,000 14,000
56,977 33,110
Net current assets REBEEFE 858,398 893,558
Total assets less current liabilities BEERABHAEG 858,398 893,558
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Borrowings e 29 40,000 56,000
Net assets EEFE 818,398 837,558
EQUITY e
Share capital & 2 31 5,959 5,959
Reserves @ 32.2 812,439 822,660
Proposed dividend ORI B 14 - 8,939
Total equity RSB 818,398 837,558
Tong Kai Lap Zheng Hao Jiang
B BT
Director Director
EZE EFE
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BE-_T—=ZF=ZA=Z+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

2013 2012
—E—=4F —ET——F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
g=s FE T FET
Cash flows from operating REEBCHRERE
activities
Profit before income tax B B 45 550 A% 7 69,812 224,627
Adjustments for: KRBT SIE:
Bank interest income RATH B WA 7 (1,287) (1,587)
Gain on disposals of property, HEWE WBEREEZ
plant and equipment I & 7,8 (1,113) (1,279)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—ERBAR ZWE 7 (912) -
Amortisation of other intangible Hithmp EE#E
assets 8 1,537 1,537
Depreciation of property, W BERERBITE
plant and equipment 8 36,776 24,818
Equity-settled share option NS EE 2 BIRERAS
expenses 8 - 1,443
Written off of property, MiE Y - HEs Rk
plant and equipment 8 3,590 -
Fair value losses/(gains) on MEeMIAZRAAE
derivative financial instruments EiE () 7,8 3,369 (3,208)
Interest expenses F B 9 30,826 9,990
Operating profit before working BIEECE A 2L E R
capital changes 142,598 256,341
Decrease/(increase) in financial EARBEREBERERIIERES
assets at fair value through SREERD (M)
profit or loss 79,313 (79,837)
Increase in inventories FEIE N (370,162) (146,187)
(Increase)/decrease in trade FEUE S8 (#Em)
receivables DoRes (27,730) 63,200
Decrease/(increase) in deposits, B FBEFE &AM E U
prepayments and other receivables RIER A (L) 127,689 (24,637)
Decrease/(increase) in amount due JEUR — A B A 38
from a related party B () 609 (28,464)
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables [ENZ 578 (),
i (5,884) 4,848
Decrease in receipts in advance, TEUGRIE - ERTE A R
accrued charges and other b S SRR R
payables (23,463) (156,565)
Decrease in amount due to a related  JEfF— &R E A LFHRBER LD
party (2,276) (46,438)
Cash used in operations REXBFARS (79,306) (157,739)
Hong Kong profits tax paid BRBEEREH (697) (2,335)
Other jurisdictions tax paid B EMRDEE R IE (6,750) (8,104)
Net cash used in operating activities A& & 2B FTAR ¢ F5E (86,753) (168,178)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

2013 2012
—E—=F —E-—-F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’ 000
g=s FTET FET
Cash flows from investing RETBHzEHERE
activities )
(Increase)/decrease in pledged bank B MR ITFEZ (18 0)
deposits > (56,728) 4,333
Purchases of property, plant and EEWE M NERE
equipment 37 (76,512) (38,756)
Prepayment for acquisition of BEWE HSEIEREZ
property, plant and equipment ?E%Z/TAIE - (53,206)
Disposal of a subsidiary (net of cash i & — [ i1 & 12 7]
and cash equivalent disposed of) (R ERS R
iﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁlﬁ g) 33(a) (10,338) -
Proceeds from partial disposal of HHE—HNB AR
a subsidiary Fﬁ?% /*K 33(b) 54,590 -
Proceeds from disposals of property, 1% < 58 1 25 &
plant and equipment Fris *k 7,265 5,298
Interest received B U F B 1,287 1,587
Net cash used in investing activities & & /EB)FT AR & 55 (80,436) (80,744)
Cash flows from financing METBH2RERE
activities
Capital contributions by — MM B A B IR =
non-controlling interests of &
a subsidiary 33(c) 30,247 -
Proceeds from exercise of 1T B AR W P 15 3R IR
share options - 2,873
New borrowings raised g (EE 2,542,547 1,166,462
Repayments of borrowings EEEE (2,213,176) (962,783)
Dividends paid to the owners of AR TEE AER RS
the Company (14,899) (44,662)
Bank interest paid BARTERITH B (30,063) (9,990)
Net cash generated from financing MEEBMEESFHE
activities 314,656 151,900
Net increase/(decrease) in cash HeERBSSEEEEM
and cash equivalents (D) F8E 147,467 (97,022)
Cash and cash equivalents FHzEERREEEER
at beginning of the year 124,427 215,300
Effect of foreign exchange rate EERGB) w2 FHE
changes, net 1,999 6,149
Cash and cash equivalents FRzZESRESEEER
at end of the year 273,893 124,427
Analysis of balances of cashand BE&RBEESZEHER
cash equivalents RO
Cash at banks and in hand IRITRFHEIAS 273,893 130,382
Bank overdrafts RITHEX 29 - (5,955)
273,893 124,427

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED BHEBHBR AR |
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE_ZT—=F=-A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

Non-
controlling
Attributable to the owners of the Company interests  Total equity
ARTRE AL FERER REA%
Share
Share Share Capital option Special  Contributed  Exchange Statutory Retained Proposed
capital premium’ reserve’ reserve” reserve” surplus”™ reserve’ reserve’ profits* dividend Total
Rk BOEE  EAER BRERE  BRER ABH JEBR  EERRE  REEW HRRS &t
HK§'000 HKS$ 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HKS$ 000 HKS'000 HKS'000
ThL T T T T TEL TR TERL TEn Thn T T T
At 1 April 2011 RZF--FRA-A 5,962 796,038 3,608 1,764 (36,810) 55,866 4446 1,944 400,712 29,763 1,263,183 5,268 1,268,451
Equity-settled share option amangement A% E 2 BRER - - - 1,443 - - - - - - 1443 - 1,443
Issue of shares upon exercise of i ERESE ARG
share options 7 3297 - (431) - - - - - - 2,878 - 2878
Final dividends paid for the year ended ~ HZE-F——F
31 March 2011 (Note 14(o) ZRET-AIEEE
BAERE
(WiE140) - - - - - - - - - (29,763) (29,763) - (29,763)
Interim dividends paid for the peiod ~~ HEZT-—F
ended 30 September 2011 AAZTRLER
Note 14(a)) BfPEKS
(Hf3E14(a)) - - - - - (14,899) - - - - (14,899) - (14,899)
Transactions with owners HEEAETIRS 7 3,297 - 1,012 - (14,899 - - - (29,763 (40,346) - (40,346)
Profit for the year TEFRT - - - - - - - - 214,188 - 214,188 (500) 213,688
Other comprehensive income A 2ERA
Exchange gains on translation of ~ BEBNFHER WA
foreign operations - - - - - - 15,202 - - - 15,202 1) 15,181
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - - 15,202 - 214188 - 229,390 (521) 228,869
Transfer to statutory reserve - - - - - - - 10,503 (10,503) - - - -
Proposed final dividend for the year £
ended 31 March 2012 (Note 14(a) ~ =A=T-BIFEZ
RERERS
(Mf3E14(a)) - - - - - (8,939) - - - 8939 - - -
At 31 March 2012 RZF-Z%
ZR=1-8 5,959 799,335 3,508 2,776 (36,810) 32,028 19,648 12,447 604,397 8939 1452227 4747 1,456,974
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

Non-
controlling Total
Attributable to the owners of the Company interests equity
ADAREARE FERRE  RHEE
Share
Share Share Capital option Special  Contributed  Exchange Other ~ Statutory  Retained  Proposed
capital premium’ reserve’ reserve’ reserve’ surplus™ reserve’ reserve’ reserve’ profits’  dividend Total
BE  REEE  EAEE BREER  REER BARR  NERR  ARER  EEER  RERY  BRBR At
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
T Fin TER T Tin TER T T Tin T T Tin TER T
At Apri 2012 RZE-ZEmA-A 5,959 799,335 3,508 2,116 (36,810) 32,028 19,648 - 12,447 604,397 8939 145227 4747 1456974
Arising from capital injection of
non-controling interests (Note 33(c)) - - - - - - - - - - - - 30247 30247
Final dividends paid for the year ended 31
March 2012 (Note 14(5) - - - - - - - - - - 699 699 - 6.9%9)
Interim dividends paid for the period ended
30 September 2012
(Note 14(a) - - - - - (5,960) - - - - - (5,960 - 5,960)
Derecogniion of non-contoling interests & —BHE AR TAERI LR
upon disposal of a subsiciary (Note 33/a) 1 (3£33(a)) - - - - - - - - - - - - (4474 (4474
Arising from partial cisposal of RBYptE-RRBLARES
a subsidiary (Note 33(b)) (Wia33)) - - - - - - - 87,547 - - - 87,547 21,069 108,616
Arising from deemed disposal of RifELE-RRBAAREL
a subsidiary (Note 33(c) (Hi3E33(c) - - - - - - - 11,207 - - - 11,207 (11,207) -
Transactions with owners BEEAETIRS - - - - - 5,960) - 98,754 - - 8939) 83,85 35,63 119,490
Prot for the year AEREA - - - - - - - - - 66,304 - 66,304 (337) 65,967
Other comprehensive income Ef2ENA
Release of exchange reserve upon HE-BRBARRER
disposal of a subsidiary (Note 33(a) SERE (M) - - - - - - % - - - - % - %
Exchange gains on translation of REBN B ERNG
foreign operations - - - - - - 3,081 - - - - 3,081 (12) 3,069
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ AEE2ENNEE - - - - - - 315 - - 66,304 - 69419 349) 69,070
Transfer o statutory reserve BRTETEA - - - - - - - - 23 23 - - - -
At 31 March 2013 R-§-ZEZf=1-R 5,959 799,335 3,508 2,776 (36,810) 26,068 2,763 98,754 12,410 670,678 - 1,605,501 40,033 1,645,534
— — — — — — — — — — — — — —
. These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of * HERERSEEEUBRABREA LR
HK$1,599,542,000 (2012: HK$1,437,329,000) in the consolidated A FEH#91,599,542,0008 7T (& — —4F:

statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BE-_T—=ZF=ZA=Z+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

GENERAL INFORMATION

Sparkle Roll Group Limited (the “Company”) is a limited
liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The address of
its registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church House,
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda and its principal place of business
is Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) are the distributorships of luxury goods. The Group’s
operations are based in Hong Kong, the People’s Republic
of China, excluding Hong Kong and Macau (the “PRC”) and
Malaysia.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2013
were approved for issue by the board of directors on 20 June
2013.

ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time all of
the new standards, amendments and interpretations (the “new
or amended HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”), which are relevant
to and effective for the Group’s financial statements for the
year.

The adoption of the new or amended HKFRSs had no material
impact on how the results and financial position for the current
and prior periods have been prepared and presented or on the
Group’s accounting policies.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED 2. RAFIIBRIETT BB

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the
following new or amended HKFRSs, potentially relevant to the
Group, have been published but are not yet effective, and have

ERA([ERMBRE

ZA]) (&)

RABMBREREREE B TIAlgE R
REBER 2 ¥ RSB R BB W
A B R RER TERERE

not been adopted early by the Group. B R R -
HKFRSs Annual Improvements 2009-2011 Cycle? A BWE ZEENFE_T——
(Amendments) /] (1B83T) FIEE 2 F 8 U
Amendments to Presentation of ltems of AL 23 EMEE
HKAS 1 (Revised)  Other Comprehensive Income’ F1R218F] WAIEE!
(#&1&3T)
Amendments to Presentation — Offsetting Financial Assets AR 2y -YHiHemEER
HKAS 32 and Financial Liabilities® H32%% 2 &7 TRARE
Amendments to Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets EEMBRELY RE-HEeMEEN
HKFRS 7 and Financial Liabilities? TR ER] TRARE
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments? BEAMBWE SRIA
EHIFR
HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements? A BWE REB®mE
A RIE105%
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements? A BWE BT HE
AERIFE115
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities? A BWE BENHMERS 2
ERIFE125% R’
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement? BEAMBWE DR EF 22
A RIFE135
HKAS 19 (2011) Employee Benefits? g EERAN?
A RIFE195
—T——F)
HKAS 27 (2011) Separate Financial Statements? BEAGE 18 37 B 7% i 5%
ERIFE275
—T——F)
HKAS 28 (2011) Investments in Associates and BEAGE REERF R
Joint Ventures? ZE B 285K BENAIZIRE?
(Z2——%F)
1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012 ! RZZE-——FtA—Bs®zEzRBz
FEHBRAER
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 2 RZE—=F—A—Hxkz®&RHBHZ
FRBRER
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014 8 RZZE—MFEF—A—Hx2E&RAKRZ
FEHBEER
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015 ¢ RZZE-—hAF-—A—Bs®zizRBz

The Group has already commenced an assessment of related
impact of adopting the above new or amended HKFRSs to
the Group. The Group is not yet in a position to state whether
substantial changes to the Group’s accounting policies and
presentation of the financial statements will be resulted.
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Bk E (8)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FE€HHEHME
POLICIES

3.1

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs which collective term includes
all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”)
and Interpretations issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. The financial statements also include the
applicable disclosure requirements of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”).

The significant accounting policies that have been used
in the preparation of these financial statements are
summarised below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented unless otherwise
stated. The adoption of new or amended HKFRSs and
the impacts on the Group’s financial statements, if any,
are disclosed in note 2.

The financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss and derivative financial
instruments which are stated at fair values. The
measurement bases are fully described in the accounting
policies below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and
assumptions are used in preparation of the financial
statements. Although these estimates are based on
management’s best knowledge and judgement of current
events and actions, actual results may ultimately differ
from those estimates. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the financial statements,
are disclosed in note 4.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

3.2 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(see note 3.3 below) made up to 31 March each year.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are excluded
from consolidation from the date that control ceases.

The Group uses the acquisition method of accounting to
account for business combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair
values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred
and the equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair value of any
asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred. ldentifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination
are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition
date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group
recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable net
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If this is less than
the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired
in the case of a bargain purchases, the difference is
recognised directly in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEME v
POLICIES (continued)
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Bk E (8)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—=F=ZA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013
3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FE=:HHBEHE &)
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Basis of consolidation (Continued) 3.2 ZRERBZEE(E)

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains
and losses on transactions between group companies
are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Where unrealised losses on intra-group
asset sales are reversed on consolidation, the underlying
asset is also tested for impairment from the Group’s
perspective. Amounts reported in the financial statements
of subsidiaries have been adjusted where necessary to
ensure consistency with the accounting policies adopted
by the Group.

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interest as transactions with equity owners of the Group.
For purchases from non-controlling interest, the difference
between any consideration paid and the relevant share
acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the
subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on
disposals to non-controlling interest are also recorded in
equity.

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained
interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair value, with
the change in carrying amount recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the
purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associate, joint venture or financial asset.
In addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

3.3 Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities (including special purpose
entities) over which the Group has the power to control
the financial and operating policies so as to obtain
benefits from their activities. The existence and effect of
potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible are considered when assessing whether the
Group controls another entity.

In the consolidated financial statements, acquisition of
subsidiaries (other than those under common control)
is accounted for by applying the acquisition method.
This involves the estimation of fair value of all identifiable
assets and liabilities, including contingent liabilities of the
subsidiary, at the acquisition date, regardless of whether
or not they were recorded in the financial statements of
the subsidiary prior to acquisition. On initial recognition,
the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary are included
in the consolidated statement of financial position at
their fair values, which are also used as the bases for
subsequent measurement in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policies.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
subsidiaries are carried at cost less any impairment
losses unless the subsidiary is held for sale or included
in a disposal group. The results of the subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable at the reporting date. All
dividends whether received out of the investee’s pre or
post-acquisition profits are recognised in the Company’s
profit or loss.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEME v
POLICIES (continued)
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Bk E (8)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEME v
POLICIES (continued)

3.4 sE‘E

3.4 Foreign currency translation

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
Dollars (“HK$”), which is also the functional currency of
the Company.

In the individual financial statements of the consolidated
entities, foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency of the individual entity
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the reporting date, monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at that date.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the reporting
date retranslation of monetary assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined and are reported as part of the fair value
gain or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual
financial statements of foreign operations, originally
presented in a currency different from the Group’s
presentation currency, have been converted into HK$.
Assets and liabilities have been translated into HK$ at the
closing rates at the reporting date. Income and expenses
have been converted into HK$ at the exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates, or at the average rates
over the reporting period provided that the exchange
rates do not fluctuate significantly. Any differences arising
from this procedure have been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in the exchange reserve in equity. Goodwill and fair
value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation on or after 1 April 2005 have been treated
as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and
translated into HK$ at the closing rates. Goodwill arising
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on the acquisitions of foreign operations before 1 April HHE -
2005 is translated at the foreign exchange rate that
applied at the date of acquisition of the foreign operation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEME v
POLICIES (continued)

3.4

3.5

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED BEEEERAT |

Foreign currency translation (Continueq)

When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are recognised in profit or loss as part of the
gain or loss on sale.

Property, plant and equipment

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided
to write off the cost less their estimated residual values
over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method, as follows:

Furniture and equipment 3 to 10 years
Fixtures 5 to 10 years or over
the term of lease, if shorter
Motor vehicles 4 to 5 years
The assets’ estimated residual values, depreciation
methods and estimated useful lives are reviewed, and

adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in
profit or loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
All other costs, such as repairs and maintenance are
charged to profit or loss during the financial period in
which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEME v
POLICIES (continued)

3.6 Goodwill

Goodwill is initially recognised at cost being the excess
of the aggregate of consideration transferred and the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests over the
fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities acquired.

Where the fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities exceed the aggregate of
consideration transferred and the amount recognised
for non-controlling interests, the excess is recognised in
profit or loss on the acquisition date, after re-assessment.

Goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill arising from an acquisition is allocated to each
of the relevant cash-generating units (“CGUs”) that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the acquisition.
A CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually, and whenever there is an indication
that the unit may be impaired.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEME v
POLICIES (continued)

3.6 Goodwill (Continued)

3.7

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED BEEEERAT |

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year,
the CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment before the end of that financial year.
When the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than
the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is
allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit first, and then to the other assets of
the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount to
each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill
is recognised in profit or loss and is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable
amount of goodwill capitalised is included in the
determination of the amount of gain or loss on disposal.

Other intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Acquired intangible assets are recognised initially at cost.
After initial recognition, intangible assets with finite useful
lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation
for intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided
on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
Amortisation commences when the intangible assets are
available for use. The following useful lives are applied:
Trademarks 5to 10 years
Other intangible assets are tested for impairment as
described in note 3.19.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEME v
POLICIES (continued)

3.8 Financial assets 38 EWMEE

The Group’s accounting policies for financial assets other
than investments in subsidiaries are set out below.

Financial assets are classified into financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss and loans and receivables.

Management determines the classification of its financial
assets at initial recognition depending on the purpose
for which the financial assets were acquired and where
allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at
every reporting date.

All financial assets are recognised when, and only when,
the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instruments. Regular way purchases and sales
of financial assets are recognised on trade date. When
financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured
at fair value, plus, in the case of investments not at
fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable
transaction costs.

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the rights
to receive cash flows from the investments expire or are
transferred and substantially all of the risks and rewards
of ownership have been transferred.

At each reporting date, financial assets are reviewed to
assess whether there is objective evidence of impairment.
If any such evidence exists, impairment loss is determined
and recognised based on the classification of the financial
assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

3.8 Financial assets (Continued)

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or

loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include financial assets held for trading and financial
assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss.

Financial assets are classified as held for trading if
they are acquired for the purpose of selling in the
near term, or it is part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that are managed together
and for which there is evidence of a recent pattern
of short-term profit-taking. Derivatives, including
separated embedded derivatives are also classified
as held for trading unless they are designated as
effective hedging instruments or financial guarantee
contracts.

Where a contract contains one or more embedded
derivatives, the entire hybrid contract may be
designated as a financial asset at fair value
through profit or loss, except where the embedded
derivative does not significantly modify the cash
flows or it is clear that separation of the embedded
derivative is prohibited.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEME v
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEME v

POLICIES (continued)
3.8 Financial assets (Continued) 3.8 £WMEE(£)
(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or (a) ZAREREDZINKRZE
loss (Continued) BEE (&)
Financial assets may be designated at initial fiti 5 7 & LA T 2R - BRI

recognition as at fair value through profit or loss if
the following criteria are met:

- the designation eliminates or significantly
reduces the inconsistent treatment that would
otherwise arise from measuring the assets
or recognising gains or losses on them on a
different basis; or

- the assets are part of a group of financial
assets which are managed and their
performance is evaluated on a fair value
basis, in accordance with a documented risk
management strategy and information about
the group of financial assets is provided
internally on that basis to the key management
personnel; or

- the financial asset contains an embedded

derivative that would need to be separately
recorded.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEME v
POLICIES (continued)

3.8 Financial assets (Continued)

(a)

(b)

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED BEEEERAT |

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (Continueqd)

Subsequent to initial recognition, the financial assets
included in this category are measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Fair value is determined by reference to active
market transactions or using a valuation technique
where no active market exists. Fair value gain
or loss does not include any dividend or interest
earned on these financial assets. Interest income is
recognised in accordance with the Group’s policies
in note 3.17 to these financial statements.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. Loans and
receivables are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment losses. Amortised cost is calculated
taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate and transaction
cost.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEME v

POLICIES (continued)
3.8 Financial assets (Continued) 3.8 £WMEE(£)

Impairment of financial assets THEERE

At each reporting date, financial assets other than REREASRTSREE (A

financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are AERERRIECeREER

reviewed to determine whether there is any objective SN) BT RS HIRTAEE R

evidence of impairment. BEFEE-

Objective evidence of impairment of individual financial ERleMEEsEEREBEZER

assets includes observable data that comes to the B AEBERAS R —IEN N E

attention of the Group about one or more of the following TR EEEG 2 TBREE:

loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor; - EBABLERMBRE:

- a breach of contract, such as a default or - BERAH WRHHERE
delinquency in interest or principal payments; B HAS T F

- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter — EBAREBAUEEENET
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; and HtWBEHR: &

- significant changes in the technological, market, — Bt mig - KBERERRR
economic or legal environment that have an adverse IR AT B2 B E S A ST
effect on the debtor. B 2ERNE-
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=Z+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

3.8 Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Loss events in respect of a group of financial assets
include observable data indicating that there is a
measureable decrease in the estimated future cash flows
from the group of financial assets. Such observable
data includes but not limited to adverse changes in the
payment status of debtors in the group and, national or
local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on
the assets in the group.

If any such evidence exists, the impairment loss is
measured and recognised as follows:

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
on loans and receivables carried at amortised cost has
been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition). The amount of the loss is recognised
in profit or loss of the period in which the impairment
occurs.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEME &)
POLICIES (continued)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=Z+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEME &)

POLICIES (continued)

3.8 Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

If, in subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed to the extent that it does not result in a
carrying amount of the financial asset exceeding what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised at the date the impairment is reversed.
The amount of the reversal is recognised in profit or loss
of the period in which the reversal occurs.

Financial assets other than financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and trade receivables that are
stated at amortised cost, impairment losses are written
off against the corresponding assets directly. Where the
recovery of trade receivables is considered doubtful but
not remote, the impairment losses for doubtful receivables
are recorded using an allowance account. When the
Group is satisfied that recovery of trade receivables is
remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is written off
against trade receivables directly and any amounts held
in the allowance account in respect of that receivable are
reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account are reversed against
the allowance account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=Z+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEME &)
POLICIES (continued)

3.9

3.10

3.11

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED BEEEERAT |

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of automobiles, watches and
jewelleries included in the inventories are determined
using the first-in, first-out method while the other
inventories with different nature are determined using
the weighted average basis. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs of completion and applicable
selling expenses.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments, in individual contracts
or separated from hybrid financial instruments, are
initially recognised at fair value on the date the derivative
contract is entered into and subsequently remeasured at
fair value. Derivatives that are not designated as hedging
instruments are accounted for as financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Gains
or losses arising from changes in fair value are taken
directly to profit or loss for the year.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at banks and
in hand, demand deposits with banks and short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value. For the purpose of cash flows
presentation, cash and cash equivalents include bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=Z+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEME &)

POLICIES (continued)

3.12 Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, accrued charges, amount due to a related party
and borrowings.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments. All interest related charges are recognised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy for
borrowing costs (see note 3.18).

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of
a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying
amount is recognised in profit or loss.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
date.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=Z+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEME &)
POLICIES (continued)

3.12

3.13

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED BEEEERAT |

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Other financial liabilities

These financial liabilities are recognised initially at their
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

Financial guarantees issued

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer (or guarantor) to make specified payments
to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee is initially recognised as
deferred income within trade and other payables. Where
consideration is received or receivable for the issuance
of the guarantee, the consideration is recognised in
accordance with the Group’s policies applicable to
that category of asset. Where no such consideration
is received or receivable, an immediate expense is
recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition of any
deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over
the term of the guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are recognised
if and when it becomes probable that the holder of the
guarantee will call upon the Group under the guarantee
and the amount of that claim on the Group is expected
to exceed the current carrying amount of the guarantee,
i.e., the amount initially recognised less accumulated
amortisation, where appropriate.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=Z+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEME &)

POLICIES (continued)

3.14 Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to use
a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time
in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such
a determination is made based on an evaluation of
the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of
whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held under
finance leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are
classified as operating leases.

(a) Operating lease charges as the lessor

Assets leased out under operating leases are
measured and presented according to the nature of
the assets. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised
as an expense over the lease term on the same
basis as rental income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BHE-_ZT—=ZF=ZA=Z+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEME v
POLICIES (continued)

3.14 Leases (Continued)

(a)

(b)

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED BHEEBHBR QA |

Operating lease charges as the lessor
(Continued)

Rental income receivable from operating leases
is recognised in profit or loss on the straight-line
method over the periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the use of the leased asset. Lease
incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss as
an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as
income in the accounting period in which they are
earned.

Operating lease charges as the lessee

Where the Group has the right to use the assets
held under operating leases, payments made
under the leases are charged to profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the lease terms except
where an alternative basis is more representative
of the time pattern of benefits to be derived from
the leased assets. Lease incentives received are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent
rental are charged to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 F#

3.14 & (&)

(a)

(b)

ERBHHACEEHEER
(#&)

REREZ RIWHESWAR
HEMRERENEREE
BatER BmEEMmEE
EEEFEMRRERHEES
E P EE A 2 e 1R U A BR
ShoER 2 HERBEES
R SRR E R KA
BMZHEKE D HABEHE
HEAZ Gt HRAERR
YA o

ERBRHACKEHEER

HASEERERNEZH
ERACEE AIREHEE
FHZNREeEEHERA
NE A ERD M BN
BHMEEEFFE MR
MEEEMES 2 KR
B RIER SN B U TH & 22 R
EBRETERA/CHEEF
Rz AR EE D - R
HerEHEEEZ@tHEA
RN -



BisHmRME (8)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BHE-_ZT—=ZF=ZA=Z+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEME v
POLICIES (continued)

3.15 B HIAREBRIAEE

3.15 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent

assets

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future uncertain events
not wholly within the control of the Group are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

3.16 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is
determined using the nominal value of shares that have
been issued.

Any transaction costs associated with the issuing
of shares are deducted from share premium (net of
any related income tax benefit) to the extent they are
incremental costs directly attributable to the equity
transaction.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BHE-_ZT—=ZF=ZA=Z+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

3.17 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received and receivable for the sale of goods, rendering
of services and the use by others of the Group’s assets
yielding interest and dividends, net of returns and
discounts. Provided it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue and
costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised as follows:

Sales of goods are recognised upon transfer of the
significant risks and rewards of ownership to customer.
This is usually taken as the time when the goods are
delivered and the customer has accepted the goods.

Services income is recognised when services are
rendered.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.

Rental income receivable from operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss on the straight-line method
over the periods covered by the lease term, except where
an alternative basis is more representative of the pattern
of benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as income
in the accounting period in which they are earned.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEME v
POLICIES (continued)
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BisHmRME (8)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BHE-_ZT—=ZF=ZA=Z+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEME v
POLICIES (continued)

3.18

3.19

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which
require a substantial period of time to be ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. Income earned on temporary investments
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on those
assets is deducted from borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill arising from acquisition of subsidiaries, other
intangible assets, property, plant and equipment and
the Company’s interests in subsidiaries are subject to
impairment testing.

Goodwill and other intangible assets with an indefinite
useful life or those not yet available for use are tested for
impairment at least annually, irrespective of whether there
is any indication that they are impaired. All other assets
are tested for impairment whenever there are indications
that the asset’s carrying amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable
amount is the higher of fair value, reflecting market
conditions less costs to sell, and value-in-use. In
assessing value-in-use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessment of
time value of money and the risk specific to the asset.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BHE-_ZT—=ZF=ZA=Z+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

3.19 Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where an
asset does not generate cash inflows largely independent
from those from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets that generate
cash inflows independently (i.e. a CGU). As a result, some
assets are tested individually for impairment and some are
tested at CGU level. Goodwill in particular is allocated to
those CGUs that are expected to benefit from synergies
of the related business combination and represent the
lowest level within the Group at which the goodwill is
monitored for internal management purpose.

Impairment loss recognised for a CGU, to which goodwill
has been allocated, is credited initially to the carrying
amount of goodwill. Any remaining impairment loss is
charged pro rata to the other assets in the CGU, except
that the carrying amount of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less cost to sell, or value-in-
use, if determinable.

An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods. In respect of other assets, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s
recoverable amount and only to the extent that the
asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had
been recognised.

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill are not reversed in a subsequent
period. This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller loss,
would have been recognised had the impairment been
assessed only at the end of the financial year to which the
interim period relates.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEME v
POLICIES (continued)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BHE-_ZT—=ZF=ZA=Z+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEME v
POLICIES (continued)

3.20 Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

Retirement benefits

Retirement benefits to employees are provided
through defined contribution plans.

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefit
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for all of its
employees who are eligible to participate in the
MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in the PRC are required to participate in
a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute a percentage of their payroll
costs to the central pension scheme.

Contributions are recognised as an expense in profit
or loss as employees render services during the
year. The Group’s obligations under these plans
are limited to the fixed percentage contributions
payable.

Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the reporting date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as
sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised
until the time of leave.

3.20 EE®A

(a)

(b)
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BisHmRME (8)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BHE-_ZT—=ZF=ZA=Z+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

3.20 Employee benefits (Continued)

(c) Share-based employee compensation

The Group operates equity-settled share-
based compensation plans for remuneration of
its employees. All employee services received
in exchange for the grant of any share-based
compensation are measured at their fair values.
These are indirectly determined by reference to
the equity instruments awarded. Their value is
appraised at the grant date and excludes the impact
of any non-market vesting conditions (for example,
profitability and sales growth targets).

All share-based compensation is recognised as an
expense in profit or loss over the vesting period
if vesting conditions apply, or recognised as an
expense in full at the grant date when the equity
instruments granted vest immediately unless the
compensation qualifies for recognition as asset, with
a corresponding increase in the share option reserve
in equity. If vesting conditions apply, the expense
is recognised over the vesting period, based on
the best available estimate of the number of equity
instruments expected to vest. Non-market vesting
conditions are included in assumptions about the
number of equity instruments that are expected to
vest. Estimates are subsequently revised, if there is
any indication that the number of equity instruments
expected to vest differs from previous estimates.

At the time when the share options have exercised,
the amount previously recognised in share option
reserve is transferred to share premium. After
vesting date, when the vested share options have
forfeited or still have not been exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised
in share option reserve is transferred to retained
profits.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEME v
POLICIES (continued)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BHE-_ZT—=ZF=ZA=Z+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEME v

POLICIES (continued)

3.21 Accounting for income taxes

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise
those obligations to, or claims from, fiscal authorities
relating to the current or prior reporting periods, that
are unpaid at the reporting date. They are calculated
according to the tax rates and tax laws applicable to the
fiscal periods to which they relate, based on the taxable
profit for the year. All changes to current tax assets or
liabilities are recognised as a component of tax expense
in profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method on
temporary differences at the reporting date between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and their respective tax bases. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised
for all deductible temporary differences, tax losses
available to be carried forward as well as other unused
tax credits, to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax
credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
taxable nor accounting profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=Z+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEME &)

POLICIES (continued)

3.21 Accounting for income taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period the liability
is settled or the asset is realised, provided they are
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss, or in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity if they relate to items that are
charged or credited to other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are presented
in net if, and only if,

(@) the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off
the recognised amounts; and

(b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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BismRME (8)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=Z+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEME &)

POLICIES (continued)
3.21 Accounting for income taxes (Continued) 3.21 FiIBHigsTER (&)

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred tax REBEBRERUTERLFEZY

liabilities in net if, and only if, BRETRIEEEMEEHIARE:

(a) the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off (a) HEBLEFRGIFITER
current tax assets against current tax liabilities; and VA% A BR R 18 & EE BA AN ER

BHEEHHE &

(b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax by ELEHBEEDRRILEHIBEA
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same BEEERRE—MR AR A
taxation authority on either: THEM-ER#BRZHE

i

()  the same taxable entity; or () R—ERHEE: 5k
(i)  different taxable entities which intend either to (i) FFEIR S B R K B
settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net (MBEHEEBHARER
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the 457 S Bl K B8 2 i
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period LEHIBAGBHIEE)N
in which significant amounts of deferred tax RRR AL H KRR IE
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled BEREEXRAKER
or recovered. BEREEEECTE
JERTAERE -

3.22 Segment reporting 3.22 W E

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares REERBEMRITE S 2 MASRE

segment information based on the regular internal EROoRERERNSEEB LD X

financial information reported to the executive directors R ZEBARBIEERAEZTE

for their decisions about resources allocation to the HANE AR BRI EE D 3 &

Group’s business components and for their review of BESHLER -MPMITEEZ2 WML

the performance of those components. The business NEBIAFBEERAN 2 EBHLD TR

components in the internal financial information reported AEBFEEREKRFERET -

to the executive directors are determined following the
Group’s major product and service lines.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=Z+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

3.22 Segment reporting (Continued)

The measurement policies the Group uses for reporting
segment results under HKFRS 8 are the same as those
used in its financial statements prepared under HKFRSs,
except bank interest income, gain on disposal of a
subsidiary, income tax expense, finance costs, fair value
gains or loss on derivative financial instruments, equity-
settled share option expenses and corporate income
and expenses which are not directly attributable to
the business activities of any operating segment are
not included in arriving at the operating results of the
operating segment.

Segment assets exclude corporate assets which are
not directly attributable to the business activities of any
operating segment are not allocated to a segment, which
primarily applies to the Group’s headquarter.

Segment liabilities exclude corporate liabilities which are
not directly attributable to the business activities of any
operating segment and are not allocated to a segment.
These include provision for taxation, deferred tax liabilities
and borrowings.

No asymmetrical allocations have been applied to
reportable segments.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEME &)
POLICIES (continued)
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BismRME (8)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=Z+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEME &)
POLICIES (continued)

3.23 Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is
considered to be related to the Group if:

[N

A person or a close member of that person’s family (i)
is related to the Group if that person:
(@) has control or joint control over the Group;
(b) has significant influence over the Group; or
(c) is a member of key management personnel of

the Group or the Company’s parent.
An entity is related to the Group if any of the (if)

following conditions apply:

(@) The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

(b) One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

(c) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.
(d) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity

and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=Z+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEME &)

POLICIES (continued)
3.23 Related parties (Continued)

(i)  (Continued)

(e) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan

for the benefit of the employees of the Group

or an entity related to the Group.

(f)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by

a person identified in (i).

() A person identifies in (i)(a) has significant

influence over the entity or is a member of key

management personnel of the entity (or of a

parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family

members who may be expected to influence, or be

influence by, that person in their dealings with the entity

and include:

(@) that person’s children and spouse or domestic

partner;

(b) children of that person’s spouse or domestic

partner; and

(c) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse

or domestic partner.

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4.

JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are

based on historical experience and other factors, including

expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable

under the circumstances.
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BismRME (8)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=Z+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4.

Bk et RAE )

JUDGEMENTS (continued)

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,

REBERRAE LA RERER - ABH
SRR MEERERDEEHERE

seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material

adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

within the next financial year are discussed below:

(a)

(b)

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment in accordance with the accounting
policy stated in note 3.19. The recoverable amounts
of CGUs have been determined based on value-in-
use calculations. These calculations require the use of
estimates. Estimating the value-in-use requires the Group
to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows
from the CGUs and also to choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those
cash flows. As at 31 March 2013, the carrying amount
of goodwill was approximately HK$580,679,000 (2012:
HK$580,679,000). Details of the impairment assessment
are disclosed in note 18.

Impairment of other non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether
there is any indication that other non-financial assets
with definite lives may be impaired. If any such indication
exists, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
assets in accordance with the accounting policy stated
in note 3.19. In assessing whether there is any indication
that other non-financial assets may be impaired, the
Group considers indications from both internal and
external sources of information such as evidence of
obsolescence or decline in economic performance of
the assets, changes in market conditions, economic
environment and customers’ tastes. These assessments
are subjective and require management’s judgements and
estimations.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=Z+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continuead)

(c)

(d)

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED BEEEERAT |

Impairment of receivables

The policy for making allowance for impairment of
receivables of the Group is based on the evaluation of
collectability and ageing analysis of the receivables and
on management’s judgement. A considerable amount
f judgement is required in assessing the ultimate
realisation of these receivables, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection history of
each customer/debtor. If the financial conditions of the
customers/debtors of the Group deteriorate thus resulting
in impairment as to their ability to make payments,
additional allowance for impairment may be required.
If the financial conditions of the customers/debtors of
the Group, on whose account allowance for impairment
has been made, were improved and no impairment of
their ability to make payments were noted, reversal of

allowance for impairment may be required.

Impairment of inventories

The management of the Group reviews the inventories at
each reporting date, and makes allowance for impairment
of obsolete, slow-moving and impaired items. The
management estimates the net realisable value for such
inventories based primarily on the expected future market
conditions and the estimated selling price. The Group
makes allowance for impairment if the net realisable value
is below the carrying amount.
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BismRME (8)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=Z+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(e)

(f)

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong and
other jurisdiction in which the Group operates. Significant
judgement is required in interpreting the relevant tax
rules and regulations and determining the amount of the
provision for income taxes and the timing of payment
of related taxes. There could have transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain in the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made.

Fair value of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

The directors of the Company use their judgement in
selecting an appropriate valuation technique for the
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss which
are not quoted in the active market. The fair value of
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is
estimated by an independent professional valuer with
reference to the underlying market value as disclosed
in note 21. The fair value of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss varies with different variables of
certain subjective assumptions. Changes in the subjective
input may materially affect the fair value estimates.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=Z+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION 5.

The executive directors have identified the following reportable
operating segments:

Trading of automobiles and related parts and accessories
and provision of after-sale services — Distribute branded
automobiles, namely Bentley, Lamborghini and Rolls-Royce,
and provide related after-sale services;

Trading of branded watches — Distribute branded watches,
namely Richard Mille, DeWitt, Parmigiani and delLaCour

BiTourbillon;

Trading of branded jewelleries — Distribute branded jewelleries,
namely Boucheron, and Royal Asscher; and

Trading of fine wines — Distribute certain brands of fine wines.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BHE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Each of these operating segments is managed separately
as each of the product and service lines requires different

resources as well as marketing approaches. Inter-segment

—E—=F=ZA=Z+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2013

5, oEER (&)

F2PiSE=S

SHTE AR
2 EBE R

R RIRIGRATE LSRR

WEEEEDEHIIDFRE
5 Ty 2 E s LT B ER

transactions are priced with reference to prices charged to INEBA T 2B TEE -
external parties for similar order.
2013
i i —= ﬂi
Trading of
automobiles
and related
parts and
accessories and
provision of Trading of Trading of
after-sale branded branded Trading of
services watches jewelleries fine wines Total
AER
HEAZHK
BHESZUAR £ A8
REERRYE FHES LEES £EES At
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTER TET TET TER TET
Revenue from external customers RENDRP 2 Wz 2,740,749 125,329 34,613 114,864 3,015,555
Other income HiA 68,887 15,016 5,906 29,108 118,917
Reportable segment revenue Epapa 16 2,809,636 140,345 40,519 143,972 3,134,472
Reportable segment results ARENDEE 106,426 (18,937) 4,718 30,170 122,377
Amortisation of other Hi B AR 24
intangible assets - (1,277) (260) - (1,537)
Depreciation of property, mE - BERZEINE
plant and equipment (22,221) (5,628) (4,043) (4,156) (36,048)
Fair value gains on financial assets BRARBERBERRIIRZ
at fair value through profit or loss SREEZ AR BERE - - - 118 118
Operating lease payments in respect of HEBF/LEHRENE
rented premises (41,372) (35,447) (11,382) (22,622) (110,823)
Sub-lease income L ON - 10,921 3,151 11,027 25,099
Reportable segment assets T’&%ﬁ}a LE 1,695,313 270,816 119,604 236,572 2,322,305
Corporate assets: DEBE:
— financial assets -SBEE 47,794
- non-financial assets —-EREE 3,197
Consolidated total assets REBEE 2,373,296
Additions to non-current segment assets ~ FRFEFRB D PEE
during the year 71,201 4,851 - - 76,052
Reportable segment liabilities T‘&iﬁ% 117,807 13,112 1,082 794 132,795
Corporate liabilities: NEEE:
- financial liabilities -SBER 589,319
- non-financial liabilities —FERAE 5,648
Consolidated total liabilities GEBAR 727,762
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, S RN .
5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. 2HER (#®)
2012
—T-—fF
Trading of
automobiles
and related
parts and
accessories and
provision of Trading of Trading of
after-sale branded branded Trading of
services watches jewelleries fine wines Total
ABER
HEZH R
BHESH AR e e
REUERRS FHES KEZS ZEES Ch
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THx FER THT TR FTET
Revenue from external customers RENEP 2 W= 4,187,129 187,987 35,854 16,453 4,427,423
Other income HigA 27,914 21,067 5,919 21,247 76,147
Reportable segment revenue AHRED BRE 4,215,043 209,054 41,773 37,700 4,503,570
Reportable segment results ARED DEE 250,556 8,590 272 1,621 261,039
Amortisation of other Htt @M AE#BH
intangible assets - (1,277) (260) - (1,537)
Depreciation of property, mE BERZEINE
plant and equipment (11,666) (5,177) (3,711) (3,364) (23,918)
Fair value gains on financial assets RARBERBRRIIKZ
at fair value through profit or loss SREEZ AR BERE - - - 10,171 10,171
Operating lease payments in respect of ~ HERF 2 ELAEFHE
rented premises (34,507) (29,825) (10,209) (19,096) (93,637)
Sub-lease income ARMA - 7,891 2,986 10,450 21,327
Reportable segment assets ARENPEE 1,310,632 253,624 93,666 241,996 1,899,918
Corporate assets: NABE:
~ financial assets -eRMEE 19,172
- non-financial assets -FeREE 3,775
Consolidated total assets REBEE 1,922,865
Additions to non-current segment assets ~ ERFEERD P HEE
during the year 89,878 4,890 2,958 76,189 173,915
Reportable segment liabilities ARENHERE 162,012 24,419 600 4,113 191,144
Corporate liabilities: NEBE:
~ financial liabilities -SREE 265,497
- non-financial liabilties —FEeRAE 9,250
Consolidated total liabilities RRBAR 465,891
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=Z+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. 7EHER (#)

The total presented for the Group’s operating segments Fr25| AR B & E D32 &5 8T HER

reconcile to the Group’s key financial figures as presented in BV BBREMEIAEE 2 FEHHEH
the consolidated financial statements as follows: FHEROT

2013 2012

—E-=F —T—=F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Reportable segment results ARE DI ELE 122,377 261,039

Bank interest income RITF B A 1,287 1,587

Gain on disposal of subsidiary HEWB AR 2= 912 -

Unallocated corporate income KO B AT A 10,842 -

Fair value (losses)/gains on MESBMIAEZARE

derivative financial instruments (F1|) s (3,369) 3,208

Equity-settled share option expenses ARz 4EE 7 BEIRAER - (1,443)

Unallocated corporate expenses KO ARAX (31,411) (29,774)

Finance costs B & KA (30,826) (9,990)

Profit before income tax B FIT 15 75 B i K1 69,812 224,627

The Group’s revenue from external customers and its

non-current assets (other than financial instruments) are divided

into the following geographical areas:

AEERBINBEL 2 W MIEREE
ZE (R TARIN R TIIIEESD

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets

REHNBEE 2K FRBEE
2013 2012 2013 2012
—EB—=fF —E—-—-F —EB—=Ff —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FET TERT FET
Mainland China and o A N B
Hong Kong (domicile) (BE2h) 2,871,492 4,322,970 755,730 729,119
Malaysia BIRADR 144,063 104,453 64 115
3,015,555 4,427,423 755,794 729,234
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BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=Z+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The geographical location of customers is based on the
location at which the services were provided or the goods
delivered. For goodwill and other intangible assets, the
geographical location is based on the entities’ area of
operation. The geographical location of other non-current
assets is based on the physical location of the assets.
Management determines the Group is domiciled in Mainland
China and Hong Kong, which are the Group’s principal
operating locations.

REVENUE

Revenue from the Group’s principal activities recognised during
the year is as follows:

DEER (&)

EPEAREREIXEE &
RER -BEMEMELEEMRIAE
BREwESER HMERBEE
BAEERG AN RER EREE
EAEBEZEXMHBRTEANLNE
B RIAREEZERE LR -

iy

FABERKEARERFEZXR 2 Wm0
T

2013 2012

—E—=F —E—-_F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FHET

Sale of automobiles REHE 2,645,699 4,106,277

Sale of branded watches B FHREE 125,329 187,987

Sale of branded jewelleries HIRIREHE 34,613 35,854

Sale of fine wines ZEHE 114,864 16,453
Income from provision of REEZRBUWA

after-sale services 95,050 80,852

Total revenue W858 3,015,555 4,427,423

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED BREBAR QT |  ANNUAL REPORT 2013 3k
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BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=Z+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

7. OTHER INCOME 7. HftgA
2013 2012
—E—-=F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHET
Bank interest income RITHF B A 1,287 1,587
Bonus from suppliers HIERE G T 2 E 43,859 25,554
Exchange gains, net PE 3 U 2= 5 58 - 608
Fair value gains on derivative financial #$TE£&@ T EZ
instruments R ERE - 3,208
Fair value gains on financial assets BEARBERERKIES
at fair value through profit or loss TRMEEL AN ERE
(Note 21) (FFzE21) 118 10,171
Gain on disposals of financial assets HEZAREREBERE
at fair value through profit or loss PR 2 & B E B 2 W
(Note 21) (FzE21) 13,823 -
Gain on disposals of property, HEMZE HERZRH 2
plant and equipment W 1,113 1,279
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEWE QR e
(Note 33(a)) (K$5E33(a)) 912 -
Imputed interest revenue on FEUE 5 FRIB I H h fE U
trade and other receivables I BHEMBEWA 4,140 -
Income from exhibitions and E3 A ONSENEON
other services income 13,213 903
Income from insurance brokerage R &L WA 22,215 14,398
Sub-lease income WA 25,099 21,327
Others Hity 6,179 1,907
Total other income H At Yy A\ 4858 131,958 80,942
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=Z+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

HK$1,537,000 (2012: HK$1,537,000) has been included in

administrative expenses.

i Depreciation of approximately HK$28,107,000 and
HK$8,669,000 (2012: HK$18,484,000 and HK$6,334,000) have
been included in selling and distribution costs and administrative

expenses respectively.

##  The amount has been included in other operating expenses

(2012: other income).

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED B EBHBR AR

| ANNUAL REPORT 2013 % &

8. OPERATING PROFIT 8. RKERF
2013 2012
—E—-=F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FHET
Operating profit is arrived at ESREMEFRR, (5TA)
after charging/(crediting): LATNIEH
Amortisation of other intangible assets* E fth £ i & &= 84+ 1,537 1,537
Auditor’s remuneration % SR B & 1,500 1,650
Cost of inventories recognised BRERAI ZGFERAE
as expense 2,730,681 3,975,510
Depreciation of property, Y e REREoITEY
plant and equipment*# 36,776 24,818
Exchange differences, net PE 5% =58 924 (608)
Fair value losses/(gains) on MTESMIT A
derivative financial instruments*## DAREEE, (UkE) 3,369 (3,208)
Gain on disposals of property, MEWE - HEER
plant and equipment HiE 2 W (1,113) (1,279)
Operating lease payments HEBF & EMERIA
in respect of rented premises 120,492 101,879
Written off of property, LIS R i
plant and equipment 3,590 -
Defined contribution retirement benefits & %8 7 & 8 R KB
scheme contributions FHEIHE R
for employees 7,052 5,018
Staff costs, including BIRA BREZFHE
directors’ emoluments 37,667 38,738
Equity-settled share option NHEREE BT
expenses for staff B R - 1,443
Total staff costs BT @ 44,719 45,199
# Amortisation of other intangible assets of approximately # #91,537,0008 L (=T — ZF:

1,637,000 70 ) KM P EE#BHE

FPATTIRER -

#o #928,107,0007% 7T 8,669,000/
gL (ZZF — — 4 :18,484,000/8 T &
6,334,000 ) M EE H AlFE AHE
MREBAAURITIRER -

o REER ARMEE

FHEMKRA) -

A(=%—=

= —
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=Z+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

10.

FINANCE COSTS b & B A
2013 2012
—E—=F —_F—=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FETT
Interest expenses on financial liabilities & # #4 X A 51| BR 2
stated at amortised costs: eRABEMNERXE:
— borrowings wholly repayable —ARAFABHEEY
within five years EE 30,826 9,990

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2012: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the
year. Taxation on profits derived outside Hong Kong has been
calculated on the estimated assessable profit for the year at
the rates of taxation prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the
Group operates.

Income tax of certain subsidiaries of the Company in the PRC
is charged at 25% (2012: 18% to 25%) on deemed profits
calculated at 7% to 10% (2012: 7% to 10%) on revenue in
accordance with relevant tax regulations in the PRC.

Income tax of certain subsidiaries of the Company in Malaysia
is charged at a fixed amount of approximately Malaysia Ringgit
(“MYR”) 20,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$50,000)
(2012: MYR20,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$50,000)) in
accordance with relevant tax regulations in Malaysia.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED BKEBARA A |

10. FTEH X H

BBFNEH BB AT E A ERB R
MIRH E16.5% (ZF—_F:16.5%)
FTREBE REBEARINEF 2 BB
THIRBEAFE 2 BT ERBUAFIIRA S
EEEr AR 2 RITRHESE -

REBPBEAAEREER A2fETH
BB AR ZEEHR AR E Z7%E
10% (ZFE——F 7%210%) 18 2
% N 3%25% (ZFE — —F :18% &
25% ) Z TR R o

RBERADHEBREER  AQF
ETHERASHMBRARZMEH IR
4920,00055 KA < F ([HRAES
1) (BER#50,00087T) (=ZF
—ZF 20,0005 KA ESEH (HBER
#50,000/ 7T ) ) 2 EE S REHMR
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=Z+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 10. FRBH X H (&)
2013 2012
—E—-=F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FETT
Current tax REZRIE
Hong Kong: EF5
Current year KEE 426 666
Under-provision in prior year BEFERETR 136 -
562 666
Other jurisdictions: HA R AR -
Current year KEE 3,706 10,854
4,268 11,520
Deferred tax (Note 30) EFEFIE (FF7E30)
Current year KEE (423) (581)
Total income tax expense Frig®isz 4B %e 3,845 10,939

108  SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED B3 ®£@#EMR~AA |  ANNUAL REPORT 2013 R
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BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=Z+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 10. FREBIZH (#)
Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting REAMEAERER I EgH SR
profit at applicable tax rates: 2 HER
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHET
Profit before income tax B BT 15 B R 3 7 69,812 204,627
Tax calculated at Hong Kong Profits EEBNEHE16.5%
Tax of 16.5% (2012: 16.5%) ZE—ZF:16.5%)
AE A 11,519 37,064
Effect of different tax rates of RE A FUEE R AL S 2 M8
subsidiaries operating in other REITAMEZHZE
jurisdictions (12,278) (28,789)
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue BARBIW S 2 & ’i‘ (2) (1)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 7~ A] 38 2 H 2 Tl 75 52 2 2,342 1,599
Tax effect of unused tax losses not KRR REBAHIBEEEZ
recognised O x 1,368 316
Tax effect of temporary difference not KR Z G =% 2B
recognised FE 760 756
Tax effect of prior years’ unrecognised N4 € &) 1B Eirﬂiﬁﬁulj
tax losses utilised this year ZCHIEBEIHEEE - (6)
Under-provision of Hong Kong Profits @ F 8 & 78 FI 5T B
Tax in prior years T~ 136 -
Income tax expense FriS®i = 3,845 10,939

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED BKEBARA A

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 F R

109



110

Bk E (8)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED BHEBHBR AR

11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 11. EEEE
Retirement
benefit
Directors’ Salaries and scheme
fees allowances contributions Total
BAKRER
EsHe FERORE ot &It &t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT TER TERT TER
Year ended BE-2-=%

31 March 2013 ZA=+—HLEE
Executive directors: HITEE:

Tong Kai Lap BRL ([EEE]D)

(“Mr. Tong”) 180 1,860 15 2,055
Zheng Hao Jiang gL 1,980 - - 1,980
Zhao Xiao Dong AR (TEEED

(“Mr. Zhao”) 1,200 - - 1,200

Non-executive directors: FEHTTEE :
Zhang Si Jian REE 180 - - 180
Gao Yu (‘Mr. Gao”) 2E(IEEE]) 180 - - 180
Qi Jian Wei HRE 180 - - 180
Independent non- BUIHRTEE:

executive directors:

Choy Sze Chung, Jojo  E B ([£%h4])

(“Mr. Choy”) 180 - - 180
Lam Kwok Cheong HEE 180 - - 180
Lee Thomas Kang Bor R K 180 - - 180
Total ast 4,440 1,860 15 6,315

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 F#
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 11. EEM € »2)

Retirement
Salaries, benefit
Directors’ bonuses and scheme
fees allowances contributions Total
e RIKARF
EE0e TEAL R R 8h FTEIftT =
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
THET TET FHET FHT
Year ended BHE-T——F
31 March 2012 —A=+t—BLLFE
Executive directors: HiTEE:
Mr. Tong Bh4E 180 2,260 12 2,452
Zheng Hao Jiang gL 1,980 - - 1,980
Mr. Zhao iz e 1,200 - - 1,200
Non-executive directors: FEHTTEE :
Zhang Si Jian REBE 180 - - 180
Mr. Gao BRE 180 - - 180
Qi Jian Wei HEE 180 - - 180
Independent non- BUHEHTEE
executive directors:
Mr. Choy 2 e 180 - - 180
Lam Kwok Cheong WE & 180 - - 180
Lee Thomas Kang Bor ~ F 8 180 - - 180
Total &t 4,440 2,260 12 6,712

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group

to the directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the

Group or as compensation for loss of office. None of the

directors has waived or agreed to waive any emoluments

during the years.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED BKEBARA A |

RAEFERN  AEEY &R EEA
& AERIMAREBRRIMAKREE
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

12. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS 12. AU EEHFAL

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, three (2012: three) were directors of the Company
whose emoluments are disclosed in note 11 above. The
emoluments payable to the remaining two (2012: two)

EAEEAMRESH

ALtd HEp=fI

(ZF—F =) REARAES K
E2HMEE R EXMEIKRE - FARE
HEBWU (ZZ—=F W) =5

individuals during the year were as follows: ATzZMEmT:
2013 2012
—E—=F —F—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Salaries and other benefits FehEMER 2,881 2,781
Retirement benefit scheme RIKTE FET B R
contributions 29 24
2,900 2,805
The emoluments fell within the following bands: Bl T T 5485 -
2013 2012
—E—-=F —E-—F
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
N ANEL
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,0015% 7T 21,500,000 7T 1 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T £2,000,0007% 7T 1 1
2 2
SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED BREBEER QA |  ANNUAL REPORT 2013 3k
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BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

13. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE OWNERS
OF THE COMPANY

Of the consolidated profit attributable to the owners of
the Company of approximately HK$66,304,000 (2012:
HK$214,188,000), a loss of approximately HK$4,261,000
(2012: profit of HK$385,000) has dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company.

14. DIVIDENDS 14.

(a) Dividends attributable to the year

13. A RBHEHE AEIEEF

RARFRHEE ANEBIELEE R MDD
66,304,000 L (=% — = F:
214,188,000/ 7T ) ¥ * 494,261,0007%
T2 (ZZF— 4 :385,000E T2
wmA) ERAR R R SRR P ERE -

[ g=\

(@) FFEERERE

2013 2012
—E—=fF —E—_F
HK$’000 HK$’000
F&T FHETT
Interim dividends: HKO0.2 cent FRHEARR B & AR0.278 1
(2012: HKO.5 cent) per share ZE—ZF:0.5%81) 5,960 14,899
Proposed final dividend: Nil BORKEIRE - &
(2012: HKO0.3 cent per share) T F:
HFR20.37 1) - 8,939
5,960 23,838

(b) Dividends attributable to previous financial year,
approved and paid during the year

(b) RERSHERIKNGZ E—BEK
FEERGERE

2013 2012
—E_=4F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FHExT FET
Final dividend: HKO.3 cent RERRZ B+ P03
(2012: HK1 cent) per share —E—F 1B 8,939 29,763

No final dividend was proposed in respect of the year
ended 31 March 2013. A final dividend out of the
contributed surplus of the Company of HKO0.3 cent per
ordinary share, totalling approximately HK$8,939,000 was
paid in respect of the year ended 31 March 2012.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED BKEBARA A |

RARESFTHREBEE—_T—=
AT —BLEFERERAR
Bo-#HE_E——-F=A=+—H
IEFE  RNARIRBARBEFR
EARBREERTBRO.3EN
& #£498,939,000/ 7t ©
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BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

15. EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a)

(b)

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED BHEBHBR AR |

Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the
profit attributable to the owners of the Company of
approximately HK$66,304,000 (2012: HK$214,188,000)
by the weighted average of 2,979,828,850 (2012:
2,978,405,069) ordinary shares in issue during the year
ended 31 March 2013.

Diluted

Diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 March
2013 is the same as basic earnings per share as the
potential ordinary shares have no dilutive effect on
earnings per share.

Diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 March
2012 was calculated by dividing the profit attributable
to the owners of the Company of approximately
HK$214,188,000 by the adjusted weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue during the year ended
31 March 2012.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares used
in the calculation of diluted earnings per share for the
year ended 31 March 2012 was calculated based on
the weighted average of 2,978,405,069 ordinary shares
in issue during the year ended 31 March 2012 as used
in the calculation of basic earnings per share plus the
weighted average of 2,596,800 ordinary shares deemed
to be issued at no consideration as if all the outstanding
share options had been exercised.

15. EREF

(a)

(b)

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 F#

=N

BREXRFIIBREEE-T—=
FZA=Z+—BLEFEARAE
B AR5 T 466,304,000 7T
— T — ~ 4 :214,188,000/% 7T )
BB BT @RMNEFESH
2,979,828,850[% (=& — =4 :
2,978,405,0690% ) 5t & -

B8

E}

B E B Sk 25 )&
BERXE RHBE_T—=F=A
=+ BLEFEZEREFERN
HEREARZFER -

HE_ZT——F=-HA=+—HLEF
EzBREERMNDIBEHE-Z
__$:H:+_E|JJ:$EZKL\
AIFEB A % T £9214,188,000
BITBRNAE BT ERRSHEEMN
BIEHEEHE-

BEstEEBE_ZT——F= A
=t+-HIEFESRETRF T
BRIMEFEHE T BRIERETE
BREABAZBE-_T—=F
A=+ BLFEEBTER
B% b0 F 15 #£2,978,405,0690%
SN AERTEEREDE
ﬂﬁﬁwﬁ¢ﬂ1¥ﬁzﬁ%h
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BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. 1% - HBRRE
GROUP KEH
Furniture,
fixtures and Motor
equipment vehicles Total
R
HEREE RE &5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FAT FABT
At 1 April 2011 RZE——FMA—H
Cost BN 78,446 20,533 98,979
Accumulated depreciation B2t E (15,612) (3,764) (19,376)
Net carrying amount FEREE 62,834 16,769 79,603

Year ended 31 March 2012 HE—_ZT——F

—A=1T—HLFE
Opening net carrying amount  F ¥1J% BRI & 62,834 16,769 79,603
Exchange differences M+ =58 2,666 781 3,447
Additions NE 15,428 23,328 38,756
Disposals & - (4,019) (4,019)
Depreciation e (18,866) (5,952) (24,818)
Closing net carrying amount  F 4 FREE 62,062 30,907 92,969
At 31 March 2012 and RZZE—=—F=A=+—H
1 April 2012 ;E=ZT——FMHA—H

Cost BN 97,212 39,581 136,793
Accumulated depreciation ZEHITE (35,150) (8,674) (43,824)
Net carrying amount FEREE 62,062 30,907 92,969
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BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. Y1 -HBERRE &)
(Continued)
GROUP (Continued) TEE(E)
Furniture,
fixtures and Motor
equipment vehicles Total
B
REREZE RE a5t
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
T T FAT FAT
Year ended 31 March 2013 &HBE=-ZT—=f
ZA=+—-BLEE
Opening net carrying amount ~ F ¥1J% BRI & 62,062 30,907 92,969
Exchange differences &+ =58 690 379 1,069
Additions NE 120,036 9,682 129,718
Write-off 54 (3,590) - (3,590)
Disposals & - (6,152) (6,152)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE B R A
(Note 33(a)) (K$#%33(@a)) (2,839) (127) (2,966)
Depreciation e (27,959) (8,817) (36,776)
Closing net carrying amount & FREE 148,400 25,872 174,272
At 31 March 2013 R-ZE-=%=H=+—H
Cost X 7R 207,992 39,091 247,083
Accumulated depreciation Bt E (59,592) (13,219) (72,811)
Net carrying amount FIREE 148,400 25,872 174,272
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

17. INTERESTS IN AND BALANCES WITH

SUBSIDIARIES “E R
COMPANY b /N
2013
—E-=F
HK$’000
FHT

17. B AR RMB AT Z

2012
—E-—F
HK$'000
FAT

Unlisted shares, at cost*

*

thousand dollar.

FE LR AR

The aggregated investment costs in subsidiaries were less than a

- MERARZARERANIR—F T

Balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and MBARz&HAEER REREE
repayable on demand. SKIEE -
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2013 are RZE—=F=ZA=1+—HZEEHE
as follows: NAEIZFFBHOT
Place/country of Percentage of
incorporation/ effective
establishment and Class of Nominal value interest held by  Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary kind of legal entity capital held of capital the Company  place of operations
EMAL/ BRI AQAfE  TEEK
WEARBHR BRREEERER FrsRAE R RAEE EBEREZAEIL REESY
Carnaby Group Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary share United States 100%*  Investment holding, BVI
(“BVI"), limited liability Dollar (‘US$") 1
company
RERUES ERR E 100%° REZKR ZBETEHES
((RBRERES])
BRAE
Sparkle Roll (France) Limited BVI, limited liability Ordinary share US$1 100%  Investment holding,
company Hong Kong
BE LR BR A A EERAEE LAk E 100% RERK &%
BRAE
Sparkle Roll Fine Wine Limited BVI, limited liability Ordinary share US$1 100%  Trading of fine wines,
company Hong Kong
BREBEXERAA RRRNES LER E3 100% HEES BE
BRAR

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED BKEBARA A |
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

it (4

——
oo
=

SUBSIDIARIES (continuea)

COMPANY (Continued)

Place/country of

17. INTERESTS IN AND BALANCES WITH

17. B AR RMB AT Z

ek (#)
AAT (&)

Percentage of

incorporation/ effective
establishment and Class of Nominal value interest held by  Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary kind of legal entity capital held of capital the Company  place of operations
EMAL RIS ERAME  EEXRH
WEARARE BRRiEERE s R A5 RAEE EBEREZAIN REERY
Sparkle Roll (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong, limited Ordinary share HKS$1 100%  Trading of branded
liability company jewelleries and provision
of management service,
Hong Kong
B% (B8)BRAR BB BRAA ERR BT 100% BEKEEHURER
ERRY BA
Sparkle Roll International Hong Kong, limited Ordinary share HK$100 100%  Trading of branded
Distributions Limited liability company watches and fine wines,
Hong Kong
RRERRERRAF BB BRLF Lak 1007 7T 100% £RFEREEES FE
Sparkle Roll Watch & Jewelry Limited Hong Kong, limited Ordinary share HK$1 100%  Trading of branded watches
liability company and branded jewelleries,
Hong Kong
BREGFREFRAA BE ARAA ERR BT 100% REFEREMGELS
BiE
Beijing De Te Motors Trading Limited! The PRC, limited Paid-up capital Renminbi (‘RMB”) 100%  Trading of automobiles
liability company 60,500,000 and related parts and
accessories and provision
of after-sale services,
the PRC
IREFAEESERATA HE BREERT ERAER AR #:60,500,0007C 100% AEREHEHRENES
ARRHEERRE &
Beijing Mei He Zhen Yong The PRC, limited Paid-up capital RMB49,000,000 100%  Trading of automobiles
Motors Trading Limited? liability company and related parts and
accessories and provision
of after-sale services,
the PRC
ERESRKAEEHRRATA HE BREEAT EWER AR ¥49,000,0007C 100% AEREETHEENES

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED BEEEERAT |
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

17. INTERESTS IN AND BALANCES WITH
SUBSIDIARIES (continuea)

COMPANY (Continued)

ek #)
AADT (&)

Place/country of Percentage of

17. B AR RMB AT Z

incorporation/ effective
establishment and Class of Nominal value interest held by  Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary kind of legal entity capital held of capital the Company  place of operations
HMERL/ RIS ARRfiE  TEER
WEARARE BRREEERE s R A8 5 RAEE EBEREZEINL REESY
Sparkle Roll Brands Market Management  Malaysia, limited liability ~ Ordinary share ~ US$100 (2012: US$1) 70%  Investment holding,
Limited (“SRBMM") company (2012: 100%) Malaysia
(Note 33(0))
BRRETSEEEEARDA SRAR ARAA LRk 100%7T 0% REEBKR SRED
(MERmETSEE]) (ZZ—Z%11%7) (Z2-2%F:
100%)
(P =E33(b))
Tianjin Heng Ying Tai Fu Trading The PRC, limited Paid-up capital RMB10,000,000 70%  Trading of automobiles
Development Limited (“TJHY")f liability company (2012: 100%) and related parts and
(Note 33(b)) accessories and provision
of after-sale services,
the PRC
REBREFEESERERA B BREEAT EWER A& ¥10,000,0007T 70% AEREEEHREGES
(TR=2ER]) (Z2—=F: ARREERRE E
100% )
(P 3£33(0))
Tianjin Xin Chang Tai Fu Trading The PRC, limited Paid-up capital RMB45,000,000 70%  Trading of automobiles
Development Limited (“TJXC")* liability company (2012: 100%) and related parts and
(Note 33(b)) accessories and provision
of after-sale services,
the PRC
RAEEEFEEHERAR HE EREADT ERER AR #45,000,0007T 70% AEREEETHRENES
(TR2EE]) (ZB—ZF: ARREERRE E
100%)
(HizE33(b))
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

it (4
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oo
=

SUBSIDIARIES (continuea)

COMPANY (Continued)

Place/country of

17. INTERESTS IN AND BALANCES WITH

17. B AR RMB AT Z

ek (#)
AAT (&)

Percentage of

incorporation/ effective
establishment and Class of Nominal value interest held by  Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary kind of legal entity capital held of capital the Company  place of operations
HMERL/ R ARRfiE  ETEER
WEARARE BRRiEERE s R A5 RAEE EBEREZAIN REERY
Richmile (Shanghai) The PRC, limited Paid-up capital RMB10,000,000 100%  Trading of branded
Commerce & Trading Limited® liability company watches and branded
jewelleries and provision
of consultancy services,
Hong Kong
RE(LE)BEERAR hE-EREAELNHA BEER AE#10,000,0007 100% HARFERGEKEES
ARREZARE BB
Sparkle Roll Oriental (Beijing) Trading The PRC, limited Paid-up capital HK$40,000,000 100%  Trading of branded
Development Limited" liability company watches, branded
jewelleries and fine
wines and provision of
consultancy services,
the PRC
BERS (AR EHERERAT HE BREEAT BEWER 40,000,000% 7T 100% BRFER BRAKEREE
BHURREA RS
P
Sparkle Roll Xin Tian Di Commerce The PRC, limited Paid-up capital RMB49,000,000 100%  Property investment for
Development Limited" liability company rental purpose, the PRC
ERBRARNAEERERDA HE BREERT BWER AR ¥49,000,0007C 100% WEREELERR TE
Sparkle Roll Retail Net Malaysia, limited liability ~ Ordinary share US$1 100%  Trading of branded
Development Limited company watches, branded
jewelleries and fine wines,
Malaysia
BREEBREBRERAA SRAE ARAA L E 100% REFEK BRKEREE
25 BREE
Beijing Sparkle Roll Aerial Advertising The PRC, limited Paid-up capital RMB49,500,000 100%  Provision of marketing and
Multi-media Limited? liability company advertising services,
the PRC
TREREPESEEERAF hE BREERH EWER AR ¥49,500,0007C 100% RETERESRE TE

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED BEEEERAT |
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

17. INTERESTS IN AND BALANCES WITH
SUBSIDIARIES (continuea)

17. B AR RMB AT Z
ek om)

COMPANY (Continued) KANTF (&)

Place/country of

Percentage of

incorporation/ effective
establishment and Class of Nominal value interest held by  Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary kind of legal entity capital held of capital the Company  place of operations
HMERL/ RIS ARRfiE  TEER
WEARARE BRREEERE s R A8 5 RAEE EBEREZAIN REERY
Beijing Sparkle Roll Xin Jing Jie The PRC, limited Paid-up capital RMB49,700,000 100%  Provision of public relation
Public Relation Planning Limited? liability company and marketing services,
the PRC
ErBERERALERAFRDA B BREEAT BER AR 149,700,000 100% RECBERERTHRE
P
Beijing Sparkle Roll Xin Hang The PRC, limited Paid-up capital RMB49,900,000 100%  Provision of transportation
Xiang International Transportation liability company and storage services,
Agency Limited" the PRC
EREFRHMAEREERE HE BREERT ERER AR ¥49,900,0007C 100% REEGREERE TE
BRAR
Beijing Sparkle Roll Xin Fa Xian The PRC, limited Paid-up capital RMB49,300,000 100%  Trading of artwork and
International Artwork Limited® liability company provision of culture and
art exchange activities
services, the PRC
FPRERFERARENRERAA HE BREEAT EWER AR #49,300,0007T 100% EfREHURRHEE
IREERTS A
Beijing Sparkle Roll Xin Gai Nian The PRC, limited Paid-up capital RMB49,950,000 100%  Provision of corporate
Business Management Limited® liability company (2012: management and
RMB40,500,000) consultancy services, the
PRC
PRERNHSEEERERAA HE BREERT EWAER AR ¥49,950,0007C 100% RECEERRFARE
(ZB—=%: #
AR %40,500,0007T)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

——
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=

SUBSIDIARIES (continuea)

COMPANY (Continued)

Place/country of

17. INTERESTS IN AND BALANCES WITH

17. B AR RMB AT Z
ek om)

QR (#F)

Percentage of

incorporation/ effective

establishment and Class of Nominal value interest held by  Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary kind of legal entity capital held of capital the Company  place of operations

HMERL/ R ARRfiE  ETEER

WEARARE BRRiEERE s R A5 RAEE EBEREZEIN REESY

Beijing Sparkleroll Goldenage Saga The PRC, limited Paid-up capital RMB64,600,000 100%  Provision of consultancy
International Exhibition Limited liability company (2012: services, the PRC
(Formerly known as Beijing Yi Ma Fei Te RMB8,500,000)

Motors Trading Limited)

TrRREtESEReRERDA B BREEAT BEWER AR 64,600,000 100% REFARS FH

(A% AREIERAEEHBERAA) (Z2-—%F:
AR ¥8,500,0007T)

Balanorm Beo (Beijing) Trading The PRC, limited Paid-up capital RMB50,000,000 51%  Sales and distribution
Development Limited (“Balanorm Beo”)t liability company (2012: (2012: 100%) of audio and visual
(Formerly known as Hengzhunzixun RMB30,000) (Note 33(c)) consumer electronics
(Beijing) Company Limitedf) products, the PRC

HEER (AR)BHERBRDA HE AREALNTA EWER AR50,000,0007 51% HERRBYZHE
(TegkgE]) (M- GEEALR) (ZB—z%: (Z%-—=%: EfEM TH
BRAR) AR 30,0007 100%)

(HI7E33(c))

f The English names of these subsidiaries established in the PRC f
represents management’s best effort at translating the Chinese
names of these subsidiaries as no official English names have

been registered.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally affected
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion of the
net assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors of the Company, result in

Directly held by the Company.

particulars of excessive length.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

18. GOODWILL 18. B &

The net carrying amount of goodwill can be analysed as
follows:

MEZFRmMENSMOT:

2013 2012

—EBE—=F —E——-F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FAT

Gross carrying amount BERTEE 580,679 580,679
Accumulated impairment ZEHRAE - -
Net carrying amount FEREE 580,679 580,679

The carrying amount of goodwill, net of any allowance for
impairment, is allocated to the CGU of the business of trading
of automobiles and related parts and accessories and provision
of after-sale services.

The recoverable amounts for the CGU of the business of
trading of automobiles and related parts and accessories and
provision of after-sale services as at 31 March 2012 and 2013
were determined based on value-in-use calculations based on
cash flow projections from formally approved budgets, covering
a detailed five-year budget plan, followed by an extrapolation
of expected cash flows at zero percent growth, which do
not exceed the long-term growth rate for the business in
which CGU operates. The growth rates reflect the long-term
estimated average growth rates for the product lines of the
CGU.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED BKEBARA A |
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

18. GOODWILL (Continued) 18. B & (&)

The key assumptions for the value-in-use calculations are:

EREEAEEZZIERRET:

2013 2012

—E—=F —E——F

Growth rates within five-year period AFHAZERE 13% toZE 15% 20%
Discount rates Bh 38 =& 15% 15%

The key assumptions have been determined based on past
performance and its expectations for the market’s share
after taking into consideration published market forecast
and research. The weighted average growth rates used are
consistent with the forecasts included in industry reports.
The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks
relating to the relevant segments.

Apart from the considerations described in determining the
value-in-use of the CGU above, the Group’s management is
not currently aware of any other probable changes that would
necessitate changes in its key estimates.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

19. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 10. HMMEREE

GROUP KEHE
Trademarks
5K
HK$’'000
FETT
At 1 April 2011 RZE——FWA—H
Gross carrying amount BERH (A 7,601
Accumulated amortisation RET (3,684)
Net carrying amount FEREE 3,917
Year ended 31 March 2012 HE-_Z——F=ZA=Z1+—HILFE
Opening net carrying amount FUFREAE 3,917
Amortisation charges BiH (1,537)
Closing net carrying amount FRFIREEAE 2,380
At 31 March 2012 and 1 April 2012 RZE——F=ZA=+—HBK
—ET-—_FmMA—A
Gross carrying amount AR A 7,601
Accumulated amortisation RETH (5,221)
Net carrying amount FREE 2,380
Year ended 31 March 2013 BE-Z—=F=A=+—-HLEFE
Opening net carrying amount FUFREAE 2,380
Amortisation charges #iHsT (1,537)
Closing net carrying amount FREREME 843
At 31 March 2013 R=Z-Z=Z=f=ZH=+—H
Gross carrying amount R E 7,601
Accumulated amortisation RET#H (6,758)
Net carrying amount FIREE 843
SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 1R &EMARAT | ANNUALREPORT2013 £ 125
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=Z+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

20. BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES

GROUP

(a) Rental deposits paid to related parties

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Group
entered into several agreements with Mr. Qi Jian Hong
(“Mr. Qi"), a substantial shareholder of the Company,
and his close family member for leasing of properties
as office premises, bonded warehouse and showrooms
in the PRC to the Group. The rental deposits to Mr.
Qi of approximately HK$13,672,000 (2012: paid to
Mr. Qi and his close family member of approximately
HK$14,232,000) have been recognised as non-current

assets as at 31 March 2013.

(b) Amount due from a related party

The amount due from Mr. Qi resulting from prepaid rental
expenses for leasing of properties as office premises,
bonded warehouse and showrooms in the PRC to the
Group is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand but the directors expect such amount would
be utilised through setting off of future rental expenses

payable to this related party within one year.
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20. BE AT 248k

A&

(a)

(b)

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 F#

ENfEEALTHEEE

REEZZT——F=A=+—AH1F
FE AEEEAXQRRZEFERT
B kE ([ShE]) MEEH
BRI ZREKEHRRANERHAE
ETARPE 2 MEERRE R
MEERREI VA THE BSf
BEAEREREBEREREY ZREK
B 2 ¢ &e #13,672,000% T
ZE——FENEEERER
ARV ZREKEZHE RS
#914,232,0008 L) ERZE—=
FoA=-T—HAERRIRDE
Eo

Bl —EBEALFHE

AstmAEEBHER TRNFE
ZHMERERIE RERELRER
BNzHEHeRAXMERSELEEZ
FOAREEH 2B RARERE
B HEFEHERSBE/ERR
HR—FARNZBEALZR
KA AEA -



BismRME (8)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=Z+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

20. BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES 20. BEAT &8 (#)
(Continued)
GROUP (Continued) TE®(F)
(c) Amount due to a related party (c) FEMN—FEBEALFHE
2013 2012
—E—=4F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TE T FAET
Beijing Alaimani Restaurant IR FKEEERER
Management Company BRAE (HEE))
Limited (Note (i)) - 2,276
Note: B 5 -
0] Mr. Qi has beneficial interest in the related company. The (i) BEEERELAERTZEDE
English name of the related company established in the o R BN 2 BE A A
PRC represents management’s best effort at translating WEFMERNEXETE Az
the Chinese name of the company as no official English NAIZANEBIHERERR
name has been registered. KB ANZRAE 2H XA TEH
#
Amount due was unsecured, interest-free and repayable ERRBERAERT RERERE
on demand. The amount was short-term and hence KEE-ZeBBEHMEE Wik
the carrying value was considered to be a reasonable HEHESEMRAEA L EEE -

approximation of fair value.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=Z+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

21. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
GROUP

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Group acquired
certain wine futures at acquisition cost of approximately
HK$406,000 (2012: HK$69,666,000). These wine futures
were classified as financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss. As at 31 March 2013, the fair value of these wine
futures, determined by a firm of independent professional
valuers by using market-based approach with reference to
the underlying value of the wines in the market, amounted to
approximately HK$524,000 (2012: HK$79,837,000). The gain
of approximately HK$118,000 (2012: HK$10,171,000) arising
from the changes of the fair value of the wine futures have been
recognised in profit or loss for the year and included in other
income as disclosed in note 7.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Group has disposed
of certain wine futures at a consideration of approximately
HK$93,660,000. A gain of approximately HK$13,823,000
arising from disposal of wine futures has been recognised in
profit or loss for the year ended 31 March 2013 and included in
other income as disclosed in note 7.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
presented within the section on operating activities as part of
changes in working capital in the consolidated statement of
cash flows.

21.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=Z+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

22,

23.

INVENTORIES 22. 7€
GROUP K&
2013 2012
—E-—=F —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FiET
Raw materials and consumables R R I OH FE 23,743 23,520
Merchandised goods P & 837,613 485,129
861,356 508,649

As at 31 March 2013, merchandised goods of approximately
HK$360,456,000 (2012: HK$49,395,000) have been pledged
for borrowings of approximately HK$483,714,000 (2012:

HK$54,730,000) (Note 29).

R—ZE—=ZF=ZA=Z+—8 A&
#360,456,0008 L (=T — & :
49,395,000 L)z A mE B &
483,714,000 L (=ZF — = F:
54,730,000/ 7T ) < & EE IR (M 5F

29) °
TRADE RECEIVABLES 23. EWE S F1E
GROUP rE
2013 2012
—EBE—=F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Trade receivables FEUWE 5 3K18 57,259 29,529
Less: Allowance for impairment of B EWCE B RIR R E L
trade receivables = -
Trade receivables, net e E 5 FRIEF 5 57,259 29,529
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=Z+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

23. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

GROUP (Continued)

An ageing analysis of trade receivables as at the reporting date,
based on the invoice dates, and net of impairment losses, is as

23. EWE ZRIE (&)

&M (&)

AERNER AR RIMFRERBIRLR 2 BK
BEREARRE B ZREIHTAOT

follows:
2013 2012
—EBE—=F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TExT FAT
0 - 30 days 0£30H 7,072 20,698
31 - 60 days 31£60H - 7,143
61 — 90 days 61290H - 256
Over 90 days HE#E90H 50,187 1,432
57,259 29,5629

It is the Group’s credit policy that sales to retail customers
are mainly on receipts in advance from customers or cash on
delivery while sales to wholesale customers are mainly on a
credit basis up to 18 months (2012: up to 12 months).

The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
trade receivables and has a credit control policy to minimise
credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by the
management.

The directors of the Company consider that the fair value of
the remaining trade receivables which are expected to be
recovered within one year is not materially different from their
carrying amounts because these balances have short maturity
periods on their inception.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=Z+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

23. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 23. BEWE 5 RIE (&)
GROUP (Continued) TE®(E)
The carrying amounts of the trade receivables are denominated JEWE BRIz REAENRTINEE
in the following currencies: &
2013 2012
—E2—=f —ET——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHE T FET
RMB AR 9,694 29,529
HK$ BTT 47,565 -
57,259 29,529
At each reporting date, the Group reviews receivables for REWMER  AEERFZER XEE
evidence of impairment on both an individual and collective ARFHEWHIBEEL HIRRERE-
basis.
The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade receivables that are AEERBERYE S FIA KRR
not impaired is as follows: N
2013 2012
—E—=F —E—-_F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHET
Neither past due nor impaired AR 8 B IR R R (B 57,259 29,529
Not more than 1 year past due BERBR—F - -
57,259 29,529
Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired WARBEE B RRE 2 EWE 5 IE TR
related to certain customers from whom there was no recent BE THIRUBMENCH IR,

history of default.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BHE-_ZT—=ZF=ZA=Z+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

24. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 24. & FAHBFEREMELR

RECEIVABLES MIE
GROUP AND COMPANY AEERAXRT
Group Company
~EE NN
2013 2012 2013 2012
—EBE—=F —E—-fF —EBE—=F —E—_F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT FET THERT FAT
Current portion: RE®S
Deposits & 32,481 25,587 100 -
Prepayments BHFIA 89,886 284,474 - -
Other receivables H i fEU 3B 178,394 64,375 560 -
300,761 374,436 660 -
Non-current portion:  FFRE ;D :
Prepayment for EEWME WRREE
acquisition of 2 EBHIE
property, plant and
equipment - 53,206 - -

The directors of the Company consider that the fair values of
other receivables which are expected to be recovered within
one year are not materially different from their carrying amounts
because these balances have short maturity periods on their
inception.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BHE-_ZT—=ZF=ZA=Z+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

25. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AT 25. BB TEREBETREFHE

BANKS AND IN HAND

GROUP AND COMPANY

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Certain of the Group’s and the Company’s
bank deposits have been pledged to secure general banking
facilities granted to the Group (Note 29). As at 31 March 2013,
the deposits bore interest rates ranging from 0.01% to 3.00%
per annum (2012: ranging from 0.01% to 3.30% per annum)
which are closed to the market interest rates. The pledged
bank deposits will be released upon the settlement of the
relevant bank borrowings.

The directors of the Company considered that the fair value of
the pledged bank deposits is not materially different from their
carrying amount because of the short maturity period on their
inception and the bearing of market interest rates.

Included in cash at banks and in hand of the Group is
approximately HK$226,074,000 (2012: HK$94,197,000)
of bank balances denominated in RMB and is placed with
banks in the PRC. RMB is not a freely convertible currency.
Under the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement and Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for foreign currencies through banks that are authorised
to conduct foreign exchange business.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED ®BKEBARA A |
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0.01%Z%E3.00% (ZF— % :0.01%%
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BHE-_ZT—=ZF=ZA=Z+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

26. TRADE PAYABLES

GROUP

The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables which

26.

A%

P& 5 FOR

AERNBERARZERNESFTER®RER

based on the invoice dates as at the reporting date: ZREITAT
2013 2012
—E—=F —E—-_F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
0 — 30 days 0E30H 9,079 11,855
31 - 60 days 31260H 2,793 4,597
61 — 90 days 61290H 572 600
Over 90 days HiEI0H 2,107 3,383
14,551 20,435

27. RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE, ACCRUED

27. MWRIR - BRtE AR HEAt

CHARGES AND OTHER PAYABLES FEf+ 718
GROUP AND COMPANY AEBRARDTA
Group Company
rEE NN
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E—= —E—CfF —EB-—=fF —ET—_F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER TET TERT FHET
Current portion: B
Receipts in advance BEPF A
from customers 99,321 145,755 - -
Accrued charges e & A 2,681 1,746 1,405 910
Other payables Hofth JE 1~ 50R 17,013 18,907 14 -
119,015 166,408 1,419 910
Non-current portion:  FHREI;D :
Other payables H e 4 308
(Note (a)) (FF&E(@) 538 3,089 - -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BHE-_ZT—=ZF=ZA=Z+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

27.

28.

RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE, ACCRUED
CHARGES AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

GROUP AND COMPANY (Continued)

The carrying amounts of current portion of accrued charges
and other payables are short-term and hence their carrying
values are considered to be a reasonable approximation of fair
value.

Note:

(@)  The Group enjoys a rent free period on leasing of office premises
and showrooms ranging from 3 to 10 years (2012: 3 to 10
years). This lease incentive received is recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
GROUP

The Group uses foreign currency forward contracts to mitigate
exchange rate exposure of Euros (“EURQ”) against HK$. The
foreign currency forward contracts are stated at fair value,
which have been measured as described in note 40.7. During
the year ended 31 March 2013, net fair value losses of
approximately HK$3,369,000 were debited to “fair value losses
on derivative financial instruments” in the other operating
expense (2012: gains of approximately HK$3,208,000 were
credited to “fair value gains on derivative financial instruments”
in the other income).

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 1B EBBRA A |
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BHE

—E—=ZF=ZA=+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2013

29. BORROWINGS 20. B E
GROUP AND COMPANY AEERAKRT
Group Company
rEE FAUNG|
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F —T——F —E-=% —T——F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT FHERT FAT
Current portion: REHS
Bank loans, guaranteed %Eﬁ%*ﬁ (BER) 61,728 60,976 40,000 14,000
Bank loans, secured BITER (BHMT) 20,441 18,132 = -
Other loans, secured HiER (BHEM) 25,449 - = -
Bank loans, secured fiﬁféf?ﬂ
and guaranteed (BHE®MER) 234,816 118,567 = -
Other loans, secured HiE®
and guaranteed (BHEERER) 205,415 4,803 - -
Bank overdrafts, BITESX
secured and (BEMEER)
guaranteed - 5,955 - -
547,849 208,433 40,000 14,000
Non-current portion:  FFREHS :
Bank loans, secured RITER
and guaranteed (BHEERER) 40,000 56,000 40,000 56,000
587,849 264,433 80,000 70,000

At the reporting date, total current and non-current borrowings
were scheduled to repay as follows:

RRER  RBRIERDEERTEILE
SKEAE T

Group Company
rEH ¥ NN
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F —E-=F —E-=F —E-ZF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT FAT TER FAT
On demand or within BEXY—FNR
one year 547,849 208,433 40,000 14,000
In the second year BE_F 40,000 28,000 40,000 28,000
In the third to fifth years F=FZFRHF - 28,000 - 28,000
587,849 264,433 80,000 70,000

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED BHEEBHBR QA |
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BHE-_ZT—=ZF=ZA=Z+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

29. BORROWINGS (continued) 29. E& (&)

GROUP AND COMPANY (Continued) AEERAAT (£&)

EEZERNE (TERTONE)R:

The effective interest rates (which are also equal to contracted
interest rates) on the borrowings are:

Group Company
X558 NG
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=f —E-CF —E-=f gt
Bank loans, secured RITER HIBOR +2%  HIBOR + 1.8% HIBOR + 4% HIBOR + 4%
and/or guaranteed (BEAR/SER) to to per annum per annum
HIBOR + 4% HIBOR + 4% BRERT BBRT
per annum, per annum, GEZISE:S EEZi¥:R:
LIBOR + 1.8% LIBOR + 2% +EF 4% +EME4%
to to
LIBOR + 2.5% LIBOR +2.5%
per annum and per annum and
1.8% to 7.4% 6.1% t0 8.5%
per annum per annum
ERRT BB
GE$iES REFEE
+ERBI%E  +FFE18%E
ERRT BRI
GE$iES REFEE
+FF%E4% +F R 4%
R RAT BT
GE$iES REFEE
+EFZ1.8%E +EFIE2%ZE
R RAT R BUIRAT
BEREE REFEE
+EF|%2.5% +HERE2.5%
DY bA R
FRE1.8%Z FHE6ARE
7.4% 8.5%
Other loans, secured HER 7.1% to 8.5% 8.5% N/A N/A
and/or guaranteed (BEALR/FER) per annum per annum
ERETA% FHE8.5% TEA TER
£8.5%
Bank overdrafts, RITEX (FEARER) N/A HIBOR + 3% N/A N/A
secured and guaranteed per annum
TEA ERRT TEA TER
FIZEFEE
+ERE3%
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BHE-_ZT—=ZF=ZA=Z+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

29. BORROWINGS (continued) 29. E& (&)

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED BHEEBHBR QA |

GROUP AND COMPANY (Continued)

As at 31 March 2013, certain equity interest of a subsidiary
in the PRC and certain inventories (Note 22) and bank
deposits (Note 25) of the Group and of the Company (2012:
certain inventories and bank deposits of the Group and of the
Company) were pledged to banks to secure general banking
facilities granted to the Group.

The borrowings were also subject to corporate guarantees
executed by the Company and certain subsidiaries during the
years ended 31 March 2012 and 20183.

The carrying values of borrowings are considered to be a
reasonable approximation of fair values.

The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in the
following currencies:

TEBRAQTA (£F)

RZEB—=F=A=+—H KAKEEHK
AR E BB AR 2 & TR
mMETEE (M22) RRTER (H
i#25) (ZE——F  AKBRARF
ETHFEMETROTER)DERTR
T URAEEERZ —RBITREE
o

RBEE-_ZT——FK-_F—=F=H
=+ HULEFE - EETHARRRE
FHBAREY 2 BEERERT

BEZEREERR ARSI ER R EM

o

off mF

EEZEREES A TIEEHE:

Group Company
AEE N
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E—=f —E——fF —E—=f —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FAT THER FAT
Swiss Franc (‘CHF") I AR
(M%) 544 - - -
EURO BT 2,490 - - -
us$ E 1,467 - - -
HKS$ BT 99,633 148,727 80,000 70,000
RMB AR 483,715 115,706 - -
587,849 264,433 80,000 70,000
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BHE-_ZT—=ZF=ZA=Z+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

30. DEFERRED TAX 30. FEERIIE
GROUP REHE

Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary differences
under the liability method at rates of taxation applicable when
the temporary differences are expected to reverse.

The movement on the deferred tax liabilities during the year is
as follows:

AT BB TV AR 5 B (B - P R E
W EREZERRY R AEEE
E‘; %o

>==nal 7+

BEREMABERFAZEHWT

2013 2012
—E—=F —F—=

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHExT FHET

At beginning of the year REH 2,153 2,734
Deferred taxation credited to profit or ~ RIBFEET A Z BT 1B

loss (Note 10) (FF7E10) (423) (581)

At end of the year REK 1,730 2,153

The movement in deferred tax liabilities recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position during the year is

as follows:

FRERGEE M BIRN MR IER 2RI

BEREEDDT

Accelerated Temporary
tax difference
depreciation on inventories Total
MERERE FEZEREER &t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$ 000
FAET FAET FET
At 1 April 2011 RZE——FMA—H 206 2,628 2,734
Credited to profit or loss st A8z - (581) (581)
At 31 March 2012 and RZE—ZF
1 April 2012 —A=+—HX
—ET-——H#mMA—AH 206 1,947 2,153
Credited to profit or loss T Az - (423) (423)
At 31 March 2013 R=-ZE—=
=A=+—H 206 1,524 1,730
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=Z+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

30. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

GROUP (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes
relate to the same fiscal authority and the entity intends either
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

At the reporting date, the Group has estimated unused
tax losses of approximately HK$41,245,000 (2012:
HK$14,056,000), available for offset against future taxable
profits. Unused tax losses of approximately HK$2,420,000
were derecognised upon the disposal of a subsidiary during the
year ended 31 March 2013. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised due to the unpredictability of future profit streams
of those subsidiaries which incurred these tax losses as at
the reporting date. The unused tax losses arising in the PRC
of approximately HK$18,652,000 (2012: HK$2,905,000) will
be expired if they are not utilised to set off against the taxable
profits within five years from the year in which they arose under
the current tax legislation in the PRC.

Deferred tax liabilities of approximately HK$35,917,000 (2012:
HK$23,896,000) have not been established for the withholding
tax that would be payable on the unremitted earnings of certain
subsidiaries because the Company controls the dividend policy
of these subsidiaries and it is not probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future. Such
unremitted earnings for investments in subsidiaries totalled
approximately HK$718,344,000 (2012: HK$477,927,000) as at
31 March 2013.

30.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=Z+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

31. SHARE CAPITAL 31. B
GROUP AND COMPANY TEBRAEAT
Number of
ordinary shares Amount
ZEREE EE:G]
HK$’000
T
Authorised: EERAE:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.002 each TR AE0.0028 L BBk
At 1 April 2011, 31 March 2012, RN-—ZE——FWmA—H-
1 April 2012 and 31 March 2013 —EZ-—-HF=ZA=+—8"
—E-ZFHWEA-BR
—E-=F=ZA=+—H 250,000,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRBERAE:
At 1 April 2011 RZE——FHHA—H 2,976,324,850 5,952
Issue of shares upon exercise of TR ERREREITRG
share options (Note 34) (M15E34) 3,504,000 7
At 31 March 2012, 1 April 2012 and NZE——F=ZA=+—8"
31 March 2013 —E--—FEOA—AK
—E—=F=A=+—H 2,979,828,850 5,959

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED BKEBARA A |
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=Z+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

32. RESERVES

32.1 Group

Special reserve

The special reserve of the Group represents the difference
between the nominal amount of the shares of the
subsidiaries at the date on which they were acquired
by the Company and the nominal amount of the shares
issued for the acquisition under a group reorganisation in
1997.

Contributed surplus

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at the annual
general meeting of the Company on 10 August 2004, the
Company reduced its share premium by an amount of
approximately HK$286,300,000 in accordance with the
provisions of Section 46 of the Bermuda Companies Act
1981 and transferred the same amount to the contributed
surplus account of the Company. On the same date,
the Company applied an amount of approximately
HK$236,906,000 from the contributed surplus account
against the accumulated losses; and

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at the annual
general meeting of the Company on 31 July 2009, the
Company reduced its share premium by an amount of
approximately HK$260,000,000 and transferred the
same amount to the contributed surplus account of the
Company. On the same date, the Company applied an
amount of approximately HK$206,327,000 from the
contributed surplus account against the accumulated
losses; and

Dividends were reflected as an appropriation of
contributed surplus in respect of interim dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2013 of approximately
HK$5,960,000 (2012: final dividend for the year ended
31 March 2012 of approximately HK$8,939,000 and
interim dividend for the year ended 31 March 2012 of
approximately HK$14,899,000).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=Z+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

32. RESERVES (Continued) 32. s (=)

32.1 Group (Continued) 321 AEE (£&)

Other reserve

Other reserve represents the difference between the
consideration and the carrying amount of the net assets
attributable to the additional and reduction of interests in
subsidiaries being acquired from and disposed to non-
controlling interests respectively.

Statutory reserve

The Group’s statutory reserve represents appropriations
of profits retained by the Company’s PRC subsidiaries.
In accordance with the respective articles of association
of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries, they are required
to appropriate amount not less than 10% of their profits
after income tax to statutory reserve each year, until the
reserve balance reaches 50% of its registered capital.
Such a reserve may be used to reduce any losses
incurred or for capitalisation as paid-up capital.

Hftt i@l

HoA 8 4 15 1B B A JR PR A
Wi B & 2 MY B A A R AR
BIEZFEEZRESHEME
8-

EEEE

AEREZREFBIEA AR T BEM
BRARRBENZ DR -REAR
ATENBAREE cHEHEER
AR RERRIAGEREKRMAE
RN A D H10% 5 BL 205 7E 7
B EEREEREREMERAZ
50% 73 Lt ° 5% {5 /8 A1 A {E H0RLAE )
FELZEBRIABARBERER-
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=Z+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

32.2 Company

1 (78

==

32. RESERVES (continuead)

32. B (&)

32.2 XA F]

Share Capital Share option Contributed Accumulated Proposed
premium® reserve’ reserve’ surplus* losses* dividend Total
135 B ARG BRERE EON-E ZitEE BIRRS At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThL FiET T FhL FiET FHEL FHT
At 1 April 2011 RZE-—-4¥RmA-A 796,038 3,508 1,764 107,152 (66,658) 29,763 871,567
Equity-settled share option INBREEzBREZH

arrangement - - 1,443 - - - 1,443
Issue of shares upon exercise of TRERERETRG

share options 3,297 - (431) - - - 2,866
Final dividends paid for the year HE-T-—§ZA=1-HBL

ended 31 March 2011 (Note 14(0)) FEENRERE (H3H140) - - - - - (29,763) (29,763)
Interim dividends paid for the period ~ BE=F——FNA=1H LHAE

ended 30 September 2011 BRFHRE (FE14()

(Note 14(a) - - - (14,899) - - (14,899)
Transactions with owners BEANETIRS 3,297 - 1,012 (14,899) - (29,763) 40,353)
Profit for the year and total REZAN AR 2ENA LR

comprehensive income for the year - - - - 385 - 385
Proposed final dividend for the year ~ BZE-F—--FZA=+—-HLt

ended 31 March 2012 (Note 14(a)) FEBRASRE (H314(a)) - - - (8,939) - 8,939 -
At 31 March 2012 and 1 April 2012 RZE-ZF=f=+-Hk

—Z-—fMA-A 799,335 3,608 2,776 83,314 (66,273) 8,939 831,599
Final dividends paid for the year BE-F--f=A=1-ALt

ended 31 March 2012 (Note 14(p)  EEEHKHRS (Hit14p) = - = = - (8,939) (8,939)
Interim dividends paid for the period ~ BE-F——ENA=1+RALHH

ended 30 September 2012 BRRERE (H14()

(Note 14(a)) - - - (5,960) - - (5,960)
Transactions with owners BEEARNTINS - - - (5,960) - (8,939) (14,899)
Loss for the year and total AFEBBRRAFEZENAESR

comprehensive income for the year - - - - (4,261) - (4,261)
At 31 March 2013 R=B-=f=f=+-8 799,335 3,508 2,776 71,354 (70,534) - 812,439
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=Z+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

32. RESERVES (continuead)

32.2 Company (Continued)

*

The contributed surplus of the Company consists of:

HK$51,286,000 being the difference between the
underlying consolidated net assets of Global Food
Culture Group Limited and its subsidiaries and the
nominal value of the Company’s shares which were
issued under a group reorganisation in 1997; and

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at the
annual general meeting of the Company on
10 August 2004, the Company reduced its
share premium by an amount of approximately
HK$286,300,000 in accordance with the provisions
of Section 46 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981
and transferred the same amount to the contributed
surplus account of the Company. On the same date,
the Company applied an amount of approximately
HK$236,906,000 from the contributed surplus
account against the accumulated losses; and

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at the
annual general meeting of the Company on 31 July
2009, the Company reduced its share premium by
an amount of approximately HK$260,000,000 and
transferred the same amount to the contributed
surplus account of the Company. On the same date,
the Company applied an amount of approximately
HK$206,327,000 from the contributed surplus
account against the accumulated losses; and

Dividends were reflected as an appropriation of
contributed surplus in respect of interim dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2013 of approximately
HK$5,960,000 (2012: final dividend for the
year ended 31 March 2012 of approximately
HK$8,939,000 and interim dividend for the
year ended 31 March 2012 of approximately
HK$14,899,000).

These reserve accounts comprise the Company’s
reserve of approximately HK$812,439,000 (2012:
HK$822,660,000) in the Company’s statement of financial
position.

32. s (=)

322 AT (&)

* ARBZBARBEE:

BESRXEEBMBRA
B R EK B AT 2 AR
AEEFEARQAR
—NhtFETEEESR
BRI 2EEME
2 #=%851,286,0007% T ;

52

BEARBR_ZZHEF
NA+TABRETZERE
FRELABBZERR
BE ARFREBEARE
—NAN—FRENEF 4615
2 5 TE S E B 0 i B EIR
#7286,300,000/% JT * I
BZeHREREARAZ
BARBEAN-FRB K
REARBARBEDEH
#9236,906,000/% 7T LA
HRFTER: &

BERARTR-_TENE
+A=+—HBEFZRE
RERE LBBZERR
HECARQABEESE
{8 41l 38 #9260,000,0005%
LW ZeBEEREEAR
NAZEHAEBENR
A ARQREHARGE
7R B FH #7206,327,00058
T REEE &

BREDRMAREZE =
ET-=ZF=Z/A=+—H
EFEzHh BRIY
5,960,000 (ZE—=
FHE_ZT—_—%=HA
=+—HIEFEZRER
B 478,939,000/ 7T M &
ET—ZF=ZA=+—
HIEFEZHRBRKRELN
14,899,000/ 7t) A & A
BEREE N o

# HWERBREBEARRRTK
MABMERAZARNRBFEBED
812,439,000 Tt (=& — =
£ : 822,660,000/ 7T ) °
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=Z+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

33. DISPOSALS OF INTERESTS IN

SUBSIDIARIES

GROUP

33. HEWB AR ER

Details of disposals of interests in subsidiaries during the year

ended 31 March 2013 are as follows:

(a) Disposal of Dalian Bo Yi Motors Trading Limited*

(“Dalian Bo Yi”)

On 16 May 2012, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with an independent third party to
dispose of its entire 51% equity interest in an indirect
subsidiary of the Company, namely Dalian Bo Yi, at a
cash consideration of RMB5,100,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$6,296,000).

Dalian Bo Yi was incorporated in the PRC and was
principally engaged in trading of automobiles and related
parts and accessories and provision of after-sale services.
The disposal was completed on 10 December 2012. A
gain of approximately HK$912,000 (Note 7) arose on the
disposal of Dalian Bo Vi, being the proceeds of disposal
less the carrying amount of net assets of Dalian Bo Yi. No
tax charge or credit arose from the disposal.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED BREBEER QA |  ANNUAL REPORT 2013 3k
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=Z+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

33. DISPOSALS OF INTERESTS IN 33. HEMBEAR#zE (#)
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
GROUP (Continued) TE®(F)
(a) Disposal of Dalian Bo Yi (Continued) (a) HEAXEEE (&)
The carrying amount of assets and liabilities of Dalian Bo REBREERABRTHEE
Yi as at the completion date of disposal was as follows: RHZRESBEOT
HK$’000
FET
Net assets disposed of: FItE 2 FEE:
Property, plant and equipment (Note 16) M B R (MIsE16) 2,966
Inventories rE 17,455
Prepayments and other receivables TE S FRIE & H b B W 5R I8 2,236
Cash at banks and in hand RITRFERS 16,634
Receipts in advance and other payables TE U SR IB & H fh FE - 518 (29,467)
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR B (4,474)
5,350
Release of exchange reserve B B 7 BR SN 3 18
upon disposal 34
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (Note 7) HE—ERBAR 2K (HE7) 912
Total consideration R{EEE 6,296
Satisfied by: U TAHRER:
Cash received BUYE S 6,296

An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash

equivalents in respect of the disposal of Dalian Bo Yi was

as follows:

ERLEREBEZRERAS
HFEBERLFEZONTET

HK$’000

FET

Cash received R e 6,296
Cash and bank balances disposed of FTH & 2R e RIRTTHE (16,634)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents e kReEFEBEMLFHE (10,338)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=Z+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

33. DISPOSALS OF INTERESTS IN
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

GROUP (Continued)

(a)

(b)

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED B EBHBR AR |

Disposal of Dalian Bo Yi (Continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2013, Dalian Bo Yi
contributed revenue and net profit of approximately
HK$20,660,000 and HK$556,000 respectively to the
Group.

Partial disposal of SRBMM

On 15 March 2013, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement (the “Agreement”) with Mr. Shi Lei
(“Mr. Shi”),
30% of the issued share capital in an indirect subsidiary

an independent third party, to dispose of

of the Company, namely SRBMM, at a consideration of
RMB90,000,000. The disposal was completed on 20
March 2013.

The consideration was payable in cash by two
installments. As of 31 March 2013, the Group has
received the first installment of the consideration
of RMB45,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$54,590,000). Pursuant to the terms as stipulate in the
Agreement, the second installment of the consideration
of RMB45,000,000 will be settled before 31 December
2013. To secure Mr. Shi's obligation to pay the second
installment of the consideration, a charge on 50% of
the sales share (i.e. 15% of the issued share capital of
SRBMM) in favour of the Group has been created.

SRBMM is a company incorporated in the Federal
Territory of Labuan, Malaysia. Its principal business is
investment holding (i.e. holding the entire equity interests
in TJHY and TJXC (collectively referred as to the “Subject
Group”). Both TJHY and TJXC are principally engaged in
trading of automobiles and related parts and accessories
and provision of after-sale services.

33. HEMEB AT ER (&)

AEm(E)

(a)

(b)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=Z+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

33. DISPOSALS OF INTERESTS IN
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

GROUP (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Partial disposal of SRBMM (Continued)

The Subject Group became 70% owned subsidiaries of
the Company upon the completion of the transaction.
The Group kept controlling the Subject Group after
the disposal of 30% of equity interest. Excess of
consideration over cost after tax of approximately
HK$87,547,000 was resulted and recognised in other
reserve during the year.

Deemed disposal of Balanorm Beo

On 29 January 2013, the Group and Mr. Qi entered into
a joint venture agreement (“Joint Venture Agreement”).
Before entering into the Joint Venture Agreement, the
registered capital of Balanorm Beo was increased from
RMB30,000 to RMB25,500,000. Pursuant to the Joint

33. HEMEB AT #ER (&)

rEE(E)

(b) HEHTERGETSEE

(%)

R STEKE EHEENAERA
7%%‘70%#‘*2%%@7 e

A E 2 B £ B30% A% A #E 25
&%mﬂi,%;%; THIRH S B - F NG
REBEKAZZ58 (GRFRE) LD
87,547,000/ 7T * B E b [ i

27
e

(c) BIFLEHEEE

RZE—=F—A=-+NA &K
E@,\%%EJJ_—P/\“T&

Z([&EH&E]) -

Tz?z’;é;seﬁu ﬁ%/ﬁaﬁZEHﬁﬁzﬁa

Venture Agreement, the registered capital of Balanorm
Beo was further increased from RMB25,500,000 to
RMB50,000,000. Such increase of the registered
capital of RMB24,500,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$30,247,000) of Balanorm Beo was contributed by Mr.
Qi by cash (“Capital Injection”) during the year ended 31

March 2013.

M A R #30,000 I NE AR
25,500,0007T IR & & & # &
BEEBZAMERABARK
25,500,000 3 —#H#EME AR
#:50,000,0007T ° B EEZE T E
A1EHn A R #24 500,000 (HHZE
R #9380,247,00078 70 ) AE L ER
HE-_Z—=6=ZA=+—H1t
FENRSEE (EE]) -

Balanorm Beo is a limited liability company established
in the PRC which is not engaged in any active business
activity as at the date of Joint Venture Agreement. Shortly
after the execution of the Joint Venture Agreement, the
principal activities of Balanorm Beo are the sales and
distribution of audio and visual consumer electronics
products.

Immediately after completion of the Capital Injection, the
effective interest of Balanorm Beo was diluted from 100%
to 51%. As a result of such dilution, a surplus on deemed
disposal of approximately HK$11,207,000 was credited
to other reserve during the year ended 31 March 2013.
During the year ended 31 March 2013, no revenue was
generated from Balanorm Beo.

The English name of the subsidiary established in the PRC
represents management’s best effort at translating the Chinese
name of the subsidiary as no official English name has been
registered.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=Z+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

34. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE

COMPENSATION

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was
adopted pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at a special
general meeting of the Company held on 7 October 2002 for
the primary purpose of providing incentives to directors and
eligible employees. The Scheme was expired on 6 October
2012.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at an annual
general meeting of the Company held on 20 August 2012, the
Company’s new share option scheme (the “New Scheme”) was
adopted and the Scheme was terminated.

Under the New Scheme, the board of directors of the Company
may, at its discretion, grant options to eligible employees,
including executive directors, suppliers, customers, advisers or
consultants and joint venture partners or business alliances of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries to subscribe for shares
in the Company.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10%
of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time,
without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders. The
number of shares in respect of which options may be granted
to any individual in any one year is not permitted to exceed
1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time,
without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders.
Options granted to substantial shareholder or independent
non-executive directors in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s
share capital or with a value in excess of HK$5,000,000 must
be approved in advance by the Company’s shareholders.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=Z+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

34. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE 4. LR AER 2 EEEHE

COMPENSATION (continued)

Options granted must be taken up within 21 days of the date
of grant, upon payment of HK$1 per each grant of options.
Options may be exercised from the date of grant of the share
option to the tenth anniversary of the date of grant. The
exercise price is determined by the directors of the Company
and will not be less than the highest of the closing price of
the shares on the Stock Exchange on the date of grant, the
average closing prices of the shares on the Stock Exchange on
the five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant of
the options or the nominal value of the shares.

All share-based employee compensation will be settled in
equity. The Group has no legal or constructive obligation to
repurchase or settle the options other than by issuing the
Company’s ordinary shares.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED BKEBARA A |
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BsmaMisE (8
Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=Z+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

)

34. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE
COMPENSATION (continued)

Details of the share options granted by the Company pursuant

to the New Scheme and the share options outstanding as at

the reporting date were as follows:

4. UROAER 2 EERE

(%)

RRBRBH BT 2 BIRAEARR
BEEBRMARITEZBREZFBOT:

2013 —E—=F
Number of options
BREHA
Balance at Granted Exercised Lapsed Balance at
Exercise 1 April during during the during 31 March
Type of grantee Date of grant Exercisable period price 2012 the year year the year 2013
R® i
—E-CF —g-=F
A-H ZA=t-8
RRAER R BH T8 TEE &R ERRH ERfif EREH &R
HK$
BT
Directors
=
Zhang Si Jian 15 April 2010 15 April 2010 to 14 April 2013 0.82 5,000,000 - - - 5,000,000
REE “Z-FFMATER “ZT-TEMATEAZ
ZZ-ZEMA+RA
Mr. Choy 15 April 2010 15 April 2010 to 14 April 2013 0.82 1,504,000 - - - 1,504,000
3 “E-ZEMATRH “E-ZEMATRER
ZE-ZEMA+RA
Lam Kwok Cheong 15 April 2010 15 April 2010 to 14 April 2013 0.82 596,000 - - - 596,000
HEE “Z-TFMATEA “Z-TEMATEAZ
ZE--EMA+RA
Lee Thomas Kang Bor 15 April 2010 15 April 2010 to 14 April 2013 0.82 1,248,000 - - - 1,248,000
FHER “Z-TFMATEA “T-TEMATEAZ
ZE-=EMA+RA
In aggregate 8,348,000 - - - 8,348,000
At
Employees 15 April 2010 15 April 2010 to 14 April 2013 0.82 2,504,000 - - - 2,504,000
[ “Z-ZEMA+RA —3-ZFRNA+ARE
“E-ZEMATEE
4 July 2011 4 July 2011 to 3 July 2014 1.52 4,912,000 - - - 4,912,000
“Z-—5tAmA “E-—5tAMAZE
“E-MELA=H
In aggregate 7,416,000 - - - 7,416,000
At
Total 15,764,000 - - - 15,764,000
@zt
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=Z+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

34. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE M. URDAERZESEHE
COMPENSATION (continued) (%)
2012 —T—=F
Number of options
RhREHE
Balance at Granted Exercised Lapsed Balance at
Exercise 1 Apri during during during 31 March
Type of grantee Date of grant Exercisable period price 2011 the year the year the year 2012
N R®
2% “2--f%
mA—-B =A=t—-H
AR AER RiAH 8 e L& FRRH ERFTR ERKRH LER
HKS
B
Directors
f
Zhang Si Jian 15 April 2010 15 April 2010 to 14 April 2013 0.82 5,000,000 - - - 5,000,000
RRE “Z-TFMATEA “I-TEMATRAZE
ZZ-=FMA+RA
Mr. Choy 15 April 2010 15 April 2010 to 14 April 2013 0.82 2,504,000 - (1,000,000) - 1,504,000
BEE “Z-ZEMATEA “Z-TEMATEEE
ZZ-=FMA+RA
Lam Kwok Cheong 15 April 2010 15 April 2010 to 14 April 2013 0.82 596,000 - - - 596,000
HEE “Z-ZEMATEA ZZ-ZEMATEREE
ZZ-=FMA+RA
Lee Thomas Kang Bor 15 April 2010 15 April 2010 to 14 April 2013 0.82 1,248,000 - - - 1,248,000
ZER “Z-ZEMATEA Z-ZEMATEREE
ZZ-=FMA+RA
In aggregate 9,348,000 - (1,000,000) - 8,348,000
&t
Employees 15 April 2010 15 April 2010 to 14 April 2013 0.82 5,008,000 - (2,504,000) - 2,504,000
Es “2-FMATIHR “Z-ZEMATEARZE
“Z-=FMA+MA
4 July 2011 4 July 2011 to 3 July 2014 1.52 - 5,216,000 - (304,000) 4,912,000
—Z-—-FtAMmA “E-—-5tAMAZ
“Z-mFtA=A
In aggregate 5,008,000 5,216,000 (2,504,000) (304,000) 7,416,000
At
Total 14,356,000 5,216,000 (3,504,000) (304,0000 15,764,000
&zt
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=Z+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

34. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE

COMPENSATION (continued)

The weighted average exercise price for the outstanding share
options as at 31 March 2013 was HK$1.038 (2012: HK$1.038)
per share.

The weighted average share price for share options exercised
during the year ended 31 March 2012 at the date of exercise
was HK$0.95 per share. No share option was exercised during
the year ended 31 March 2013.

The underlying expected volatility was determined by reference
to historical data, calculated based on expected life of share
options. Expectations of early exercise were incorporated into
the Black-Scholes option pricing model. No special features
pertinent to the options granted were incorporated into
measurement of fair value.

In total, approximately HK$1,443,000 of equity-settled share
option expenses was included in profit or loss for the year
ended 31 March 2012, of which the corresponding amount has
been credited to share option reserve in the owners’ equity.
No liabilities were recognised due to share-based payment
transactions.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED BREBEER QA |  ANNUAL REPORT 2013 3k
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

35. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

(@) Group as lessor

The Group sub-leases out a number of rented premises
under operating leases. The leases run for an initial non-
cancellable period of 5 years. The rentals on this lease
are calculated based on a percentage of the relevant
sales of the tenants pursuant to the rental agreement.
Contingent rents recognised in profit or loss during the
year ended 31 March 2013 amounted to approximately

HK$25,099,000 (2012: HK$21,327,000).

(b) Group as lessee

As at the reporting date, the total future minimum lease
payments payable by the Group under non-cancellable
operating leases, including operating lease commitment
to related parties as disclosed in note 39(b), are as

35. KEHEERIE

(a)

(b)

AEEERHBEA

AEBBESEHESHLZENR
EWME-HEN T BHSE T
Wi REBEHERZE HHEEZHA
%%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ*ﬁﬁ%iﬁ&%EZE/‘ttﬁ
Htir;'ﬁéiaﬁﬁﬁ@a@zijz%%ﬁ
©#9/525,099,0008 7T (ZF—=
4 :21,327,000/8 7T ) °

FEBE/EBAA

RI|ER  AEBRETAIHEL
Mfﬂffﬁziﬁxrﬁﬁgﬁk

7R (B 15 M RE39(b) P % 25 M) Y
BATER 2R ETHERIE) &

follows: N
2013 2012
—EB—=fF —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FET
Within one year —F R 84,174 117,943

In the second to fifth years “HFEERF

inclusive (BREEEMSF) 281,621 333,099
After five years HEME 173,945 233,540
539,740 684,582

The Group leases a number of office premises, bonded
warehouse, showrooms and staff quarters under
operating leases. The leases run for an initial period of
one to ten years (2012: one to ten years). None of these

leases include contingent rentals.

The Company does not have any significant operating

lease commitments.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

36.

37.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED BEEEERAT |

CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS 36. EA R H AL
GROUP AEE
2013 2012
—E—=F —E—_F
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#E T FAET
Contracted but not provided for MEBEWE HERR
in respect of acquisition of property, BEIA)B R B E
plant and equipment - 39,014
Save as mentioned above, as at the reporting date, according BrbaiEIN RRER - BREEEEZZ
to certain distributorship agreements for trading of luxury mZETREEGZ AEEDABER
goods, the Group has committed to open nine (2012: thirteen) REBNRAZINAE(ZE—=F:+=
boutiques during the terms of the distributorship period. &) B2 -
The Company does not have any significant capital and other KR PR ERE R & B A e o
commitment.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 37. MEBREREXRM T

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Major non-cash transaction

During the year ended 31 March 2013, deposits of
approximately HK$53,206,000 paid in prior year for the
acquisition of property, plant and equipment were capitalised
as property, plant and equipment.

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 F#
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

38. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS

COMPANY

As at the reporting date, the Company has executed corporate
guarantee to certain banks with respect to general banking
facilities granted to certain subsidiaries of the Company of
approximately HK$145,060,000 (2012: HK$140,060,000). As
at the reporting date, no provision for the Company’s obligation
under the financial guarantee contracts has been made. The
directors of the Company considered that it was not probable

that the repayments of the borrowings would be in default.

39. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

(a) Related party transactions

GROUP

During the year, except as disclosed elsewhere in
these financial statements, the Group had the following

significant transactions with

related parties:

38. BIIEREW
|

RB|ER RARARREETHEARE
&2 — M ER1715 B #9145,060,0007% 7T

—F— — £ :140,060,000/ 7T) A &
FHRITFEUARER -REEH W E
RARARIBEREHZEETIRE
B ANREERATRAREHBRIER
BEERZBR-

30. MEATHE
(@) MEATZXS
L34
ER - RRAH B RE A P

BEEN NREETEEEATE
THIIERRZS:

2013 2012
—E—=F —E-—F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
ig=s FHET FHET
Sales of jewelleries and MESHERBEREGR
fine wines to directors (i) - 249
Sales of jewelleries to M—BRREERE
a shareholder (i) 122 -
Sales of fine wines to M—XBEAREERDN
a related company (iii) - 100
Payment of rents to TRNTF—2BRERZES
a shareholder (iv) 55,505 41,811
Payment of rents, XN TFT-—RZHEEALTZ
management fees and He EEHER
office expenses to FENEN Y
a related party (V) 1,126 2,237
Purchase of property, M—2EETEEWE.
plant and equipment 23 K 7%
from a director (Vi) - 707

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED BKEBARA A |
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

39. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (continued)

(a)

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED BHEBHBR AR |

Related party transactions (Continued)

GROUP (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(ii)

(iv)

(vi)

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Group sold
certain items of jewelleries and fine wines to four directors
of the Company, Mr. Tong, Mr. Choy, Mr. Gao and Mr.
Zhao.

The Group sold certain jewelleries to Mr. Qi.

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Group sold
certain fine wines to a related company in which Mr. Qi has
beneficial interests.

The Group paid rents to Mr. Qi.

The Group paid rents, management fees and office
expenses to a related party who is a close family member
of Mr. Qi.

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Group
purchased certain property, plant and equipment from Mr.
Zhao.

The directors of the Company considered that the

directors’ remuneration as set out in note 11 is equivalent

to the Group’s key management’s remuneration.

39. BEALTEE &)

(a)

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 F#
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(i)

(i

(ii)

(iv)

(vi)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

39. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (continued) 39. BEALTHE &)

(b) Operating lease commitment to related parties

GROUP

As at the reporting date, the total future minimum lease
payments payable by the Group to Mr. Qi (2012: Mr.
Qi and his close family member) under non-cancellable
operating leases were as follows:

(b) BMERAEATHEHZKEHEER
REE

RE|EHR  NREBRE AT HEHL
EHERNAELEE (ZT——F:
BRERBERE—REREE)Z
ARKEBEFBRER M
T

2013 2012

—EB—=fF —E—-F

HK$’000 HK$’000

TET FAT

Within one year —FR 42,351 57,732
In the second to fifth years F_FEERF

inclusive (BEEEMSF) 224,890 222,088

After five years AFLE 167,035 220,244

434,276 500,964

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The Group is exposed to financial risks through its use of
financial instruments in its ordinary course of operations. The
financial risks included market risk (including currency risk,
interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk.

Financial risk management is coordinated at the Group’s
headquarters, in close co-operation with the board of directors.
The overall objectives in managing financial risks focus on
securing the Group’s short to medium term cash flows by
minimising its exposure to financial markets.

It is not the Company’s policy to engage in the trading of
financial instruments for speculative purposes.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED BKEBARA A |

40. TREREER X AENE

AEERERXEBRRTERAEHMT
B EAmAZ e ER ZFcREAR
BEDSAR (BREEER FXR
e HERER)  EERR LIRS
1 LB o

cREAREERASEANRSE WH
ExgZncfr-ERCRRR BR
BRAERESRTSARZBERT
BRAEEPEHZASRE -

RERBENEESRTAIIFAR
28

o

Z
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

40. cREMBEER QAAES
(%)

fim

40.1 Categories of financial assets and liabilities 401 eRHEEREEER

R BARRIRE 25 2 REED K
UTEeREERSBRBERN:

The carrying amounts presented in the statements of
financial position relate to the following categories of
financial assets and financial liabilities:

Group Company
rEE NN
2013 2012 2013 2012
—B—= —T——F —_E—= —F—-
HK$’000 HK$ 000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT FHBT TERT FHET
Financial assets THEE
Financial assets at fair value &2 BREBR KR
through profit or loss ZERMEE
— Held for trading —BIEEE 524 79,837 - -
- Designated upon initial — R F R IEE
recognition - 3,208 - -
Loans and receivables: ES R WA
- Rental deposits paidto  —2ffEE A+
related parties Meke 13,672 14,232 - -
- Trade receivables —EWE HTIA 57,259 29,529 - -
— Other receivables —H o & WRIA 178,394 64,375 560 -
— Amount due from -l —REE
a related party ATHIA 14,183 14,232 - -
- Amounts due from — I B R EIFRIA
subsidiaries - - 904,951 913,334
- Pledged bank deposits ~ — 2 iKIFRITER 95,854 39,126 9,387 6,369
- Cash at banks and —-RITRFERS
in hand 273,893 130,382 377 6,965
633,779 374,921 915,275 926,668

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED BEEEERAT |
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 40. ©@iEREER AABENE
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) (#&)
40.1 Categories of financial assets and liabilities 401 SREEREBEER (£)
(Continued)
Group Company
PN | ¥ YN
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E—= —E—_fF —E—= —E—_F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FAT THER FAT
Financial liabilities TRAE
Financial liabilities at fair value &2t ERBZERFIER
through profit or loss ZERMBE
- Designated upon initial —“ROIFHERRIETE
recognition 161 - - -
Financial liabilities measured LA %4 855k A5t & 2
at amortised cost: TRAE:
- Trade payables —ENE S5 %IA 14,551 20,435 - -
- Accrued charges and -EERAR
other payables H A e 3R 20,232 23,742 1,419 910
- Amount due to —EN— BB
a related party ATHIA - 2,276 - -
- Amounts due to o LENGE S
subsidiaries - - 15,558 18,200
- Borrowings —-f&8 587,849 264,433 80,000 70,000
622,793 310,886 96,977 89,110

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED B3 &E@EAMR AT | ANNUALREPORT2013 3% 1061
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 40. ¢RiEMEE L N AET
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) (&)

i

40.2 Foreign currency risk 40.2 MR B

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED BHEBHBR AR |

Transactions in foreign currencies and the Group’s
risk management policies

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that the fair
value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.
The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong, the PRC and
Malaysia with most of the transactions denominated and
settled in HK$, EURO, CHF, RMB and US$. No foreign
currency risk has been identified for the financial assets
and financial liabilities denominated in RMB, which is the
functional currencies of the subsidiaries in the PRC to
which these transactions relate. The Group’s exposure
to foreign currency risk primarily arises from certain
financial instruments including financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, trade and other receivables,
trade and other payables, derivative financial instruments
and borrowings which are denominated in EURO, CHF,
US$ and Japanese Yen (“JPY”). During the years, the
Group did not have foreign currency hedging policy but
management continuously monitors foreign exchange
exposure.

Foreign currency denominated financial assets and
liabilities, translated into HK$ at the prevailing closing
rates as at reporting dates, are as follows:

SR G R A E B )E b E B
&

SNERBRESRIAZ ARESAK
KIR & E A SNE B 8 8 N
Rk AEEEITELEFTE T
BN F5 kP gs & 5& - KA R 5 A
BB WmEER ARBR
EXnilE- A\RERSBREX S
RzHBERBARzEY &
AARBIEZERMEERSR
BETEBRINERR AEEZ
SRR EBIRE BT I bE
X kRAESIEZETERT
B BREAAENBSERIIEL
TREE HEHNLHEMBUKE .
B REMENTERE TESRT
AREE -FR  ANEBEILEINE
HBHBE Am EREEERER
RN LR

MoNERTEZEMEERAEBR
BERREFRTERE /BT
BT

2013 2012
—g-= —F--fF

Notional Notional

amounts of amounts of

derivative derivative
Financial Financial financial Net Financial Financial financial Net
assets liabilities instruments exposure assets liabilities instruments exposure

fTEew fieem
SREE SRERE IAEE RRFE SHEE tRAR IAEE By
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TRL TAL FEL TAL TAL
JPY A 34 - - 34 - - - -
EURO Bt 2,546 (4,106) 12,185 10,625 88,546 (1,099) 90,082 177,479
CHF RS - (6,316) - (6,316) - (7,928) - (7,928)
RMB ARE 17,568 (2,222) - 15,346 32,022 - - 32,022
Us$ e 692 (1,499) - (807) 5,890 - - 5,890
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

fim

40. cREMBEER QAAES
(%)

40.2 Foreign currency risk (Continued) 40.2 SN R ()

Sensitivity analysis

As US$ is pegged to HK$, the Group does not expect
any significant movement in the HK$/US$ exchange
rate. No sensitivity analysis in respect of the Group’s
sensitivity analysis in respect of the Group’s financial
assets and liabilities denominated in US$ is disclosed
as in the opinion of directors of the Company, such
sensitivity analysis does not give additional value in view
of insignificant movement in the US$/HK$ exchange rates
as at the reporting dates.

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the Group’s
results for the year ended 31 March 2013 and equity
in regards to a 5% (2012: 5%) appreciation in HK$
against JPY, EURO, CHF and RMB respectively. The
5% is the rate used when reporting foreign currency risk
internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s best assessment of the possible change
in foreign exchange rates.

BBE D

MR ETEB T Bk RE
EERAETHETERAGHR
TAEREH ARARAEER
R ERERTTA B TTE RN S |mE
Bz SEBEM - NEEIAETS
BreRMEERBRZIHRED
A I FR AR SME(E - T I 3
BEHHREIN-

TREAAEERBE—_T—=F
A=t HILEFEZEENE
mEB T AE BT I AR
RAREDBITHESS (T ——
Fib%)ZHBE-5%DMEE
IR A BRSNS LB A BRI S B
Rt W RETEE S HNEE K
BEEE 2 REMET -

Results for the year
and retained profits

TAEEEBREZHER
Group
rEE
2013 2012
—E—_=4F —EF—=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHET
JPY =] (1) -
EURO BT (464) (8,069)
CHF I £ BB 264 331
RMB AR (767) (1,600)

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED BKEBARA A |
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 40. £ RiEMEEN AALEE
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

40.2 Foreign currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis of the Group’s exposure to foreign
currency risk at the reporting date has been determined
based on the assumed percentage changes in foreign
currency exchange rates taking place at the beginning of
the financial years and held constant throughout the year.

A 5% depreciation in HK$ against JPY, EURO, CHF, and
RMB would have the same magnitude on the Group’s
results for the year and retained profits but of opposite
effect.

These are the same method and assumption used in
preparing the sensitivity analysis included in the financial
statements of the year ended 31 March 2012.

Exposures to foreign exchange rates vary during the
year depending on the volume of overseas transactions.
Nevertheless, the analysis above is considered to
be representative of the Group’s exposure to foreign
currency risk.

As the Company does not have significant exposure
to foreign currency risk, the Company’s income and
operating cash flows are substantially independent of
changes in foreign currency rates.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED BREBEER QA |  ANNUAL REPORT 2013 3k
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7
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 40. ¢RiEMEE L N AET

VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)
40.3 Interest rate risk

Exposures to interest rate risk and the Group’s and
the Company’s risk management policies

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value or
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates. The Group’s and the
Company’s interest rate risk arises primarily from bank
deposits (Note 25) and borrowings (Note 29). The Group
and the Company have not used any derivative contracts
in order to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk. The
Group and the Company have not formulated a policy to
manage the interest rate risk.

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the Group’s
and the Company’s results for the year ended 31 March
2013 to a possible change in interest rates of +/-0.5%
(2012: +/-0.5%), with effect from the beginning of the
year. The calculations are based on the Group’s and
the Company’s financial assets and liabilities held at the
reporting date. All other variables are held constant.

i

40.3 A =Gk

RE 2 FEE bR A EBRE K
RAZEBERERFE

NMEEBREESRIAZAARER
ReRERATHN R E B MK
Z R e AERE R AR R ZFEE,
2 X BIRERITER (ME25) &
fEE (M E29) - REE R AR A
WEFERETEITETEAHE T
HF = b o RN B R AR B R
HIRTE A R m R 2 BOK

TEREMAAEBEARBHE=T
—ZE=ZRA=t+-—BIUEEZ¥E
EY B8 FNER 2 EEF RE

+/-05% (ZF——4: 4+/-0.5%)
ZHBE HEHEUAEBRA
RARBEARBEZEREER
BEAEE -IBEHMEBHERT

,,,,,,,,

Results for the year
and retained profits

AEEXBERRE R
Group Company
TEH ¥ NN
HK$’ 000 HK$’000
FAT FAT
+0.5% -0.5% +0.5% -0.5%
2013 —E—=F 800 (800) (353) 353
2012 =4 (119) 119 (318) 318
SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED B EE AR A | ANNUAL REPORT 2013 ik
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 40. £ RiEMEEN AALEE

VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

40.4

40.5

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED BEEEERAT |

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to other price risk arising from
changes in the market price underlie its financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss. As at the reporting date,
the Group’s other price risk is mainly concentrated on the
investments in wine futures.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined
based on the exposure to other price risk in relation to the
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, which
is the wine futures, at the reporting date.

If the market price of the wines in relation to the wine
futures had been 5% (2012: 5%) higher/lower, profit for
the year ended 31 March 2013 would increase/decrease
by approximately HK$26,000 (2012: HK$3,992,000) as a
result of the changes in these financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty to a
financial instrument would fail to discharge its obligation
under the terms of the financial instrument and cause
a financial loss to the Group. Generally, the maximum
credit risk exposure of financial assets is the carrying
amount of the financial assets as shown on the face of
the consolidated statement of financial position which
are summarised in note 40.1 above. None of the financial
assets of the Group are secured by collateral or other
credit enhancements.

All the Group’s bank balances are deposited with major
banks located in Hong Kong, Malaysia and the PRC.

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 F#
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 40. £ RiEMEEN AALEE
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) (%)

fim

40.5 Credit risk (Continued) 40.5 &R (&)

The Group trades mainly with recognised, creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that
the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant. The
carrying amounts of the trade receivables included in the
consolidated statement of financial position represent the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its
financial assets. Further detailed exposure to credit risk of
the Group is disclosed in note 23.

The Group is exposed to concentration of credit risk.
Receivables from a counterparty represented about 83%
of the Group’s trade receivables and receivables from two
counterparties represented about 50% of the Group’s
other receivables as at 31 March 2013 (2012: receivables
from two counterparties represented about 54% of the
Group’s trade receivables and receivables from two
counterparties represented about 58% of the Group’s
other receivables). The Group’s concentration of credit
risk by geographical locations is mainly in the PRC and
Hong Kong (2012: the PRC).

The Company is not exposed to significant concentration
of risk.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED BKEBARA A |

AEEBXZHERREERITZ
BE=FERTRS BEAEEZK
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Ko RERE MIEHARMERANRZ B
KB SHEZ2EABEAAEERM
HeMEEBAZ ZEAEER
R AEBEEERR 2 E—HFHIB
U 2338 5 -

AEEEHEPEERR -RZF
—=F=ZA=+—18 EBk—%Y
FHZRELAEBERE S8
#183% + WM & ¥ F 5 2 58
17N S B E fth FE UL R IE£Y50% (=
T—F REURMBEF A 2HE
RSB EKE 5IBLN4% 5
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ENRFBERES (ZE—ZF:
HE) o

RABWAREHEKRNES 2 AR -

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 F

167



168

Bk E (8)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

40.6 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group and
the Company will not be able to meet its obligations
associated with its financial liabilities. The Group and
the Company are exposed to liquidity risk in respect of
settlement of trade payables and its financing obligations,
and also in respect of its cash flow management. The
Group’s and the Company’s objective are to maintain an
appropriate level of liquid assets and committed lines of
funding to meet its liability requirements in the short and
longer term.

The Group and the Company manage the liquidity needs
on a consolidated basis by carefully monitoring scheduled
debt servicing payments for long term financial liabilities
as well as forecast cash inflows and outflows due in day
to day business.

Analysed below is the Group’s and the Company’s
remaining contractual maturities for the non-derivative
financial liabilities as at 31 March 2013. When the creditor
has a choice of when the liability is settled, the liability
is included on the basis of the earliest date on when the
Group and the Company can be required to pay. Where
the settlement of the liability is in instalments, each
instalment is allocated to the earliest period in which the
Group and the Company are committed to pay.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED BREBEER QA |  ANNUAL REPORT 2013 3k
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 40. cRiEMEER AAEE
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) (#&)
40.6 Liquidity risk (Continued) 40.6 FRENERKR (£)
The analysis is based on the undiscounted cash flows of DM EREBECRMIIBIR SR
the financial liabilities. BRKE-
Group AEME
Total Less than
contractual one year or
Carrying undiscounted repayable One year
amount cash flow on demand or above

BRRER  SR-FH
BREHE REREBEAE REREER -F3Mt

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET
At 31 March 2013 RZE-=
=Z=A=+-—H
Non-derivative financial FTESRIA:
instruments:
Trade payables ENESHIE 14,551 14,551 14,551 -
Accrued charges and EtER R
other payables E A 3IE 20,232 20,232 19,694 538
Borrowings EE 587,849 603,042 561,937 41,105
622,632 637,825 596,182 41,643
At 31 March 2012 RZE—ZF
=F=+—-H
Non-derivative financial FTESRIA:
instruments:
Trade payables ENESHIE 20,435 20,435 20,435 -
Accrued charges and EETER R
other payables HoAth & 1 5778 23,742 23,742 20,653 3,089
Amount due to B —%EE
a related party AT FIE 2,276 2,276 2,276 -
Borrowings BE 264,433 272,112 213,253 58,859
310,886 318,565 256,617 61,948
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BismRME (8)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=Z+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 40. £ iEMEENR AALEE

VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

40.6 Liquidity risk (Continued)

(%)

40.6 B HER (&)

fim

Company ¥/
Total Less than
contractual one year or
Carrying undiscounted repayable One year
amount cash flow on demand or above
BHRRER PR—FH
BHE RERELE REREE -—-F3it
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
At 31 March 2013 RZE-=
=ZA=t+—H
Non-derivative financial FITESRTIA:
instruments:
Accrued charges and st ER R
other payables HoAth JE 1 5108 1,419 1,419 1,419 -
Amounts due to subsidiaries e BT B A R A 15,558 15,558 15,558 -
Borrowings EE 80,000 83,548 42,443 41,105
96,977 100,525 59,420 41,105
Financial guarantees issued: BRNEBBER:
Maximum amount guaranteed (R EE LR 24,135 24,226 24,226 -
At 31 March 2012 R_E—_%F
=RA=+—H
Non-derivative financial FiITESRTIA:
instruments:
Accrued charges fEst &R 910 910 910 -
Amounts due to subsidiaries  FE{IHIE R AIFE 18,200 18,200 18,200 -
Borrowings 58 70,000 75,972 17,113 58,859
89,110 95,082 36,223 58,859
Financial guarantees issued: BRI BER:
Maximum amount ERIBLR
guaranteed 78,727 78,875 78,875 -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=Z+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 40. £ iEMEENR AALEE
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) (&)

fim

40.7 R BERRBRERZDAAE

5"':

40.7 Fair value measurements recognised in the

statement of financial position

The following table presents financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value in the consolidated statement
of financial position in accordance with the fair value
hierarchy. The hierarchy groups financial assets and
liabilities into three levels based on the relative reliability of
significant inputs used in measuring the fair value of these
financial assets and liabilities. The fair value hierarchy has
the following levels:

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets and liabilities;

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e.
derived from prices); and

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the
financial asset or liability is categorised in its entirety is
based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the
fair value measurement.

==4

TREAAEDIBRERZIINER
EMBRABERARRBEFELZ
TREENBE - ZDERBRIE
AEEMEBEERBBZARER
FERZEREAEZBEA ST
HzEeRmEERABEN /=
BRl-BREARAREDBRBMT:

- FH—ERWELETERE
ELBEzZRE(CKEHR

%)

- BBz HZE (WER)HE
®(MERITEE)IHEE
EXEEzRAE T
BRI —HERNZHRE: &

- BA=Z:UEAABETS
BEAREZEESAER
ANE (TABRBAE) -

TRMEELRBEMEAREDE
MANEAANHRAEHENEB
EARZRERNBAESER-
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=Z+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 40. £ iEMEENR AALEE
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) (%)

fim

40.7 R BRRBRER Z QA AE

il‘t

40.7 Fair value measurements recognised in the

statement of financial position (Continued)

The financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value in
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
March 2013 are grouped into the fair value hierarchy as

B (&)

RIBE-—=F=ZA=+—HBRE
EMBRARKEARBFELZ
ERMEENABERAARBIER

follows: Bl o¥EmT:
Group rEE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
& Bl — &A= &A= &3t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET FAT FAT
As at 31 March 2013 R-ZZE—-=F%
=A=+-—-8H
Assets EE
Financial assets at fair value AR BERBZH XTI
through profit or loss LERMEE
(Note (a)) (FfzE(e) - - 524 524
Liabilities =L
Derivative financial instruments {74 & § T &
(Note (b)) (P 7E(0)) - (161) - (161)
- (161) 524 363
As at 31 March 2012 R-E——%F
—B=+—H
Assets BE
Financial assets at fair value AR BERBZH XTI
through profit or loss LERMEE
(Note (a)) (FizE(e)) - - 79,837 79,837
Derivative financial instruments T4 4§ T &
(Note (b)) GEIRY - 3,208 - 3,208
- 3,208 79,837 83,045

RERRE - Rl — k- HEITE
EAEE KRR = JrEE A o
reporting period. i o

There have been no significant transfers between levels
1 and 2 and no transfers into or out of level 3 during the
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=Z+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 40. £ iEMEENR AALEE

VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

40.7 Fair value measurements recognised in the

statement of financial position (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The fair values of the financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss held by the Group are estimated using a
valuation technique that is not based on observable
market data. The financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are included in Level 3 and consist of wine
futures.

Of the total gains for the year ended 31 March 2013
included in profit or loss, profit of approximately
HK$118,000 (2012: HK$10,171,000) relates to wine
futures are included in “fair value gains on financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss” in the other income as
disclosed in note 7.

Derivative financial instrument

Where derivatives are traded either on exchanges or liquid
over-the-counter markets, the Group uses the closing
price at the reporting date. Normally, the derivatives
entered into by the Group are not traded on active
markets. The fair values of such contracts are estimated
using a valuation technique that maximises the use of
observable market inputs e.g. market currency and interest
rates (Level 2). The derivatives entered into by the Group
are included in Level 2 and consist of foreign currency
forward contracts.

%
(#&)
40.7 R BRRMRBER 2 A REFT
B(#)
G

(a)

(b)

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED BKEBARA A

BRAARERBRERIRZEME
B

AEBMIFRARENIERRS
FreRMEEZ A ARERNA T
WIFNATERMISRBERER
EERM KGR - RA A ERE
BmRINEZ CBEEFT ARSI
= BEHE-

AAABXZEE-_ZT—=F=A
“t—HALLFEKREEER &
HAE A B8 2 % F) 49118,000/%8 7T
—Z——4%:10,171,000/ T)
ATAM T EEE MK A2
MERAAERBREERIEZSH
BEZAERZ] -

fTESMIA

WO TR R SRS
SIS EE AEEFBR®RE
BzZWmE—Rimhs  ~NEE
R 2 OTE T B ENE BT 5
BEE -BEANZARERNA—
BREERATEEDSHAR (D
MG HE R RAME) (&5 =) &
A2 BESM R - N EE
RIMZOTET R AL =B
EINEEREL
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=Z+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 40. £ iEMEENR AALEE

VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

40.7 Fair value measurements recognised in the
statement of financial position (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)
(b) Derivative financial instrument (Continued)

Of the total losses for the year ended 31 March
2013 included in profit or loss, loss of approximately
HK$3,369,000 relates to foreign currency forward
contracts are included in “fair value losses on derivative
financial instruments” in the other operating expenses. Of
the total gains for the year ended 31 March 2012 included
in profit or loss, profit of approximately HK$3,208,000
relates to foreign currency forward contracts are included
in “fair value gains on derivative financial instruments” in
the other income as disclosed in note 7.

The Company does not expose to the risk on fair value
measurement.

fim

(#&)

40.7 AR BERARBRERZAAE

B(#)

il‘l_’

MizE: (&)
(b) FTEEBMTEAE(E)

HABBZEBEE-_T—Z€=
A=+—HBILFEBEGEEYS
HONEIRBIAE N BB 2 BEY
3,369,000 ;Lat A H b 48 & &
AR zZITTEEMIAZAR
BERB] TABRZZHE=Z
——FZA=t+—HIEFEKZ
MET - BINERAENEREZ
i M1493,208,00058 7Tt AT EE7
T BEEMRARZ [FTHESR
TAZRARBERZE] -

ARBAEREEH R AEFTERBR

41. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 41, EXEE

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is
to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise
shareholders value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made in
the objectives, policies or processes during the year.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=Z+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

41.

42,

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
total debt divided by total capital. Total debt is calculated as
borrowings, as shown in the consolidated statement of financial
position. Total capital is calculated as total equity, as shown
in the consolidated statement of financial position. The Group
aims to maintain the gearing ratio at a reasonable level.

41.

EXEE (&)

AEEEAEABGELE R (AEFBE
BUBEAEE)EZEER-BHERT
BEERFE YHNEA B BRRBRER
NeBEARBBEIIERAESE W H
REEAMBIRRABERAN - N EEZ B IR
EEEAB B REFE—ESEKF

+
2013 2012
—E-—=F —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T FHETT
Total debt B ELE

Borrowings BE 587,849 264,433
Total capital BEARBE 1,645,534 1,456,974
Total debt to capital ratio HEBEHERE R 35.7% 18.1%

EVENT AFTER REPORTING DATE 42, £ EHEKEE

On 1 June 20183, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with Mr. Shi to acquire 30% of the issued share
capital in SRBMM (“Acquisition”), which was disposed by the
Group to Mr. Shi during the year ended 31 March 2013 as
disclosed in note 33(b), at a consideration of RMB72,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$91,440,000). Accordingly, the
difference between the consideration and the carrying amount
of net assets of the Subject Group as at the date of completion
of the Acquisition will be recognised in other reserve in the
year ending 31 March 2014. Details of the aforementioned
Acquisition were set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 3 June 2013.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED BKEBARA A |

RZE—=FRA—HB AEEEA
EETV—MEEHDZ WERBERD
PR T 5 48 230% 2 BITIR AN ([ =
H]) R EARARMT72,000,0005T (1
Z R #191,440,000/8 7T ) © #%30% L 3%
TRAEWENBOMFEERNEHE_F
—=F=ZA=t+—HILFEHRAEEE
ThREE Al REEEHNEEFE
ERKRESEBEKEHZETREZEZE
BREE-F—NF=A=+—HILF
EHEEMBFEHEER LB EE 2 F
BHAARRBHAZZTE—=F-A=
HZAMA -
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Ly A

Financial Summary

RESULTS E
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
“ZTNFE ZE-%F —E——Ff ZE--f CZB-=f
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TEL TEL FET THET TER
Revenue e 611,530 1,219,128 3,322,985 4,427 423 3,015,555
(Loss)/profit for the year AREHEAANEL
attributable to the owners AEE (BB)/
of the Company ikl (189,969) 113,016 183,677 214,188 66,304
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
“ZTNE ZE-TF T——F 2% “E-Z=f
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
AT TET AT FHT TR
Total assets BEE 879,172 1,184,999 1,703,923 1,922,865 2,373,296
Total liabilities BaBE (300,221) (311,093) (435,472) (465,891) (727,762)
578,951 873,906 1,268,451 1,456,974 1,645,534
Equity attributable to the owners KRR AEEHER
of the Company 575,494 869,802 1,263,183 1,452,207 1,605,501
Non-controlling interests FERER 3,457 4,104 5,268 4,747 40,033
578,951 873,906 1,268,451 1,456,974 1,643,534
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